STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES DRINKING WATER PROGRAM AND MAINE MUNICIPAL BOND BANK

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 2025 INTENDED USE PLAN FOR THE

BASE, SUPPLEMENTAL & EMERGING CONTAMINANT CAPITALIZATION GRANTS



JUNE 2025

Table of Contents

Ι.	Introduction	I
2.	Short-Term and Long-Term Goals of the DWSRF in the State of Maine	3
	2A. Short-Term Goals - Base, Base Reallotment & Supplemental Funds	3
	2B. Short- Term Goals – Emerging Contaminant Funds	3
	2C. Long-Term Goals.	4
3.	Financial Status	
	3A. Total amount of funds in DWSRF	5
	3B. State Match	6
	3C. Beginning/end of year financial status	6
	3D. Capacity Development Strategy	6
	3E. Operator Certification Program	7
4.	Non-Project Activities/Set-Asides (Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants)	7
	4A. Definition/Description	7
	4B. Rationale for Grant funds for non-project activities	7
	4C. Description of non-project activities	8
	I. Program Administration (4% Set-Aside)	8
	II. Technical Assistance for Small PWSs (2% Set-Aside)	8
	III. Drinking Water Program Functions (10% Set-Aside)	
	IV. Other Non-Project Activities (15% Set-Aside)	9
	4D. Non-Project Activities/Set-Asides (Emerging Contaminant Capitalization Grant)	. 16
	4E. Separate non-project activity accounting.	. 17
	4F. Transfer of unspent funds to the DWSRF	. 17
5.	Project Funds	. 17
	5A. Funds available (Base & Supplemental Capitalization Grants)	. 17
	I. Manufactured Housing Communities	. 18
	5B. Project Funds Available (Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant)	. 19
	I. Small PWS EC Grants	. 19
	II. Large PWS EC Treatment Grants	. 19
	III. PWS Consolidation EC Grants	. 20
	IV. Private Well Extension EC Grants	. 20

	V. Emerging Contaminant Design Assistance Grants	20
	5C. Projects to be funded	21
	5D. Unencumbered Funds from Previous Grant Years	22
	5E. PWSs/Projects Ineligible for Funding	22
	5F. Environmental Reviews	22
	5G. Procurement Requirements	22
	5H. Build America Buy America (BABA) and Use of American Iron and Steel (AIS)	23
	5I. Equivalency	25
	5J. Federal Cross-Cutting Authorities.	25
	5K. Comprehensive System Facilities Plan/ Master Plan.	26
	5L. EPA Data Reporting Requirements	26
6.	Criteria and Method of Distribution of Funds	27
	6A. Description of Selection Process for Projects to Receive Assistance	27
	6B. By-Pass Provision	27
	6C. By-Pass for Small Water PWS Assistance	28
	6D. By-Pass for Consolidation Grant Assistance	28
	6E. Emergency Construction Fund	28
	6F. Very Small PWS Compliance Loan Fund (VSPWSCL)	28
	6G. Consolidation Grants.	29
	6H. PWSs in Priority Status on EPA's ETT	30
	6I. Project Priority Ranking System	30
	I. Standard Projects	30
	II. Other Projects - 15% Set-Aside	34
	6J. Relationship to Meeting DWSRF Goals and Objectives	37
	6K. Impact on Long-Term Financial Status of the DWSRF	37
7.	Financial Aspects of DWSRF Assistance	38
	7A. General	38
	7B. Financial Terms of Loans	38
	7C. The Public Utilities Commission (PUC) Requirements	38
	7D. MMBB & DWP Administrative Fees	38
	7E. Refinancing of Existing Facilities	39
	7F. Refinancing of Facilities Currently Being Constructed	39

7G. Projects That Secure Non-Bond Bank Interim Financing for Facility Construction	39
7H. Projects That Secure Bond Bank Interim Financing for Facility Construction	40
8. Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance	41
8A. Definition of Disadvantaged Community PWS	41
8B. Total Amount of Funds Available for Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance	e 41
8C. Loan Fees and Costs.	41
8D. Affordability Criteria	41
8E. Limitations/Terms of Disadvantaged Community Assistance	42
8F. PWSs/Projects to Receive Assistance	43
8G. Effects on Long-Term Funding Level of DWSRF	43
9. Public Review and Participation	44
10. Funding Schedule	44
List of attachments	

- Attachment A Financial Status of DWSRF Funds
- Attachment B Definitions
- Attachment C Memorandum of Understanding with MMBB
- Attachment D Memorandum of Understanding with MRWA
- Attachment E Environmental Cross-Cutting Agencies
- Attachment F Primary Project List
- Attachment G Backup Project List
- Attachment H Emerging Contaminant Project List
- Attachment I Memorandum of Understanding with MWUA
- Attachment J Public Meeting Comments
- Attachment K Potential Very Small PWS Compliance Loan Applicants

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING 2025 INTENDED USE PLAN

1. Introduction

Total Authorization for National Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Base for 2025 was \$1,126,101,000, total funds available to states is \$1,090,579,000, with Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), (Supplemental and Emerging Contaminants) total 2025 available to states is \$4,344,348,000. These appropriations result in a Base FFY 2025 DWSRF Capitalization Grant (Base Grant) of \$10,913,000 (after Congressional Earmarks, Recissions, and Reallotments). In addition to the Base Capitalization Grant, the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) will add a DWSRF Supplemental Capitalization Grant of \$24,898,000 and DWSRF Emerging Contaminants Grant of \$7,857,000 (grant plus reallotments). These funds will be available to Maine Public Water Systems after the Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Drinking Water Program (DWP) has received these Grant awards from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). This Intended Use Plan (IUP) is one portion of the documentation necessary for the State to obtain these Grants. This IUP outlines how Maine proposes to utilize these 2025 Grants to fund capital improvement projects and non-project activities (set-asides) and outlines the terms of all financial assistance offered by the Program.

The State of Maine had opted not to request the LSL Replacement IIJA funds during the 2022 and 2024 funding cycles. The DWP applied for \$20,000,000 during the 2023 funding cycle. The DWP will again opt not to request LSL IIJA funds during the 2025 funding cycle due to lack of demand by Public Water Systems; DWP is currently reviewing its LSL project list to determine what projects are no longer proceeding in order to return unused LSL IIJA funds. Use of lead service lines was outlawed by the State of Maine in 1926 and as such need for replacement funds has been limited. Preliminary results of Maine's Lead Service Line Inventory indicate that of approximately 290,000 service lines in Maine, 81% were reported as Non-Lead, 18% were reported as Unknown, less than 1% were reported as Galvanized Requiring Replacement, and only 26 were reported as lead. The DWP reserves the right to request the 2025 LSL IIJA funds within the next year should demand necessitate.

Discussions in this Intended Use Plan will be divided into two categories as follows:

- 2025 Combined Base and Supplemental (IIJA), and
- 2025 Emerging Contaminants (EC) Capitalization Grant (IIJA).

When planning for the Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants funding, after allocating funds for set-aside activities, the DWP will combine the remaining Capitalization Grant funds with the State Match funds, loan interest and repayments, and carry-over funds to determine the funds available for capital projects. These funds will be used to provide financial assistance for needed capital improvements to Maine's DWSRF eligible public water systems (PWSs).

For the Emerging Contaminants (EC) Capitalization Grants, the set-aside activities are budgeted as described in this IUP and the remaining funds from the Capitalization Grant will be available for projects which are placed on the EC Primary Project Lists (PPL). The DWP will accept applications for EC funds on a rolling basis as capital projects are developed.

The Program reserves the right to seek blended bond proceeds issued by the Maine Municipal Bond Bank (MMBB) to combine with these project funds, thereby further increasing the total amount of available project funds.

In 2025, the Program intends to distribute the project funds to the DWSRF-eligible projects, listed in the attached PPL (Attachment F), which were ranked in accordance with the project priority ranking system included in this Intended Use Plan (IUP). The Primary Projects will receive Award Letters which will include detail on which of the grants will be used to fund the projects. The DWSRF will continue to be jointly administered by the Program as the lead agency, and the MMBB as the financial administrator. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), included as Attachment C, outlines the administrative activities to be performed by each Agency.

The Program agrees to comply with DWSRF Regulations, the general grant regulations at 40 CFR Part 200, and specific conditions of the capitalization grant.

2. Short-Term and Long-Term Goals of the DWSRF in the State of Maine

2A. Short-Term Goals - Base, Base Reallotment & Supplemental Funds

The following list are the short-term goals of the DWSRF Base & Supplemental (IIJA) funds.

- I. Provide the required 20% State Match within the required time frame for the Base DWSRF Capitalization Grant combined with the required 20% State Match for the Supplemental DWSRF Capitalization Grant.
- II. Provide loans to assist eligible Public Water Systems (PWSs) under enforcement actions to attain compliance by established deadlines with coordination between State DWSRF and enforcement programs and taking into consideration the needs of PWSs with multiple violations, including current compliance status and actions underway to address compliance.
- III. Provide loans to assist eligible PWSs to rehabilitate or replace aging infrastructure to attain or stay in compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA).
- IV. Provide loans to assist eligible PWSs to:
 - a. Provide required treatment to improve drinking water quality in Maine.
 - b. Construct water treatment facilities.
- V. Provide loans to assist small PWSs (population served of less than 10,000) in the construction or installation of necessary treatment while considering affordability.
- VI. Ensure that at least 15% of the monies available for funding projects provide financial assistance to small PWSs with projects that are ready for construction.
- VII. Provide loan subsidies to Disadvantaged Community PWSs for eligible projects.
- VIII. Provide financial assistance to implement preventive measures such as wellhead and source water protection and acquisition of properties to create protective buffers near drinking water supplies.
 - IX. Provide financial assistance to help PWSs increase technical, financial, and managerial capacity.

2B. Short- Term Goals – Emerging Contaminant Funds

The following list are the short-term goals for the Emerging Contaminants (IIJA) funds.

- I. Provide partial financial assistance loans which are 100% forgiven to address treatment of emerging contaminants above the proposed Federal MCL in Public Water System source of supply.
- II. Provide partial financial assistance through loans which are 100% forgiven to address emerging contaminants above the proposed Federal MCL in private wells by extending an existing PWS.
- III. Provide partial financial assistance through loans which are 100% forgiven to address emerging contaminants above the proposed Federal MCL through the consolidation of PWSs.
- IV. Provide partial financial assistance through loans which are 100% forgiven to address emerging contaminants above the proposed Federal MCL through planning, design and piloting activities.

V. Provide grant assistance for addressing emerging contaminants in small public water systems source of supply.

2C. Long-Term Goals.

The following are the seventeen long-term goals of the DWSRF in the State of Maine.

- I. Provide financial assistance to PWSs to maintain the public health objectives of the SDWA.
- II. Maintain the fiscal integrity of the fund.
- III. Maintain the fund in perpetuity.
- IV. Work toward meeting the State's total drinking water improvement funding needs by blending federal DWSRF Grant monies with MMBB bond sale proceeds, utilizing the blend of these proceeds to provide long term low interest financing to DWSRF-eligible PWSs.
- V. Create and maintain a land acquisition fund in perpetuity.
- VI. Ensure the long-term availability of adequate finances to assist eligible PWSs to:
 - a. Rehabilitate or replace contaminated sources or sources at risk of contamination.
 - b. Construct, rehabilitate or expand treatment facilities to improve drinking water quality.
 - c. Construct, rehabilitate or expand storage facilities to help maintain adequate drinking water supplies that are free from risk of contamination; and
 - d. Install or replace transmission or distribution facilities to prevent contamination.
- VII. Aid with consolidation or interconnection of PWSs to improve service or capacity.
- VIII. Assist PWSs in identifying and prioritizing land acquisition for source water protection.
- IX. Assist in the planning and design of related projects.
- X. Develop means for ensuring the long-term availability of adequate funding for loan subsidies for Disadvantaged Community PWSs.
- XI. Make Rapid Progress on Lead Service Line Replacement.
- XII. Address PFAS and Emerging Contaminants in Public Water Systems in Maine.
- XIII. Support Resilience and One Water Innovation.
- XIV. Support American workers and renew the water workforce through training.
- XV. Support the Cultivation of Domestic Manufacturing.
- XVI. Fully Enforce Civil Rights.
- XVII. Refine the Maine DWSRF to Build a Pipeline of Projects by supporting Capacity Development of Public Water Systems.

3. Financial Status

3A. Total amount of funds in DWSRF

In Table 3-1 below, the 2025 DWSRF Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants are combined and the allocations to each Set-Aside activity are summarized. Table 3-1A on the following pages provides a Financial Summary of the Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grants and Set-Aside fund allocations. Similar tables can be found in Attachment A.

Table 3-1
Summary of 2025 DWSRF Base & Supplemental Capitalization Grant and Set-Aside Activities

Item		Funds Allotted for 2024	Sub Accounts
2025 DWSRF Base Capitalization Grant & Reallotments	\$10,913,000		
2025 DWSRF Supplemental Capitalization Grant	\$24,898,000		
TOTAL	\$35,811,000		
Set-Asides			
Program Administration (up to 4%)	\$1,432,440	\$569,537	
1. DWP PORTION (up to 90%)		\$426,293	
2. MMBB PORTION (up to 10%)		\$143,244	
Technical Assistance to Small Systems (up to 2%)	\$716,220	\$250,000	
1. MRWA WQS		\$250,000	
2. DWP OUTREACH SPECIALIST (using carryover)		\$0	
Drinking Water Program (up to 10%)	\$3,581,100	\$1,941,627	
1. PWSS PROGRAM		\$1,941,627	
Other Non-Project Activities (up to 15%)	\$5,371,650	\$2,967,491	
1. LAND ACQUISITION		\$75,000	
Land Acquisition & Conservation Easements			\$75,000
2. CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE		\$1,231,796	
Capacity Development Staff Assistance			\$731,796
Capacity Development Grants			\$500,000
3. TRAINING ASSISTANCE		\$260,000	
Training Reimbursement Fund			\$160,000
MRWA/Financial Circuit Rider			\$80,000
MWUA/Leadership Training			\$20,000
4. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS		\$125,000	
MRWA/Emergency Preparedness Technical Assistance			\$45,000
MRWA/MeWARN Emergency Preparedness			\$15,000
MRWA/Emergency Response Trailer			\$25,000
MWUA/Resilience and Emergency Preparedness			\$40,000
5. SPECIAL PROJECTS		\$25,000	
MRWA/Benchmarking			\$5,000
MWUA/Workforce Development Program			\$10,000
MWUA/Public Outreach & Communication			\$10,000
6. WELLHEAD & SOURCE PROTECTION		\$1,250,695	
New Well Approval, Wellhead Protection and Source Water			\$800,695
Wellhead/Source Water Protection and Water System Asset	Security Grants		\$400,000
HETL/ Rapid Microbiology Testing Equipment			\$30,000
Public Education & Outreach Fund			\$20,000
Set Aside Totals		\$5,728,655	
Remaining DWSRF Cap Grants Funds Available for Projects		\$30,082,345	
State Match		\$7,162,200	
Other Project Funds (Int., Repayments & Carry Over Funds)		\$11,440,394	
TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PROJECTS		\$48,684,939	

Table 3-1A Summary of 2025 DWSRF Emerging Contaminant Capitalization Grant and Set-Aside Activities

Item	Total Funds Available From Grant	Funds Allotted for 2025	Sub Accounts
2025 DWSRF Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant	\$7,640,000		
Reallotments	\$217,000		
TOTAL	\$7,857,000		
Set-Asides			
Program Administration (up to 4%)	\$314,280	\$295,140	
1. DWP Portion (up to 50%)		\$138,000	
2. MMBB Portion (up to 50%)		\$157,140	
Technical Assistance to Small Systems (up to 2%)	\$157,140	\$69,000	
1. WQS/TREATMENT		\$69,000	
Drinking Water Program (up to 10%)	\$785,700	\$138,000	
1. PWSS Program		\$138,000	
Other Non-Project Activities (up to 15%)	\$1,178,550	\$120,000	
Assistance for Capacity Development		\$60,000	
PWS Capacity Development Training			\$30,000
Public Education & Outreach Fund			\$30,000
TRAINING ASSISTANCE		\$60,000	
Training Reimbursement Fund			\$30,000
Software/Data Management			\$30,000
Set Aside Totals	\$2,435,670	\$622,140	
Remaining DWSRF Available for Projects		\$7,234,860	

3B. State Match

For the DWSRF Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants, the State must provide documentation, at the time of the Grant Applications, that 20% of the total amount of that year's Base and Supplemental (IIJA) DWSRF Capitalization Grant is available as State Match. Attachment A shows the planned allocation of funds from the 2025 DWSRF Grants. The required State Match for 2025 is \$7,162,200 the first \$3,500,000 will be provided from the Maine State Treasury General Fund, and the remaining \$3,662,200 will be provided from the Maine State Treasury's Other Special Revenue Fund. The 2025 DWSRF State Match required will be secured by June 30, 2025. No State match is required for the Emerging Contaminants Grant.

3C. Beginning/end of year financial status

The initial financial status of the 2025 DWSRF Program is stated above in Tables 3-1, 3-1A, and Attachment A. The current financial status of the 2022 - 2024 funds is also shown in Attachment A. All other previous Grants have been fully expended.

3D. Capacity Development Strategy

America's Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) of 2018 (P.L. 115-270) section 2012 amended the Safe Water Drinking Act (SDWA) and requires that the states amend their state capacity development strategy to include a description of how the state will encourage the development of asset management plans that include best practices and include any training, technical assistance, and other activities to help implement asset management plans. In accordance with SDWA section 1420(c)(1)(C), a state must be developing and implementing a capacity development strategy in order to receive 100 percent of its allotment under section 1452 (Drinking Water State Revolving Fund). As of this date, the Maine Department of Human Services has a revised strategy that has met the SDWA requirements, approved

by EPA on January 10, 2022, and we recommend no withholding of the FY25 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund capitalization grants.

3E. Operator Certification Program

The 1996 Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) directed EPA to develop information on recommended operator certification requirements. In 1999, nine baseline standards were published under the Final Guidelines for the Certification and Recertification of Operators of Community and Nontransient Noncommunity Public Water Systems. Under the final guidelines, EPA will withhold 20 percent of a state's DWSRF capitalization grant if the state does not have an operator certification program that meets the requirements of final guidelines and its 2001 updates. The Drinking Water Program developed an Operator Certification Program authorized under Maine Revised Statutes Title 22, §2628 Rules, approved 2001 and updated in 2011. A Board composed of nine appointees from the governor is involved with ongoing review and revisions to the Certification Program. As of this date, the Maine Department of Human Services has met the SDWA requirements for Operator Certification and we recommend no withholding of the FY25 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund capitalization grants.

4. Non-Project Activities/Set-Asides (Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants)

4A. Definition/Description

Non-project or set-aside activities include those activities that are not directly associated with the construction of capital improvement projects but are allowed uses of Grant monies identified in Section 1452 of the SDWA. They include the following and are all described in greater detail in the following sections.

- Program Administration (4%),
- Technical Assistance to Small PWSs (2%),
- Drinking Water Program Functions (10%) and
- Other Non-Project activities (15%),

Set-asides may be taken from the Grants that are provided by the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act. Set-asides for the DWSRF Supplemental Grant will be blended with the set-asides taken from the Base Grant. For the Emerging Contaminant (EC) Grants, States have the flexibility to take set-asides from these appropriations. Set-asides must be used to either administer these specific capitalization grants or meet the statutory purpose of these funds: "to address emerging contaminants in drinking water with a focus on perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances."

4B. Rationale for Grant funds for non-project activities.

The Program is allowed up to 4% of the Base, Supplemental and Emerging Contaminant Grant amounts for the Administration of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. We have combined the Base & Supplemental funds and we discuss our set-asides for these funds below and the summary is presented on Table 3-1. The Emerging Contaminant Grant set-asides are shown on Tables 3-1A.

The funds allowed by the SDWA for the first non-project activity, Program Administration, are \$1,432,440 10% of this set-aside will be used by the MMBB (\$143,244) and 90% is available to the DWP. The Program Administration budget for the DWP is \$426,293. Any unspent funds allotted to these set-aside activities that remain at the end of the funding period will be carried forward for future use for these activities. Also, the balance between the available funds and the budget (\$862,903) will be applied to the Program's Banked Credits.

The maximum amount available to the second set-aside, non-project activity, Technical Assistance to Small PWSs is 2%, or \$716,220 The Technical Assistance to Small PWSs budget is \$250,000. The DWP intends to apply the balance between the available funds and budget (\$466,220) to the Banked Credit for this Set-Aside. The Technical Assistance funds will cover the cost of two Water Quality Specialist full-time equivalent (FTE) positions with the Maine Rural Water Association. The DWP Outreach Specialist will be paid using carryover funds from prior years. Any additional unspent funds allotted to these set-aside activities that remain at the end of the funding period will also be carried forward for future use for these activities.

The maximum amount available for the third non-project activity, Drinking Water Program Functions for PWS Supervision, is 10%, or \$3,581,100. The Program determined the amount of funds necessary to cover the budgeted expenses for each of the Program activities for the upcoming year is \$1,941,627. The program will add the balance between the available funds and budget (\$1,639,473) to the Banked Credit for this set-aside.

The maximum amount available for the fourth non-project activity, Other State Set-Aside, is 15%, or \$5,371,650. The Program determined the amount of funds necessary to cover the budgeted expenses for each of the activities for the upcoming year is \$2,967,491.

If at any time an excess accumulation of funds develops in any one set-aside activity mentioned above, the Program can decide to transfer these funds to the Project account.

4C. Description of non-project activities

I. Program Administration (4% Set-Aside)

As discussed above, the Program will use \$569,537 for the first non-project activity, Program Administration. The administration of the DWSRF has a budget of \$426,293 for one-half of the DWSRF Manager, two full-time equivalents (FTE) Project Managers/Inspectors, and one-half FTE position filled by the Senior DWSRF Engineer. These funds will also be used to procure all equipment and training necessary for performance of the duties for those positions. The Program will add remaining funds (\$862,903) to the Banked Credit account for this set-aside.

The MMBB will receive 10% of the available \$1,432,440 Grant portion of the allotment, or \$143,244 for financial administration of the DWSRF. These funds will be used to pay a portion of the salary and expenses of the DWSRF program officers, the DWSRF program assistant and all other expenses directly related to the financial administration of the Program.

II. Technical Assistance for Small PWSs (2% Set-Aside)

The Program will use \$250,000 of the allowable allotment of \$716,220 and will add remaining funds (\$466,220) to the Banked Credit funds.

This set-aside will be allotted to the Maine Rural Water Association (MRWA) to fund two Water Quality Specialist positions. The Water Quality Specialists will provide technical assistance to small PWSs that serve a population of less than 10,000. MRWA will produce and submit to the Program a Work Plan describing in detail the DWSRF funded assistance they intend to provide using 2025 DWSRF Technical Assistance set-aside funds. The Program and EPA Region 1 will review and approve the plan. Monthly meetings/work evaluations will be conducted by the Program to ensure that MRWA technical assistance activities are consistent with its Work Plan and current needs of Maine's small PWSs. An outline of the scope of duties to be performed by MRWA and the Program under this set-aside can be found in the Memorandum of Understanding provided as Attachment D.

The Program also funds one FTE position to perform grant outreach to small and underserved Public Water Systems with a budget of \$137,000; in 2025 this will be funded through carry-over.

III. Drinking Water Program Functions (10% Set-Aside)

The Program will use \$1,941,627 of the allowable allotment of \$3,581,100 and will add remaining funds (\$1,639,473) to Banked Credit.

1. Administration of PWSS Program (\$1,941,627)

This set-aside provides funding to help augment the PWSS Grant for administration of the SDWA amendments. Employees who perform job duties that ensure the Program meets its primacy requirements and any Program needs that address program deficiencies will be funded from this set-aside. A separate Work Plan will be developed outside of this document that will describe the personnel and activity expenses to be funded with these set-aside funds. This Plan will be provided as part of the 2025 Grant application and reviewed and approved by EPA Region I before funds are available for withdrawal.

IV. Other Non-Project Activities (15% Set-Aside)

The Program will use \$2,967,491 of the allowable allotment of \$5,371,650 from DWSRF 2025 Other Non-Project Activities set-aside.

1. Land Acquisition & Conservation Easements/ Source Protection Measures (\$75,000)

PWSs' ownership or legal control of the land around its source(s) is the most effective means of protecting the source(s) from contamination. For this reason, the Program intends to provide enough funds in this set-aside to meet the expected requests until the next Grant award. As of December 31, 2024, the Program had \$2,240,272 available from prior year loan repayments grants. An additional sum of \$193,201 of repayments is scheduled before December 31, 2025 for a total of \$2,508,473 of available funds inclusive of the \$75,000 deposited this year.

Under this program, community, and non-profit non-community public water systems (PWS) may apply for low-interest loans with 50% principal forgiveness of up to \$20,000 maximum for the purchase of land and/or conservation easement for drinking water source protection. Projects that demonstrate a commitment to the ongoing protection of a system's drinking water source through land acquisition and/or easement are eligible for these loans. Loans may be issued for an amount greater than \$40,000. However, principal forgiveness will not be applied to the portion of the loan exceeding \$40,000. Furthermore, principal forgiveness and low-interest loan rates will only be applied to the portion of the purchase price that represents the percentage of the purchased land located within the defined wellhead protection area (for wells) or contributing watershed (for surface water bodies).

The types of PWSs eligible are Community and non-profit non-community water systems are eligible to apply for a land acquisition loan. The system must demonstrate technical, managerial, and financial capability. The land and/or conservation easement must be located within the watershed or wellhead protection area.

There is no deadline for land acquisition loans. Applications are accepted on a rolling basis and are subject to available funding.

All funds allotted to this set-aside will be used to provide loans to eligible PWSs for the purchase of land and/or conservation easements necessary for source water protection. In addition to the purchase

of land and easements, funds will be made available for land stewardship activities which promote the protection of the source water quality.

Loans are also available to assist community water PWSs in the implementation of voluntary, incentive-based source water protection measures in areas delineated under the source water assessment program. PWSs must have performed the required delineation and assessment of their source(s) before communities can utilize these funds. These funds are available only to community water PWSs.

Principal and interest payments on loans made from this account will be repaid into this account making additional loan money available for future land and conservation easement purchases. The terms of financial assistance for Land Acquisition/Conservation Easements are described in Sections 7 & 8.

The land or conservation easement to be purchased with DWSRF assistance must be integral to the source water protection needs of the PWS as determined by the Program. A determination can be based on the land being identified in a Program approved source water protection plan or other documentation that supports its role in protecting the PWS's source water. The land purchased must be acquired from a willing seller. Also, before DWSRF assistance for land acquisitions is allowed, an independent appraisal or an approved method of valuation of the land value must be provided to the Program. The MMBB determines the amount of financial assistance provided to PWSs for land purchases on a case-by-case basis after consideration of the following items for each request; the valuation of the land, the anticipated amount of legal and other costs associated with the transaction, the credit quality of the applicant, the availability of land acquisition funds in relation to the current demand, and other financial and market information deemed relevant to the request.

2. Assistance for Capacity Development (\$1,231,796)

a. Capacity Development Staff Assistance (\$731,796)

The total cost of this Program in 2025 is \$731,796 to fund 5.0 FTEs to provide on-site capacity development assistance and training. The Program plans to use these funds to continue implementing the State Capacity Development Strategy for new and existing PWSs during this DWSRF funding period. This Strategy is designed to help PWSs, especially small PWSs, obtain adequate technical, financial, and managerial capacity to meet existing and future SDWA regulations. The Program's Capacity Development Coordinator will oversee the components of this set-aside.

b. Capacity Development Grants (\$500,000)

As a part of this set-aside, the Program will use \$500,000 to fund Capacity Development Grants. Grants less than \$30,000, but no more than 75 percent of the actual cost, will be made available to eligible PWSs for the solicitation of professional services for the completion of documents that could assist the PWS in becoming more viable. Documents to be considered for these funds are:

- Comprehensive System Facility Plan,
- Capital Improvement Plan,
- System Infrastructure Assessment (as defined by the PUC),
- System Hydraulic Model Report,
- Leak Detection/Water Audit,
- Management Review Report,

- System Vulnerability Assessment,
- Emergency Response Plan,
- Risk and Resiliency Assessments,
- Comprehensive System Operations and Maintenance Manual,
- Energy Audit,
- Water Rate Study,
- Corrosion Control Treatment Plans
- Preliminary Engineering Report,
- Asset Management Plan, or
- Any other professionally created document that the Program determines can improve PWS viability.

Grant Assistance will not be provided if a similar report or study has been completed in the last five years or if the PWS requesting Grant Assistance has an open Capacity Development Grant from previous grant cycles. Grant assistance will be provided only after the Program has reviewed and approved the document. Any one PWS may only have one active grant at a time. Professional Engineering services are required to be selected through a competitive procurement process unless a justification for sole-sourcing is provided by the PWS and approved by DWP.

Limited population Community PWSs, which serve a population of approximately 200 or less, may apply for grants up to \$9,000, but no more than 90 percent of the actual cost for capacity development activities as described above.

3. Training Assistance (\$260,000)

- a. <u>Training Reimbursement Fund (\$160,000)</u>. The Program will allocate \$160,000 for PWS capacity training. This training will encompass technical, managerial, and financial capacity strategies and target operators, managers, and owner representatives of all sizes of PWSs. The Training Reimbursement Fund will reimburse training providers at a rate of \$20 per person per credit hour. The following represents a preliminary list of how the funding will be spent:
 - Continuing education training subsidy, also known as the training reimbursement fund. This subsidy allows the use of a flat fee structure to assist training providers with facilitating training under the direction of regulatory agencies.
 - Trustee Training subsidized outreach to PWSs across the state for topics to assist trustees in managing PWSs. This training will enhance trustees' knowledge of water system infrastructure and public health protection.
 - Emergency Preparedness and Security subsidized training and continued updating of PWS emergency response plans.
 - The EPA Check Up Program for Small Systems (CUPSS) and asset management training. Continued introductory courses and user update courses.
 - Managerial Training for future PWS managers to the Maine Joint Environmental Training Coordinating Committee, JETCC, to assist in a program for water and wastewater operators to develop managerial skills needed in the future. This is a 12-month program in which professional mentors develop the curriculum. Candidates are nominated by their PWSs and

- selected through a prescribed review process. The goal is to produce graduates that understand regulations, and financial and managerial concepts which are essential to utility management.
- b. <u>Financial Circuit Rider: (\$80,000).</u> The Financial Circuit Rider Program has been performed by Maine Rural Water Association for the past 7 years. Maintaining this technical training and assistance will continue to build capacity in small and disadvantaged public water systems. A description of the program follows.
 - Increasing the financial capacity is critical to developing the overall viability of PWSs. The Financial Circuit Rider (FCR) is a technical assistance program to target financial capacity building for community PWSs serving a population of less than 10,000. The FCR will provide technical assistance and training to build financial capacity in community PWSs. The FCR will accomplish this through personalized one-to-one, on-site training, remote assistance via phone or internet, and response to training requests for regional utility meetings. The FCR will make preemptive visits, respond to PWS requests for assistance or respond to state agency compliance directives. Areas of work will include, but not be limited to:
 - Compliance: SDWA Regulations, PUC Regulations, GAAP, Operating Reports, Record Retention Schedules.
 - Governance: Right to Know, FOAA, By-Laws, Charters, Business Plans, Restructuring.
 - Accounting: Bookkeeping, Rate Setting, Terms & Conditions, Budgeting for Operations & Capital Improvement, Audit Preparation, Interpreting Audit Results, Cash Management, Internal Controls.
 - Asset Management: Identification of Assets, Valuation, Depreciation Schedules, And Asset Management Programs/Worksheets.
 - Human Resource: Personnel Policies, Employee Handbooks, Workers' Comp Issues, Retirement, Taxation.
 - Funding Assistance: RD & SRF Program Education and Application Assistance.
 - Operations: Water Audit/Water Loss Tracking, Customer Complaints, Customer Service, Liens, Disconnections, Cross Connection Programs.
- c. <u>PWS Leadership Training Classes (\$20,000)</u>. The Maine Water Utilities Association (MWUA) Education Committee has developed a Training for PWS Superintendents and Governess Boards. The management training program involves five full days, or one day a week, of training over a five-week period. The training focuses on better understanding financial, budgetary, regulatory, legislative, human resources, and other subject matters depending on the results of a survey the organization will be issuing to Community PWS managers. The DWSRF set aside for Capacity Development will fund \$20,000 towards this training along with maintaining the scholarship tuition program to help reach small and disadvantaged public water systems.
- 4. Emergency Preparedness (\$125,000)
 - a. Maine Rural Water Association (MRWA) Emergency Preparedness Technical Assistance (\$45,000). MRWA will utilize this set-aside to fulfill emergency preparedness, crisis leadership and response services detailed below. Allocated funds will be used to provide individualized work products / service to utilities, thus allowing needed flexibility in the delivery of the service. Available technical assistance would include:
 - Tabletop Exercises (TTX): The proposed tabletop exercises (TTX) aim to enhance Maine's water systems' ability to prepare for, manage, and respond to drinking water emergencies,

focusing on communication, operations, and redundancy. The exercises will involve water utilities, local first responders, and various stakeholders, emphasizing the impact of lost water and fire protection services during disasters. MRWA will organize and facilitate the TTX, developing resources and scenarios, followed by an After-Action Review and Improvement Plan. The project supports the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and the America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018.

- Business Continuity Planning (BCP): The Business Continuity Planning (BCP) project focuses on ensuring that organizations can maintain operations during disruptive incidents by developing plans and procedures to support financial, managerial, and functional continuity. MRWA will work with water systems to facilitate roundtable exercises that simulate BCP activation, implementation, deactivation, and reconstitution, addressing vulnerabilities like access to critical systems, staff, and data. The goal is to improve preparedness for disruptions, from staff separation to system failures. Deliverables include identifying participants, developing assessment checklists, coordinating meetings, creating a Situation Manual, and providing After Action Reports with Standard Operating Procedures.
- Risk Resiliency Assessments (RRA) and Emergency Response Plans (ERP): The America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018 requires Community Water Systems (CWS) with populations over 3,301 to complete a Risk and Resilience Assessment (RRA) to address threats from hazards and malevolent acts. The MRWA will offer assistance to small CWS (under 10,000 population), including helping with initial RRAs, recertifications, and Emergency Response Plans. Eligible participants must be current Maine WARN members, with preference given to disadvantaged communities. The project includes on-site technical assistance, identifying hazards, assessing infrastructure resilience, and helping update Emergency Response Plans.
- b. WARN Mutual Aid for Public Water Systems and their Partners (\$15,000). The Maine Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (MEWARN) for mutual aid continues to grow and build capacity and resilience for Maine's public drinking water systems. Proper administrative support for the network is crucial. Maine Rural Water Association will continue to provide support for the MEWARN. Support tasks include, but are not limited to:
 - 24/7 availability for emergency response and/or coordination,
 - Organization of two Steering Committee meetings annually,
 - Administration of mutual aid contracts,
 - Regular and continued maintenance of emergency contact database,
 - Recruitment of new members,
 - Test the HAN twice annually and
 - Attend (Virtually) National WARN Chairs meetings.

The MEWARN will continue their efforts to initiate the creation of a Statewide Drought/Emergency Response Network comprised of entities/individuals affiliated with bulk water delivery.

c. <u>Emergency Response Trailer (\$25,000)</u>. In 2023, the Maine Rural Water Association (MRWA) developed an emergency response and training trailer to provide critical resources and hands-on training for Maine's water and wastewater utilities. With funding from the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (DEP), a second trailer is now being built to further support emergency

response and training operations. Since its unveiling in December 2023, the trailer has been deployed to respond to multiple emergencies, including severe weather events and flooding, and continues to assist utilities with vital equipment and personnel. MRWA aims to expand training opportunities and enhance emergency preparedness for Maine's utilities, especially as extreme weather events and staffing shortages increase demand. DWP will contribute funding to stock this new trailer with equipment, such as tools, pumps, portable generator, and communication resources, to ready it for emergency response and training operations. Equipment will be procured following competitive procedures (See Section 5G).

d. Resilience and Emergency Preparedness (\$40,000). This program coordinated through Maine Water Utilities Association (MWUA) aims to enhance the resilience of water systems in Maine against extreme weather events and emergencies. It focuses on training operators through regional tabletop exercises to handle disasters like contamination, natural hazards, and cyberattacks. Key initiatives include developing disaster-specific management plans, promoting infrastructure upgrades, and leveraging federal resources. The program will strengthen emergency response, coordination, and mutual aid among utilities, helping them adapt to weather challenges like flooding, drought, and extreme weather.

5. Special Projects (\$25,000)

a. Benchmarking IV (\$5,000). Maine Rural Water Association will continue their work on the Measures Implementation. As a result of DWSRF's substantial investment in Measures, financial and operational data from seventy-five of Maine's utilities has been captured and verified for accuracy; this represents 93% of the estimated population served by PUC regulated public water systems. The metrics found in Measures provide management with the ability to assess the financial health and operational parameters to provide insight when comparing utilities. Additionally, said metrics allow access to crucial information needed for long range planning and can be used to determine if the utility is making forward progress over a stated time. This initiative also provides regulators with a data set that allows access to regulated public water systems data that can be used to prioritize long term public drinking water infrastructure needs and opportunities for targeted capacity assistance.

Project Deliverables:

- Maintaining the current data with a cap to the number of utilities in the data set at the current seventy-five.
- Focus sustainability and functionality of the current data set.
- Continued training efforts for users in value and use of the data system by utilities.
- Future data addition is not anticipated until July 2026 when the data from the FY 2025 PUC Annual Reports becomes available.
- Continued web hosting of the Measures database.
- b. Workforce Development Program (\$10,000) This new MWUA program aims to address Maine's looming water workforce shortage by cultivating the next generation of water professionals. The initiative partners with technical schools, universities, and professional organizations to create internships, apprenticeships, and career outreach programs. A "road show" will visit schools and colleges to highlight the benefits of working in the water industry, including competitive salaries and job security. This effort supports the long-term goal of replenishing the skilled water workforce and ensuring a reliable future for Maine's water systems.

c. <u>Public Outreach and Communications (\$10,000)</u>. This new MWUA training program focuses on helping operators and managers effectively communicate with the public about water quality and projects. It includes strategies for engaging the community, simplifying technical information, and addressing concerns about contaminants like PFAS. The training features role-playing exercises, workshops, and the expanded use of the Media & Public Relations Guide. Additionally, the program will collaborate with a public relations firm to provide media training, particularly for smaller utilities

6. Wellhead & Source Protection Programs (\$1,250,695)

- a. New Well Approval & Wellhead Protection Program Staff Expenses (\$800,695). The Program will use this set-aside to fund five staff including a hydrogeologist who, among other technical assistance and field inspection duties, works with PWSs to navigate the new well approval process. Properly locating a well is fundamental to continued source water protection, and this position will work on-site with PWSs, well drillers, engineers, and geologists to minimize conflicts with potential contaminant sources. Additional staff in this set-aside provide outreach to PWSs, municipalities, and other state agencies to reduce the risk of contamination of public water sources. Staff funded under this set-aside also assist in management of subsurface wastewater rules, one of the key parts of Maine's wellhead protection strategy, and in regulating well drillers so that wells are installed using appropriate tools and techniques to protect water quality.
- b. Source Protection & Water System Asset Security Grants (\$400,000). The total cost of the grant programs in 2025 is \$400,000. Eligible PWS include community systems and non-profit non-community systems. Grants are available in an amount up to \$10,000 per PWS; larger grants in an amount up to \$20,000 per PWS may be approved at the discretion of the DWP where larger need is clearly demonstrated.
 - The Source Protection Grant replaces the former Wellhead Protection Grant Program and Source Water Protection Grant Program into a single program and application. This combined program grants funding for the planning and/or implementation of source water protection activities for both ground water and surface water sources. Eligible activities include but are not limited to developing useful base maps, drafting an aquifer protection ordinance, purchasing and installing signage to demarcate source protection areas, development or updating of watershed management plans, buffer establishment and upkeep, road and storm water management and reconstruction activities, mitigation of potential sources of contamination, and developing public outreach and educational programs and materials.

The Water System Asset Security Grant funds projects focused on the planning and implementation of security measures to promote physical security and/or protection against cyberattacks. Eligible activities for the security measures include but are not limited to purchase and installation of fencing, signs, cameras, and alarm systems, as well as software upgrades and cybersecurity projects or assessments.

Applications will be accepted on a rolling basis throughout FY2025. Awards will be made on a first come, first served basis while funding is available. In the chance that demand exceeds funding availability, projects will be ranked using the priority scoring system shown in Section 6I. II. b-d.

c. <u>Rapid Microbiology Testing Equipment (\$30,000)</u>. The Program will use funds from this set-aside to procure an automated microbiology detection system for the Maine Health and Environmental Testing Laboratory (HETL). This device allows for rapid analysis of water samples for bacterial

contamination and will allow water emergencies to be declared sooner and drinking water orders issued more quickly to help protect public health. The selected device will be approved by U.S. EPA for microbiological regulatory compliance testing required under the national primary drinking water regulations that are part of the Safe Drinking Water Act, including Total Coliform Rule, the Revised Total Coliform Rule, and the Groundwater Rule. Purchase of the device will meet the procurement requirements detailed in this IUP (see Section 5G).

d. <u>Public Education/Outreach (\$20,000)</u>. The Program will use funds from this set-aside to develop contracted agreements with environmental and educational organizations to raise awareness of the importance of local water resources. This fund also pays for Printing and Mailing signs, reports, and informatics. As a part of drinking water outreach, the Program supports programs around the State to increase awareness of drinking water issues.

4D. Non-Project Activities/Set-Asides (Emerging Contaminant Capitalization Grant)

We discuss our set-asides for this Capitalization Grant below and the summary is presented on Table 3-1A. The Program is allowed up to 4% of the Emerging Contaminant Grant amount for the Administration of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The funds allowed by the SDWA for the first non-project activity, Program Administration, are \$314,280. Pursuant to the MMBB-DWP Memorandum of Understanding, the MMBB and DWP have mutually agreed that 50% of this set-aside will be used by the MMBB (\$157,140). The total Program Administration budget is \$295,140. Any unspent funds allotted to these set-aside activities that remain at the end of the funding period will be carried forward for future use for these activities. Also, the balance between the available funds and the budget (\$19,140) will be applied to the Program's Banked Credits.

The maximum amount available to the second set-aside, non-project activity, Technical Assistance to Small PWSs is 2%, or \$157,140. The Technical Assistance to Small PWSs budget is \$69,000, leaving \$88,140 available as Banked Credit for this Set-Aside. The Technical Assistance funds will cover the cost of one-half of one Water Quality Specialist full time equivalent (FTE) position with the Maine Drinking Water Program. Any unspent funds allotted to these set-aside activities that remain at the end of the funding period will be carried forward for future use for these activities.

The maximum amount available for the third non-project activity, Drinking Water Program Functions for PWS Supervision, is 10%, or \$785,700. The Program determined the amount of funds necessary to cover the budgeted expenses for each of the Program activities for the upcoming year is \$138,000. The Program will fund one FTE with this set-aside. The program will add \$647,700 to the Banked Credit.

The maximum amount available for the fourth non-project activity, Other State Set-Aside, is 15%, or \$1,178,550. The Program determined the amount of funds necessary to cover the budgeted expenses for each of the activities for the upcoming year is \$120,000. The Intended Use Plan for the Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant includes a \$30,000 budget for training development, a \$30,000 budget for Public Education and Outreach, a \$30,000 budget for Training Reimbursements and \$30,000 for purchase of software and hardware.

If at any time an excess accumulation of funds develops in any one set-aside activity mentioned above, the Program can decide to transfer these funds amongst to the Project account. With notification to EPA, the Program reserves the right to transfer funds between subaccounts of the 15% non-project set-aside account if deemed necessary.

4E. Separate non-project activity accounting.

The funds allocated for each non-project activity will be separated into individual accounts at EPA Region I. The release of monies from these accounts will be performed on a cash draw basis with the requisition for funds being based on actual expense records submitted to EPA. Program staff will review and approve all requisitions and submit them to the MMBB to initiate the release of funds. The MMBB will also maintain separate accounting for each of the non-project activities.

4F. Transfer of unspent funds to the DWSRF.

The allocated funds for each of the first three non-project activities, Program Administration (I), Technical Assistance (II) and Program Functions (III), can be banked (any unspent funds can be drawn against future grant awards) and used for the same activities in later years. Funds for the fourth activity mentioned above, Other Non-Project Activities (IV), cannot be banked. The Program must demonstrate in set-aside workplans to EPA how the funds allotted to each set-aside activity in each year's Grant are to be used within a specific period. Other Non-Project Activity (IV) funds can be utilized by any one of the four activities mentioned in Section 4C. IV (1-6) above, with no more than 10% of the Grant going to any one activity.

5. Project Funds

5A. Funds available (Base & Supplemental Capitalization Grants)

After allocating funds for set-aside activities, the Program will combine the remaining Grant funds with the State Match, loan interest and repayments and carry-over funds to determine the total available project funds. The total funds available for financial assistance as loans to Standard Projects and Disadvantaged Community PWS projects for the 2025 DWSRF Grant period is:

- \$48,684,939 for Projects funded by the combined Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grants (B & S), and
- \$7,234,860 for Projects funded by the Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant (EC).

The 2025 DWSRF Base Grant includes a requirement that a minimum of 12-percent of the 2025 Base Capitalization Grant is available for Disadvantaged Community PWSs as principal forgiveness assistance on awarded DWSRF loans. Maine DWSRF has targeted an additional 18% of the Base Capitalization Grant to be offered as Principal Forgiveness for any project. The Supplemental Capitalization Grant requires exactly 49% of the grant be available for Disadvantaged Community PWSs as principal forgiveness assistance on awarded DWSRF loans.

Assistance subsidies in the form of principal forgiveness available to eligible Disadvantaged Communities will be at levels of 25, 35, 55, 70 and 80 percent based on community Median Household Income and Residential Water User Rates as detailed in Section 8E. The 2025 DWSRF Supplemental Grant Appropriation requires 49-percent of the 2025 Supplemental Capitalization Grant is available for eligible recipients, including Disadvantaged Community PWSs, as principal forgiveness assistance on awarded DWSRF loans.

In special cases, where the PWS does not have the customer base, the DWSRF Program may determine the maximum loan the PWS may affordably pay back and apply the Principal Forgiveness appropriately.

The 2025 DWSRF Base and Supplemental Capitalization Grant Primary List includes 24 projects, with 23 projects meeting the Disadvantaged Community criteria with a total funding amount of \$47,054,000 (see Attachment F). The 2025 DWSRF Backup List includes 10 projects (see Attachment G).

The Priority Project Lists may be amended or updated to consider new or updated information from PWSs.

The Program has removed the maximum loan limit for any PWS of \$5 million dollars for any given year. Multi-year projects may be funded over consecutive years if it is mutually agreed upon by the Program and the applicant. The project will not be subject to the consecutive year(s) ranking and receive funding on the Primary List. In some cases, depending on project schedules and short-term financing, the Program may choose to refinance approved projects in subsequent years.

I. <u>Manufactured Housing Communities</u>

Recognizing the diverse landscape of water infrastructure challenges faced by communities across our State, the Maine Drinking Water Program is committed to continually enhancing the effectiveness of the DWSRF program. In alignment with this commitment, a targeted funding priority aimed at addressing critical drinking water infrastructure needs within manufactured housing communities (MHC) was established in 2024.

Manufactured housing communities play a significant role in providing affordable housing options to over ten percent (10%) of Maine's population. However, these communities often face unique challenges related to their water infrastructure. Aging systems, limited resources, and the vulnerability of residents in such communities necessitate a focused approach to ensuring safe and reliable drinking water.

Historically, the project selection process has prioritized construction-ready projects, a criterion which has demonstrated to favor municipalities with greater financial and technical resources, and inadvertently placed MHCs at a disadvantage. The inherent disparities have resulted in consistently lower project priority rankings for MHCs, hindering their ability to compete for the DWSRF discounted funding.

Recognizing this imbalance and to contribute to the overall improvement of water quality and access, additional priority points will be designated for applications received for drinking water infrastructure improvements at public water systems designated as MHCs (See Section 6I: Project Priority Ranking System). This strategic allocation aims to kickstart targeted projects that directly benefit these communities, ensuring that resources are available to meet their unique needs.

Funding will be awarded at the highest tier of Principal Forgiveness for the project year. In order to participate, the MHC must be eligible to finance the remaining unforgiven portion of the loan through the SRF program. If an MHC recipient is for any reason unable to obtain financing from MMBB for their share of project costs, the MMBB will require a deposit of available funds into the SRF program that equals the MHC's share (ie, prepay the MHC unforgiven portion of the loan). The deposit of funds by the MHC must be available and accessible to MMBB no later than the construction contract execution date. Failure to meet these terms will result in forfeiture of SRF funding. Initial project costs will be drawn from the MHC share until depletion at which point funding will begin being drawn from the SRF allocation. In the event that the project comes in underbudget, a proportional refund will be provided for any initial MHC overpayment.

5B. Project Funds Available (Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant)

In addition to the Base and Supplemental Grant funds, the DWSRF has an Emerging Contaminant Capitalization Grant. Maine intends to take \$622,140 in set-asides leaving \$7,234,860 in project funds which is required to be 100% principal forgiveness (PF) with at least 25% being awarded to PWS which serve Disadvantaged Communities or serve populations of 25,000 or less.

Maine's eligible public water systems were invited to apply for funding during the FY2025 open application period, from August 30 to October 4, 2024. A total of seven applications for Emerging Contaminant (EC) project funds were submitted, three of which qualified for funding under the Small Disadvantaged Community Emerging Contaminant Grant. These three were removed from the pool of IIJA-EC candidates. Since the remaining IIJA-EC applications did not exceed the available funding, they were not scored or ranked. Applicants were allocated funding as outlined in Section 5B: Project Funds Available (Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant). A secondary application period was then opened from February 4 to 24, 2025, with an email sent to a targeted list of community public water systems (PWS) whose PFAS levels exceeded 4 ppt but had not yet applied for funding. No additional applications were received, so remaining funds were split between the original 2025 IIJA-EC applicants.

The Priority Project Lists may be amended or updated to consider new or updated information from PWSs.

Should project funding requests exceed available funds, EC Projects will be ranked in the same manner as all construction projects. Community Public Water Systems and Non-Transient, Non-Community Public Water Systems with water being sent to the distribution system containing PFAS above the Federal Proposed Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) of greater than 4PPT for PFOS & PFOA are eligible for funding as follows:

I. Small PWS EC Grants

These "grants" are for PWSs serving a population of approximately 100 or less or needing a filtration capacity of approximately 10gpm or less and will be awarded in the form of fully forgiven loans. Funding can be used for installation of treatment for PFAS and any necessary preor post-treatments. Funding can be used for building modifications to accommodate treatment or to cover the costs of the installation of a small auxiliary building if treatment will not fit within existing facility's footprint. Funding can also be used for system consolidation with a neighboring PWS that does not have PFAS levels exceeding Federal Proposed MCL or for development of a new water source. Applicants will qualify for up to \$60,000 EC Funds, inclusive of a \$10,000 allotment for professional services in the form of a 100% principal forgiveness loan. Additional funding beyond \$60,000 may be awarded on a case-by-case basis determined by site specific needs. These grants may be applied for and awarded on a rolling basis if the funds are available.

II. Large PWS EC Treatment Grants

These "grants" are intended for larger PWSs and those with more complex treatment needs and will be awarded in the form of fully forgiven loans. Funding can be used for installation of treatment for PFAS, any necessary pre- or post-treatments and any associated engineering expenses. Funding can be used for building modifications to accommodate treatment or to cover the costs of the construction of an auxiliary building if treatment will not fit within existing facility's footprint. Projects with total funding requests less than \$250,000 will be awarded with no matching criteria and at 100% PF. For any project which the grant awarded exceeds \$249,999

this grant will cover 90% of eligible project expenses up to a limit of \$4,000,000* per project per funding cycle. The PWS may apply for base and supplemental loan funds with principal forgiveness for disadvantaged communities for the remaining 10% or utilize alternative funding of their preference.

For PWSs with multiple wells with independent entry points to distribution that have PFAS above the Federal proposed MCL that will require separate treatment systems, multiple grants may be awarded with a limit of \$4,000,000* per impacted distribution entry point (i.e. pump station) with the same matching criteria. These grants may be applied for and awarded on a rolling basis if the funds are available.

For singular projects which exceed \$4,000,000* in cost, additional grant funds may be sought in future IUP years during the open application period. Future applications will be ranked and granted based on demand at that time; additional funding is not guaranteed.

*If there are a surplus of funds available in any project year, funding beyond \$4,000,000 may be awarded at the DWP's discretion.

III. PWS Consolidation EC Grants

These "grants" are for the consolidation of a Community or NTNC PWS with a PWS that is below the Federal proposed MCL for PFAS or is actively investigating or implementing treatment options if currently exceeding the proposed MCL. Funding will be awarded in the form of fully forgiven loans. The first \$249,999 (100% PF) will be awarded with no matching criteria. For any project which equals or exceeds \$250,000 this grant will cover 50% of remaining eligible project expenses up to a limit of \$2,000,000 (100% PF). When projects equal or exceed \$250,000, PWS is responsible for 50% share of remaining balance, DWSRF loan funds will not be available. These grants may be applied for and awarded on a rolling basis if the funds are available. Lifetime limit of \$2,000,000 of grant per consolidation effort.

IV. Private Well Extension EC Grants

These "grants" are intended to address privately owned wells with PFAS levels greater than the proposed Federal MCL by extension of water mains from Municipal PWSs that are below the Federal proposed MCL for PFAS or are actively investigating or implementing treatment options if currently exceeding the proposed MCL. Funding will be awarded in the form of fully forgiven loans. Funding will be awarded at a rate of \$100,000 per residential unit or place of business connection up to a limit of \$2,000,000 per extension. Funding must be applied for by the Municipal PWS who is extending their distribution main. These grants may be applied for and awarded on a rolling basis if the funds are available. Lifetime limit of \$2,000,000 of grant per private well extension effort.

V. Emerging Contaminant Design Assistance Grants

These grants are intended to assist a Community or NTNC PWS to study and assess solutions to PFAS contamination issues. Eligible expenses may include pilot studies to evaluate treatment techniques, engineering expenses for the design of treatment facilities, hydrogeological studies for the investigation of replacement water source(s), and preliminary engineering reports and cost assessments for system consolidation and water main extensions. A limit of \$30,000 in grant funds is in place for small PWS serving a population of approximately 100 or less or needing a filtration capacity of approximately 10gpm or less. A limit of \$200,000 in grant funds is in place for larger

PWSs and those with more complex treatment needs. Individual grant awards may exceed these established limits on a case-by-case basis at the discretion of the DWP.

Funding is also available to assist small PWS with administrative tasks associated with utilizing the Small Public Water System EC Grant via a pre-approved partnership with MWUA. A limit of \$10,000 per grant is in place for this effort to assist PWSs that require extra assistance in navigating federal funding requirements and are struggling to secure independent professional services to aid in this effort.

5C. Projects to be funded

Attachments F, G and H provide lists of projects the Program intends to finance from the total project funds available from the 2025 DWSRF Grant period awards. Projects are listed in priority point score order. Priority point scores are determined using the point system shown in Section 6I. Attachment F is the PPL of Standard and Disadvantaged Community PWS projects. Attachment G is the Backup Project List. The Backup Project List contains the projects that may receive assistance if projects on the PPL do not proceed as planned or are by-passed. Each project can be described using one of the general types of projects listed below:

- 1) Replacement of contaminated source with new potable source.
- 2) Construction of treatment facilities.
- 3) Installation of disinfection facilities.
- 4) Projects addressing compliance/enforcement issues.
- 5) PWS consolidation to address viability issues.
- 6) Projects required to remove a PWS's status as a SDWA significant non-complier.
- 7) Replacement of aging infrastructure.
- 8) Upgrade or rehabilitation of existing water facilities.
- 9) Installation of meters and backflow prevention devices.
- 10) Acquisition of land integral to a DWSRF eligible project.
- 11) Extension of a PWS to address PFAS Contamination in Private Wells.

The projects that are ultimately financed by the Program may not be selected exactly as listed on Attachments F and G. Some of the factors that could affect the current lists are as follows:

- 1) A listed project receives full or partial funding from another source.
- 2) A project is by-passed as described in Section 6B.
- 3) Funds available are increased or decreased due to actual project costs vs. estimated costs listed on Attachment F or G.
- 4) The PWS or project is found to be ineligible for DWSRF funds.
- 5) A PWS's loan application is denied.
- 6) A project or PWS is unable to meet DWSRF project requirements as described in this Section; or
- 7) A PWS declines DWSRF assistance.

The terms of financial assistance for Standard Projects are described in Section 7. The exact terms will be set at the time of the loan agreement for each project. The amount of principal forgiveness assistance and loan terms to be provided for Disadvantaged Community PWS projects will be determined during the loan application process using the criteria described in Section 8.

5D. Unencumbered Funds from Previous Grant Years

Funds from the 2022 - 2024 DWSRFs that were not encumbered have been carried forward into this 2025 IUP. In accordance with the long-standing statutory, regulatory, and policy requirement that States have one year from funds receipt to commit funds into signed loan agreements, all 2025 DWSRF projects that do not have a binding commitment (i.e., signed loan agreement) by November 1, 2026 may be by-passed and the funds will be carried forward to the next year's IUP or made available for currently active projects that have encountered cost overruns. PWSs will need to reapply for the next funding cycle if by-passed.

5E. PWSs/Projects Ineligible for Funding

PWSs that lack the technical, financial, or managerial capacity to operate their PWS in compliance with present and future requirements of the SDWA are not eligible to receive DWSRF funds unless the proposed project will address and resolve the lack of capacity. All PWSs will receive a capacity development review and approval before the Program will enter into a loan agreement. PWSs that are in Significant Non-Compliance with the SDWA are not eligible, except as noted in Section 6H. PWSs that serve federally owned installations are not eligible. A Non-Community PWS owned by a forprofit enterprise is not eligible to receive DWSRF funding.

Proposed projects for which the primary purpose is to provide fire protection or system growth are not eligible for DWSRF funding. Laboratory fees for monitoring and operational and maintenance expenses are ineligible project costs. Land acquisition secured by eminent domain condemnation proceedings or from an unwilling seller is not eligible to receive DWSRF funding. Projects that do not receive a favorable environmental determination and initiate construction will not receive DWSRF funding. All projects must complete the environmental review process to the satisfaction of the Program and receive a favorable environmental determination before the start of construction.

Since funding is limited, demand is considerable and funds are subsidized, DWSRF funding will be provided to only the most viable, cost effective, environmentally acceptable projects.

5F. Environmental Reviews

All "Equivalency" projects financed with DWSRF funds will have a "NEPA-like" Environmental Review. "Non-Equivalency" projects use the State Environmental Review Process (SERP), defined in the State of Maine Rules Relating to DWSRF Rules. The environmental review should be performed, and a favorable determination made prior to the design of the facility. The Environmental Review process must be completed prior to the start of construction for the project to receive DWSRF funding. The State of Maine Rules Relating to the DWSRF, Chapter 230, puts forth the Environmental Review requirements for all projects. The applicant is required to submit specific information identified in Chapter 230 for a project for the Program to make an environmental determination. The required information is dependent upon the type and scope of the project proposed to receive DWSRF funding. An Environmental Review and determination prepared for/by another federal funding agency may be accepted by the Program.

5G. Procurement Requirements

The competition thresholds for procurement of goods and services are as follows:

a. Recipients may purchase goods and services that do not cost more than the Micro-purchase threshold \$10,000 without competition provided purchases are equitably distributed among

suppliers to the extent practicable, taking DBE considerations into account, and the price is reasonable.

- i. PWS participating in the Small PWS Emerging Contaminant Grant and Very Small Compliance Loan programs may establish micro-purchase thresholds up to \$50,000 for treatment installation projects.
- ii. Recipients may not make a series of purchases in a relatively short time frame from the same source in amounts at or less than the micro-purchase threshold or less to avoid competition as that practice would not lead to equitable distribution of purchases from qualified sources.
- b. For purchases that cost more than the micro-purchase threshold but less than the Simplified acquisition threshold set at \$250,000, recipients may use small purchase procedures and solicit offers from a minimum of three sources, taking DBE considerations into account, without formally advertising or otherwise publicizing the contracting opportunity.
 - i. Recipients must attempt to obtain documented prices or quotes (e.g. by email or price list searches) from at least 3 three qualified sources to meet this requirement.
 - ii. Recipients must select the lowest priced item or service that meets the requirements of the specification unless it can otherwise be demonstrated that the goods or services available at a higher price offer the best value. A written justification for the decision to purchase at the higher price must be submitted for review and approval by the DWP and documented in the project folder.
 - iii. Insurances must be made that the vendor charges similarly situated customers the same price as it is offering to the recipient.
 - iv. Bid or performance bonds are not required for purchases in amounts less than the simplified acquisition threshold.
- c. Procurements in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold are subject to the formal competitive requirements of sealed bidding.
 - i. Recipients must solicit bids from an adequate number of potential contractors, taking DBE considerations into account.
 - ii. Tribal and local government recipients must publicly advertise the contracting opportunity. Other recipients may use web site announcements, pre-qualified bidder lists or similar means to solicit bids.
 - iii. The solicitation must remain open at least 30 days.
 - iv. Award of contract must go to the lowest, responsive bidder. Bidders that cannot meet the terms of the contract shall be considered non-responsive.
 - v. A tabulation of bids and the bid submittal of the contractor recommend for award must be submitted to the DWP for review and approval prior to award.

All DWSRF construction projects in federal fiscal year 2025 must use the <u>Davis-Bacon Wage</u> <u>Rates</u>. Exceptions include non-construction work funded by set-asides and worked performed through force account labor (PWS personnel).

5H. Build America Buy America (BABA) and Use of American Iron and Steel (AIS)

On November 15, 2021, Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act ("IIJA"), Pub. L. No. 117-58, was signed into law which includes the Build America, Buy America Act ("the Act"). Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52. The Act strengthens Made in America Laws and will bolster America's industrial base, protect national security, and support high-paying jobs. The Act requires that no later than May 14, 2022—180 days after the enactment of the IIJA—the head of each covered Federal agency shall ensure

that "none of the funds made available for a Federal financial assistance program for infrastructure, including each deficient program, may be obligated for a project unless all of the iron, steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the project are produced in the United States." (Build America, Buy America Act, P.L. 117-58, Secs 70911 - 70917.

The Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Made in America Office released its additional guidance for implementing the Build America, Buy America Act, 2 CFR 184, on August 23, 2023. The new guidance is effective on October 23, 2023.

As states deploy IIJA SRF funding, the Maine Drinking Water Program will:

- Oversee BABA implementation across state SRF-funded projects, as applicable, and provide detailed information on BABA compliance requirements, flexibilities, and processes to recipients.
- Inform SRF grant and loan recipients of the domestic preference requirements. EPA will work with states to develop and provide information to SRF recipients.
- Collaborate with EPA and industry to incentivize and grow domestic supply chains and U.S. manufacturing capacity for products essential to drinking water, wastewater, and stormwater infrastructure.
- Educate funding recipients about their eligibility for waivers and provide help applying for waivers. EPA will develop appropriate waivers and processes to facilitate a smooth transition to these expanded requirements.

As per 10 SEC. 436,(a)(1), none of the funds made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund as authorized by title VI of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 381 et seq.) or made available by a drinking water treatment revolving loan fund as authorized by section 1452 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C.16 300j–12) shall be used for a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a PWS or treatment works unless all of the iron and steel products used in the project are produced in the United States. (2) In this section, the term "iron and steel products" means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.

Subsection (a) shall not apply in any case or category of cases in which the Administrator of the EPA (in this section referred to as the "Administrator") finds that - (1) applying subsection (a) would be inconsistent with the public interest; (2) iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities and of a satisfactory quality; or (3) inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent. (c) If the Administrator receives a request for a waiver under this section, the Administrator shall make available to the public on an informal basis a copy of the request and information available to the Administrator concerning the request and shall allow for informal public input on the request for at least 15 days prior to making a finding based on the request. The Administrator shall make the request and accompanying information available by electronic means, including on the official public Internet Web site of the Environmental Protection Agency. (d) This section shall be applied in a manner consistent with United States obligations under international agreements. (e) The Administrator may retain up to 0.25 percent of the funds appropriated in this Act for the Clean and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds for carrying out the provisions described in subsection (a)(1) for management and oversight of the requirements of this section. (f) This section

does not apply with respect to a project if a State agency approves the engineering plans and specifications for the project, in that agency's capacity to approve such plans and specifications prior to a project requesting bids, prior to the date of the enactment of this Act.

5I. Equivalency

The Program must demonstrate to EPA that the total dollar amount of DWSRF projects funded in any given year that meet these authorities is equivalent to the total federal Grant funds received in that year, less set-asides. This sets the Equivalency Project goal. The 2025 goal for Base and Supplemental Equivalency Projects is \$30,082,345.

To meet the Equivalency Project goal for the 2025 Grant, Maine will require that all Projects with total project costs equal or greater than \$250,000, excluding Source, Treatment and Storage Projects, all Emerging Contaminant Projects, and all Lead Service Line Replacement Projects meet the below equivalency requirements:

- Federal Financial Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)
- Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act
- Single Audit Act

The following equivalency requirements will be applied to all DWSRF projects \$250,000 in cost or greater, regardless of source of funding:

- Federal Cross-Cutting Authorities
- Davis-Bacon Act
- National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
- Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
- American Iron and Steel (AIS) Provision of the Consolidated Appropriations Act
- Telecom Equipment & Services 2 CFR 200.216
- Project Signage

Projects that fall under \$250,000 (excluding EC and LSLR) will be considered non-equivalency and must only meet the below criteria:

- Davis-Bacon Act
- State Environmental Review Process (SERP)
- American Iron and Steel (AIS) Provision of the Consolidated Appropriations Act

Anti-discrimination statutes apply to all DWSRF activities, not just Equivalency Projects. Projects eligible for emergency funding may be exempt from this requirement as determined by the DWSRF.

5J. Federal Cross-Cutting Authorities

Cross-cutting Authorities are listed in Attachment E. Federal Cross-cutting Authorities are those federal statutes and Presidential Executive Orders that by their own language affect actions proposed for assistance with DWSRF monies. DWSRF Equivalency Projects and all set-aside activities must meet all applicable requirements of these authorities. Some authorities will be met through the Environmental Review process. Others will be met through procurement or certification requirements of the Program. All organizations in receipt of federal funds for set-aside activities must follow all applicable federal Cross-cutting Authorities in their use of these funds.

5K. Comprehensive System Facilities Plan/ Master Plan

With the goal of increasing sustainability of all PWSs in Maine, all projects on the PPL receiving principal forgiveness will be required to have a professionally prepared Comprehensive System Facilities Plan (Master Plan) that is less than ten (10) years old.

Should a PWS not have a plan that is less than ten years old, funding assistance shall be provided as part of the project loan to complete a plan. An amount shall be included in the final loan amount for the PWS to undertake such a plan.

Should a PWS have a plan that is less than ten years old, the PWS shall be allowed to undertake other plans as detailed below under the same funding opportunities. This shall be at the DWP's discretion. Examples of eligible professionally prepared documents may include:

- Comprehensive System Facilities Plans
- Asset Management Plans
- Energy Audit Reports
- System Hydraulic Modeling Studies/Reports
- Water Loss Audits
- Effective/Sustainable Utility Management Assessment and Improvement Plan

5L. EPA Data Reporting Requirements

All project loans capitalized, at least in part, with funds from the FFY 2025 Grant are entered in a national EPA Data System. DWSRF employees enter information into EPA Data System following award of a loan agreement or amendment, generally on a monthly basis.

In addition, Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) reporting requirements will be met by reporting to sam.gov on loans in an amount equivalent to \$30,082,345 which is the amount of the FFY 2025 Base and Supplemental (IIJA) Capitalization Grant available for projects.

The Emerging Contaminant Capitalization Grant (IIJA) FFATA Requirements will be met by reporting to sam.gov on loans in an amount equivalent to \$7,234,860 which is the amount of the FFY 2025 Emerging Contaminant Grant going towards projects.

All loan recipients must obtain a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number prior to receiving a loan to enable the state to satisfy FFATA requirements. Equivalency does not apply to the remainder of the Grant. Any contracts, loans or grants funded out of this portion of the Grant that individually exceeds \$30,000 will be reported to sam.gov as required.

6. Criteria and Method of Distribution of Funds

The criteria and method for the distribution of Project Funds, depends on the demand for the funds relative to the funds available. For the Base, Supplemental and Reallotment of the 2025 DWSRF Base Capitalization Grants the demand exceeds the available funds. These projects are scored and ranked based on the criteria in Section 6I. Project Priority Ranking System.

Emerging Contaminants projects to date have primary been for installation of treatment at small community and non-transient, non-community PWSs such as schools and manufactured housing communities, with costs generally under \$60,000, or for the design and construction of municipal sized water treatment facilities. Because the latter projects can range in the tens of millions of dollars, funding for these projects has generally been capped at \$4,000,000 per year per project. This has allowed funding to be distributed across applicants and a need for scoring and ranking to determine a project priority list has not been necessary. In FY2025, DWP has decided to lift the \$4,000,000 cap to allow for all funds to be allocated, rather than offering a rolling application period.

6A. Description of Selection Process for Projects to Receive Assistance

Each year all DWSRF eligible PWSs will be asked to submit information about projects (submission of a project information application form provided by the Program) for which they are seeking DWSRF monies for the designated year. This project information will be reviewed for accuracy and eligibility, and then given a priority ranking score based on the system designated in Section 6I below. The DWSRF eligible projects and their respective information will then be listed in order of priority, highest to lowest, in a master list of all projects (Comprehensive Project Priority List). The Program will create the PPL utilizing the provisions in this Section and the amount of available funds. The PPL can be found in Attachment F. A Back-up Project List, Attachment G, consists of projects that did not make the PPL, but are next in line to receive assistance based on their priority ranking. Projects on the Back-up Project List will be offered funds in the order of their priority ranking based on the amount of funds freed up by projects on the PPL that either decline the funds or are by-passed in accordance with the procedures stated in Section 6B. Both lists include the following information.

- Priority Point Score,
- DWSRF Project Number,
- Public Water System Identification Number,
- Population Served,
- Public Water System Name,
- Project Type,
- Project Name,
- Funds Requested,
- Principal Forgiveness Ratio and
- Principal Forgiveness Amount.

The Program will contact all PWSs with projects listed on the PPL after the IUP is finalized to inform them of submittal, review and approval, and application requirements.

6B. By-Pass Provision

A project on the PPL may be by-passed if the PWS has not entered into a signed financial assistance agreement within one year from the receipt of funds from USEPA. To enter into a loan agreement a

PWS must submit and receive approval of engineering and construction documents, complete an environmental review, and complete a capacity review.

Funds made available when a project is by-passed will be (a) offered to the highest ranked back-up list project with a similar amount; (b) provided to active projects facing cost overruns; and/or (c) carried over to the following fiscal year's project list. Selection of the project(s) will emphasize the project most ready to proceed to enter into a binding commitment.

6C. By-Pass for Small Water PWS Assistance

A minimum of 15% of the monies available for funding projects each year must go to PWSs that serve a population of less than 10,000 (small PWSs). The lowest priority project or projects for PWSs that serve 10,000 or more people may be by-passed in any given year to achieve this goal of 15% assistance to small PWSs. As necessary, the highest priority small PWS projects will be selected to satisfy the minimum 15% level. Of the 25 projects on the 2025 PPL, 24 are PWSs with populations of less than 10,000. Total project funding offered for these PWSs is \$44,075,000or 92% of the funds on the PPL, greatly exceeding the 15% requirement.

6D. By-Pass for Consolidation Grant Assistance

The Program will by-pass consolidation grant projects that do not meet the deadlines established at the time of application. If a project does not meet the established deadlines, the PWS may reapply for the consolidation grant. Original applications must be submitted before construction occurs. Resubmitted applications cannot be submitted more than a year after construction started.

6E. Emergency Construction Fund

The Emergency Construction Fund provides loans to PWSs that have experienced a recent unexpected event that poses a serious threat to public health and welfare. This may include a severe weather event, accident or sabotage that results in infrastructure damage, or other event that causes a sudden and dramatic impact to drinking water quality and/or available quantity.

These projects must meet the eligibility criteria for DWSRF projects, but do not need to be on the Priority Project List. Emergency Construction Fund projects are not eligible for principal forgiveness. The DWP has the discretion to determine what constitutes an emergency. The DWP will also determine which provisions of the standard loan process (competitive bidding, environmental reviews, capacity reviews, plans and specifications, etc.) must be met. The Program has budgeted up to \$250,000 from repayment funds for the 2025 calendar year. Additional funds if available at the time of the emergency application can also be made available. Funds that are not committed by the end of 2025 will be returned to the pool of funds for standard construction projects.

6F. Very Small PWS Compliance Loan Fund (VSPWSCL)

This fund allows qualifying PWSs to receive up to \$60,000 loans for infrastructure projects that are needed to achieve compliance with a current or future standard of the SDWA excluding the Revised Total Coliform Rule. Individual loans will be awarded up to \$60,000. Of the \$60,000 awarded \$10,000 will be for services of a professional engineer. For a project estimate that exceeds \$60,000, the owner is responsible for paying costs more than \$60,000 first, before VSPWSCL funds are provided, ensuring the completion of the compliance related project. For projects that will exceed \$60,000 in total cost, if the final project cost is less than expected after the owner has paid funds upfront, and as a result, VSPWSCL expenditures will total less than \$60,000, then initial costs paid by

the owner may be reimbursable, enabling reimbursement of costs up to the full \$60,000 grant to be provided toward project costs.

If more requests for money are received than we have allocated for the Very Small System Compliance Loan Program, funds will be made available on a first come first served basis and the ability of the applicant to implement the improvements on a timely basis. The loans would need to meet all requirements for a standard construction loan including contract document, environmental review, capacity review, Davis-Bacon wage rates and other applicable requirements. The loan term would be set at 100 percent principal forgiveness. A balance of \$360,000 will be reserved from the 2025 DWSRF to be available for 2025 applicants.

Qualifying PWSs include all community PWSs (except those regulated by the Public Utilities Commission) with a population of 100 or less and all not-for-profit, non-transient, non-community PWSs. All PWSs that meet these basic eligibility criteria, and are therefore potentially eligible for a project under the VSPWSCL Fund, are identified on Attached Appendix L. In exceptional circumstances, not-for-profit, transient, non-community PWSs may also be granted financial assistance through the VSPWSCL Fund at the discretion of the Program.

All qualified project applications received are deemed to have a project eligibility ranking above 100 points as projects needed to achieve compliance with current or future SDWA standards. The Standard Project Ranking criteria is detailed in Section 6I. Since a ranking above 100 points exceeds the lowest ranked funded project in Attachment F, these projects are eligible for placement on the project Priority List.

Please note that projects cannot be the result of a failure to maintain an existing treatment system. Projects can consist of developing a new well or the installation of treatment. Consolidation with another PWS could be funded with a consolidation grant.

6G. Consolidation Grants

This fund allows qualifying PWSs to receive up to \$150,000 loans to provide partial funding to PWSs for consolidation with another PWS to enhance PWS capacity. PWSs with a technical, managerial, or financial capacity issue can receive partial funding to consolidate with a more viable PWS to enhance PWS capacity and facilitate the deregulation of an existing PWS. These grants will be issued in the form of 100% principal forgiveness. The eligible costs for the principal forgiveness are the cost of the infrastructure necessary for the PWS to serve the PWS being de-regulated. The grant funds are not intended to replace the de-regulated PWS's infrastructure. The Consolidation Grant funds no more than 50% of the cost of a PWS's consolidation for for-profit facilities and no more than 75% of the cost of a PWS consolidation for not-for-profit facilities. Grant awards may not exceed \$150,000. Payments are typically made on a one-time reimbursement basis; consideration for greater than a single reimbursement will be made on a case-by-case basis determined by the financial need of the applying PWS.

Qualifying PWSs include all community PWSs and all not-for-profit, non-transient, non-community PWSs. All PWSs that meet these basic eligibility criteria, and are therefore potentially eligible for a project under this fund, are identified on Attached Appendix L.

All qualified project applications received will be scored in accordance Standard Project Ranking criteria is detailed in Section 6I. To qualify for funding the consolidation project in consideration must score higher than the lowest ranked funded project in Attachment F.

Awarded projects must adhere to all non-equivalency project requirements, including State level non-equivalency environmental review, American Iron and Steel provisions, and Davis Bacon Act.

6H. PWSs in Priority Status on EPA's ETT

PWSs that score 11 or higher on EPA's Enforcement Targeting Tool (ETT) due to current and outstanding violations will not be eligible for DWSRF financial assistance unless/until: a) they resolve all violations to the satisfaction of the Program; b) the project(s) for which they are applying for DWSRF monies resolve all ETT violations; or c) they enter into, and comply with, an Administrative Consent Agreement with the Program that addresses the violations. If the PWS resolves its violations by one of these methods, then its DWSRF eligible project(s) will be prioritized and provided financial assistance in the same manner as all other DWSRF eligible projects. If a PWS is not a priority PWS on the ETT at the time that they receive a loan agreement but become a Priority PWS on the ETT during the construction of the project, then the DWSRF construction reimbursement process will be stopped until those violations are resolved by one of the methods mentioned above.

6I. Project Priority Ranking System

Planning and engineering costs (Engineering Study, Pilot Plant Study, Environmental Study, project design, etc.) can be separately funded from a project if associated with a future DWSRF eligible project. If construction is not occurring during the 2025 construction season, only preliminary costs will be allocated on the 2025 IUP. These activities will be prioritized based on the future DWSRF eligible project for which they are associated. Financial assistance to acquire land integral to a DWSRF eligible project and the guarantee or purchase of insurance for local debt obligation is both DWSRF eligible expenses. Projects submitted for these activities will be prioritized based on the project type with which they are associated. Example: A DWSRF project submission for land acquisition necessary for construction of a planned pump station or treatment facility will be priority ranked the same as the future facility.

The scoring system that will be used for ranking requests for DWSRF funding for this funding period is as follows:

I. Standard Projects (only one priority point score to apply to each project)

a. Type of Project

Priority Points

1) Projects to address compliance and public health issues:

Installation of treatment or connection to a new supply for:

Acute Contaminant	99
Non-Acute Contaminant	80
Emerging Contaminant	100

Replacement of a contaminated source with uncontaminated source.

If the existing source is:

River/Stream	95
Lake/Pond/Impoundment	90
GWUDI	85
Dug Well	77

	Spring Filtered Surface Water	75 69	
	Replacement of aging infrastructure at risk of causing contamination.		
	Uncovered Finish Water Storage Treatment Facility Floating Cover Storage Source-Intake Structure Primary Pump Station Booster Station	60 55 49 45 44 42	
	Storage River Crossing Transmission Mains Distribution Mains Instrumentation/Controls Backwash Lagoons Roughing Filters	42 40 37 35 33 30 30 30	
	Rehabilitation of aging infrastructure or upgrade of existing factorisk of contamination.	cilities at	
2)	Treatment Facility Source-Intake Structure Primary Pump Station Booster Station Storage (Inside Painting) Transmission Mains Distribution Mains Instrumentation/Controls Backwash Lagoons Roughing Filters	44 26 25 23 20 18 17 15 15	
2)	Installation of facilities to address low system pressure probler Backflow Prevention Devices Storage Booster Pump Station Larger Mains	ms: 43 32 24 22	
3)	<u>Projects for compliance with future promulgated SDWA regulations:</u>	60	
4)	Projects to address aesthetics: taste, color, odor, etc.	8	
5)	Construction of facilities around a PWS's source to address threat or documented contamination threat to a source of supple		
	Unfiltered Surface Water W/Filtration Waiver Filtered Surface Water Groundwater	72 62 52	

^{*}Source water protection activities are not eligible for funding with Project

Funds, but may be eligible for Other Non-Project Activity set-aside funds.

6) <u>Installation of facilities to provide redundant facilities:</u>

Supply (present peak day supply problems)	68
Disinfection Equipment	56
Treatment Train	50
Supply Source	40
Source-Intake Structure	32
River Crossing	29
Pump Station	21
Storage	19
Transmission Main	25

7) Other Eligible Projects:

Catantana 1. in Failman of Caiting 1 Information	70
Catastrophic Failure of Critical Infrastructure	70
PWS Viability: Facility Consolidation	65
Install Backup Power Source	48
Tank Mixing & Re-Chlorination	35
Resolution of Dead-End Water Quality Problems	34
PWS Interconnection	32
PWS Expansion to Address Public Health Issues	31
Installation of Meters	16
Construction of Office, Garage, or Equipment Storage	10

b. <u>Priority Point Add-ons:</u> (only one priority point score for each category applies and is to be added with each category's score including project points to produce the final project priority rank)

Priority points

1) PWS compliance/enforcement status*

Court Action or Civil Penalty Assessment	30
Assessed Administrative Penalty	25
Active Administrative Compliance/Consent Order	20
Loss of Filtration Avoidance/Exemption	18
Long-term Boil Water Order or Do Not Drink Order (>1 year)	16
In Significant Non-Compliance	14
Outstanding Notice of Non-Compliance	12
Outstanding Treatment Technique Violation	10
Active Bi-lateral Compliance Agreement	8
Recommendation from a Sanitary Survey	5

^{*} These priority points are only added if proposed project addresses the compliance/enforcement issue in question.

2) Percentage of annual residential water bill of median household income.

Greater than 2.25%	18
between 2.01% and 2.25%	15

	between 1.76% and 2.00% between 1.51% and 1.75% between 1.26% and 1.50% between 1% and 1.25% less than 1%	12 9 6 3 0	
3)]	Population served.		
	100,000 people or more between 10,000 and 99,999 between 3,300 and 9,999 between 500 and 3,299 less than 500 people	1 2 8 6 4	
4)	Public Water System Type.		
	Community – Manufactured Housing Community Community Non-Transient Transient	20 6 3 1	
5)]	Project in accordance with Completed System Master Plan.	5	
6)	Plans and Specifications.	up to10	
	1 point for each 10 percent completed, maximum 10 points DWP may request copy of plans and specifications		
7)	Project in conjunction with road reconstruction project DWP may request documentation of planned road project.	10	
8)	<u>Demonstration Permitting & Environmental Review is</u> <u>Complete:</u>	10	
9) Co-Funding			
	Points will be granted for co-funding only if the co-funder has	committed	

Points will be granted for co-funding only if the co-funder has committed to funding at the time of application. No points will be awarded for applicants have applied for co-funding, but have not yet been committed supplemental funding.

10) <u>Discretionary Points based upon public health risk: Associated only with aging infrastructure.</u> The facility expected useful life is compared to the facilities age.

If the ratio is greater than 50% and less than 75%	5
If the ratio is greater than 75% and less than 90%	8
If the ratio is greater than 90% and less than 100%	12
If the ratio is greater than 100% and less than 125%	16
If the ratio is greater than 125%	20

Note: The following Expected Useful Life values shall be used:

Pipe (Iron/HDPE)	100 Years
Pipe (Asbestos Cement/PVC/Copper)	75 Years
Pipe (Galvanized)	50 Years

Finished Water Storage Facilities	75 Years
Buildings Structures	50 Years
Groundwater Wells	40 Years
Electrical & Mechanical Equipment including pumps	20 Years
Steel Coating Systems	20 Years
Meters	15 Years
Chemical Feed & Storage Equipment	15 Years
Instrumentation	10 Years

11) Project Readiness – Construction anticipated to be underway and submitting drawdown requests:

Prior to August 31, 2025	5
Prior to September 30, 2025	4
Prior to October 31, 2025	3
Prior to November 30, 2025	2
Prior to December 31, 2025	1

c. Additional Priority Points for Compliant PWSs:

DWSRF eligible PWSs that have been in compliance with the SDWA for the last five calendar years (2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023), will receive extra priority points for each of the five years. The points for each year will be based on the following:

- 2 points no compliance violations on record with the Program for that calendar year.
- 1 point violation(s) but all have been addressed and resolved with the Program.
- 0 points outstanding violation(s) that have not been resolved.

The priority points will be totaled (maximum of 10 points) and added to each project that PWS submitted requesting DWSRF financial assistance.

Total Project Priority Point Score: (a+b1+b2+b3+b4+b5+b6+b7+b8+b9+b10+b11+c)

II. Other Projects - 15% Set-Aside. The types of activities to be funded with this non-project set-aside and the percentage and dollar amount of monies to be allocated to each activity are listed in Section 4C.

<u>Priority ranking system for the 15% set-aside funds</u>. Priority ranking for each set-aside activity will be based on the scoring system listed below. References to **b1**, **b2**, **b3**, etc., refer to the add-on points defined in the previous section.

a. Land Acquisition/Conservation Easements:

In the unusual case of multiple applications submitted at the same time, the following ranking criteria shall be used.

Type of Source	Priority Points
Unfiltered surface water with filtration waiver	50
Filtered surface water source	40
Groundwater under the direct influence of surface water	30

Groundwater 20

(Total Priority Ranking Score = Type of Source+b1+b2+b3+b4+c)

b. Wellhead Protection:

- 0 5 points Demonstrated need for the project. How will the project help protect your groundwater source?
- 0-3 points Previous wellhead protection work. Has your PWS demonstrated a commitment to source water protection by dedicating time or financial resources to source protection? What other projects have you completed or are in the process of completing that identify, evaluate, manage, or eliminate threats to your groundwater supply?
- 0 3 points Community Involvement. Protecting drinking water sources is a community effort. Explain how you have included, or plan to include, local partners to work with you to enhance efforts to protect your groundwater source. Have you engaged your neighbors, your customers, and/or your local government in protecting your source?
- 0 1 points Implementation of a Wellhead Protection Plan. Projects which will implement recommendations or reduce the risk of contamination identified from an existing Wellhead or Source Water Protection Plan, or from recommendations made by the Program, Maine Rural Water Association, or other qualified professional will receive one point.
- 0 1 point Creation of a Wellhead Protection Plan. Projects that include the development or improvement of a Wellhead or Source Water Protection Plan will receive one point.
- 0 1 point Cost Sharing. PWSs which contribute money or in-kind services to help fund or complete a portion of the project will receive one point. For example, PWSs that contribute \$100 toward the replacement of each home heating oil tank within their wellhead protection zone will receive this point.
- 0 1 point Previous grant awards. PWSs which have never received a Wellhead Protection Grant will receive one point.

(Total Priority Ranking Score = Need + Previous Work + Community Involvement + Implementation of Wellhead Protection Plan + Creation of a Wellhead Protection Plan + Cost Sharing + Previous Grant Work)

c. Source Water Surface Water Protection:

- 0 5 points Demonstrated need for the project. How will the project help protect your surface water source?
- 0-2 points Previous source water protection work. Has your PWS demonstrated a commitment to source water protection by dedicating time or financial resources to source protection? What other projects have you completed that evaluate or manage threats to your surface water supply?
- 0-5 points Community involvement. Protecting drinking water sources is a community effort. Explain how local partners will work with you to enhance efforts to protect your

groundwater source. Will this project benefit another public or private drinking water source? Projects demonstrating value from other sources, financial or in-kind, will receive a higher score.

0 – 3 points Describe how the project will address an identified risk. Will the project reduce the risk of contamination identified by a Watershed Management Plan, Source Water Assessment Report, or another priority system?

0 or 1 point Implementation of a Watershed Management Plan. Projects which will implement recommendations from an existing Watershed Management or Source Water Protection Plan will receive one point.

0 or 1 point Cost Sharing. PWSs which contribute money or in-kind services up front to fund a portion of the project costs will receive one point.

Priority will be given to projects that exceed the \$5,000 grant maximum and which will be funded in part by funds from other sources.

(Total Priority Ranking Score = Need + Previous Work + Community Involvement + Identified Risk + Implementation of Wellhead Protection Plan + Cost Sharing + Previous Grant Work)

d. PWS Consolidation:

The purpose of this program is to provide partial funding to PWSs to allow consolidation with another PWS to enhance system capacity. PWSs with a technical, managerial, or financial capacity issue can receive partial funding to consolidate with a more viable PWS to enhance system capacity and de-regulate an existing PWS. The PWS Consolidation Grant will fund no more than 50 percent of the cost of the PWS consolidation for for-profit facilities and no more than 75 percent of the cost of the PWS consolidation for not-for-profit facilities. Grant awards may not exceed \$150,000. Payment shall be made on a one-time reimbursement basis. Consideration for greater than a single reimbursement will be made on a case-by-case basis determined by the financial need of the applying PWS. Community PWSs and non-profit, non-community PWSs are eligible for the PWS Consolidation program. For-profit non-community PWSs and federally owned PWSs are not eligible. Each eligible PWS (PWS to be eliminated) may only receive one grant award for any consolidation effort.

Qualifying Criteria:

- The PWS applying for consolidation must have a technical, managerial, or financial capacity issue that will be addressed by the consolidation with the more viable PWS.
- The more viable, receiving PWS must neither exhibit technical, managerial, or financial capacity issues nor result in PWS capacity issues.
- Plans and specifications for the consolidation must be reviewed and approved by the Program.
- The project must complete the environmental review process that is currently part of the DWSRF construction loan program.

Ranking Criteria:

Because limited funding is provided for this Set-aside, grant awards will be determined by time of application, anticipated construction date, and risk to public health.

6J. Relationship to Meeting DWSRF Goals and Objectives

The criteria and method used to distribute project funds, as stated in this section, satisfies all the goals and objectives of the DWSRF. It also satisfies the DWSRF priority requirements of the SDWA. It gives PWSs with the greatest need for obtaining financial assistance to construct projects that address imminent and long-term threats to public health, pending enforcement actions and compliance issues with the SDWA, the ability to receive funding by giving their projects the highest priority ranking. It provides for assistance to small PWSs and Disadvantaged Community PWSs. Affordability will be factored into the priority ranking of projects. The method of distributing project funds also provides for the funding of preventive measures such as source water protection, replacement of aging infrastructure, operator certification and capacity development.

6K. Impact on Long-Term Financial Status of the DWSRF

The proposed method and financial terms for distributing project funds presented in this IUP should have negligible impact on the long-term financial status of the DWSRF. Principal payments on loans plus all interest earnings will be deposited to the DWSRF and made available for future PWS capital improvements.

7. Financial Aspects of DWSRF Assistance

7A. General

All PWSs must complete a MMBB loan application to be considered for a DWSRF loan. All PWSs must be able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the MMBB that they have an adequate revenue source to support the repayment of loan amounts. A PWS may enter into a loan agreement after its loan application is approved by the MMBB and all required financial conditions are met. Requisitions for construction costs will not be approved until the DWSRF requirements listed in Section 5 are met.

7B. Financial Terms of Loans

All loans for the financing of projects and non-project activities using 15% set-aside funds (the purchase of land and conservation easements for source water protection) will be at an interest rate at or below the municipal tax-exempt market rate with a minimum interest rate of 1% for all loans (exclusive of the Lead Service Line Replacement Capital Funds).

Project loans where the amount borrowed is \$250,000 or more may have a maximum repayment period of up to 20 years from the date of construction or the life expectancy of the asset being financed, whichever is less. Amounts borrowed for less than \$250,000 may be limited to a ten-year repayment term. Loans for land acquisition, conservation easements and Source Water Protection will usually have a repayment term limit of 10 years. Borrowers may request approval by the MMBB for an increase in their payment term above these limits up to a maximum allowable term of 20 years. The request must be in writing and state the need for a greater term. In all cases the loan repayment term will be limited to the life expectancy of the asset to be financed. Loans will have an initial payment due no more than one year from the date of substantial completion of construction for Standard Projects, or the date of the final loan agreement for Other Non-Project Activity funds.

The Program will make the determination of which projects will receive bond blend proceeds. All other projects will be financed by straight loans of repayment funds, Federal Grant, and State Match monies.

Loans for planning and engineering studies, reports and design work that are sought separate from a project loan, but are associated with future DWSRF eligible projects, will have a maximum loan repayment period of the same as the facility would qualify for, but no more than 20 years unless rolled into a construction loan funded through a subsequent IUP with a longer repayment period. Short-term design loans can be rolled into the long-term loan for the construction of the planned or engineered project if it becomes eligible for DWSRF funding.

The financial terms for loans to PWSs that qualify for Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance is addressed in Section 8.

7C. The Public Utilities Commission (PUC) Requirements

All PUC regulated PWSs must acquire approval for Issuance of Securities from the PUC before they can enter into a long-term loan agreement. If a PWS needs water rates increased to finance a DWSRF loan that includes bond blend monies, the rate increase must be approved prior to the time of the bond sale. Interim financing is discussed in Sections 7G and 7H.

7D. MMBB & DWP Administrative Fees

An Administrative Fee is charged by the MMBB to cover all costs incurred to sustain the daily maintenance of the loan throughout its life. This fee covers such costs as analyzing loan requests,

processing the draw requisitions, analyzing refunding opportunities, trustee fees and billing. An administrative fee not to exceed 5% of the periodic loan payment will be assessed each payment date. The 5% fee is applied to only the amount due at each payment date and not on all outstanding amounts as of each payment date. Therefore, this fee will increase the effective interest rate on a 20-year loan by approximately 50 basis points or .5%. For a repayment term greater than 20 years, the impact of the fee on the effective rate would be slightly less and for a repayment term of less than 20 years, the impact on the effective rate would be slightly more. For example, if the interest rate on a 20-year DWSRF loan was 1%, the impact of the MMBB Administrative Fee on the interest rate of the loan would be to increase the effective rate (i.e., the APR) of the loan to approximately 1.5%. The amount of money collected from this Administrative Fee will be place in a Fee account that will be used to cover eligible costs associated with administering the DWSRF program. This Administrative Fee applies to all construction loans and is not waived for disadvantaged community PWSs.

The Administrative Fee charged by the DWP is a one-time 0.9% DWP Project Management Fee on the total principal amount (i.e., the aggregate of the forgiven and non-forgiven amounts).

7E. Refinancing of Existing Facilities

DWSRF funds can be used to buy or refinance debt obligations for DWSRF eligible projects for PWSs that are owned and operated by a municipal, inter-municipal or interstate agency. Based on an EPA policy established in the spring of 1999, reimbursing project construction costs incurred prior to the date that the Project Lists are finalized, the last day of public review of the IUP, for a PWS with a DWSRF eligible project on a Project List is considered refinancing debt. The refinancing of debt for privately owned PWSs is not a reimbursable expense for DWSRF financial assistance. Additionally, DWSRF money cannot be used to refinance loans for the purchase of land. Publicly owned PWSs can receive reimbursement of refinanced debt in their DWSRF loans. However, their initial debt and the start of construction of the project must have occurred after July 1, 1993, to be eligible for reimbursement.

The Program will only consider projects that meet all eligibility criteria. Projects that are eligible for refinancing will score priority points as if it were a new project. However, since the DWSRF Program gives a higher priority to projects to address existing health risks or compliance issues, the total score will be reduced by thirty (30) percent. The project will then be ranked against all other projects to determine its placement on the Primary or Backup Project List.

7F. Refinancing of Facilities Currently Being Constructed

As stated in Section 7E above, the reimbursement of project construction costs incurred prior to the completion of public review of an IUP for which the project is included on a Project List will be considered the refinancing of debt. The Program is limited in how it can disburse funds for refinancing debt. Each year EPA allows Programs to only use \$2 million of their initial Grant funds for this purpose. Further, EPA only allows the disbursement of all costs for refinancing debt above the \$2 million limit to occur when disbursed over an eight-quarter period (two years). The eight-quarter period begins with the quarter the Program receives its Grant. Pre-construction costs (cost for design, planning, legal, etc.) are not subject to this eight-quarter rule and can be reimbursed any time after a PWS enters into a loan agreement.

7G. Projects That Secure Non-Bond Bank Interim Financing for Facility Construction

A PWS may elect to secure interim financing for the construction of a known DWSRF eligible project from a lending institute other than the MMBB. The PWS must abide by all DWSRF requirements

(plan review/approval, Environmental Review, Cross-cutting Authority requirements, etc.) to be eligible for DWSRF financial assistance. Also, the PWS must not complete construction of the project before the Grant is awarded to the Program to be eligible. It is preferable that PWSs not even begin construction of the project until the Project List that includes them has been finalized with the completion of its public review. As stated above, all costs incurred prior to the completion of public review will be considered refinanced debt. It will be priority ranked the same as the entire project. These costs will be disbursed as described in Section 7F with the exception that preconstruction costs can be reimbursed any time after the PWS enters into a DWSRF loan agreement.

7H. Projects That Secure Bond Bank Interim Financing for Facility Construction

A PWS may obtain interim financing through the MMBB for a project included on a PPL after the Program has been awarded its Grant. With an interim loan in place, a PWS will be eligible to receive reimbursement of pre-construction project costs (administrative, legal, design, etc.) upon approval by the Program (exception: PWSs in receipt of disadvantaged assistance — see Section 8B). Reimbursement of construction costs will only be allowed when the entire project meets the requirements of Sections 5B through 5F with all required approvals by the DWP. The interest rate for all borrowers electing to obtain interim financing through the MMBB will be equal to two thirds of the 1-year AAA municipal tax-exempt rate then available or 1%, whichever is higher. Fees will not be charged for interim loans.

8. Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance

8A. Definition of Disadvantaged Community PWS

A Financially Disadvantaged Community PWS is defined as any PWS that serves a community and can demonstrate that its year-round residential water consumers have a median household income (MHI) of \$73,733 per year or less <u>or</u> when the ratio of average annual water bill to median household income is 0.8% or greater.

An Environmentally Disadvantaged Community Public Water System is a non-transient or community PWS that is: affected by environmental pollution, naturally occurring contaminant(s) and/or has lead contamination in the water supply or lead materials in the service line materials; and is at risk for negative health effects due to contamination and/or there is water supply or lead service lines containing lead. DWSRF Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance will only be allowed where the disadvantaged water consumers will directly benefit from the assistance.

8B. Total Amount of Funds Available for Disadvantaged Community PWS Assistance

The 2025 DWSRF budget appropriation requires a minimum of 14% of the 2025 Base Capitalization Grant and exactly 49% of the Supplemental Capitalization Grant to be available for Disadvantaged Community PWS projects as principal forgiveness assistance. Loan subsidies are defined as funds given out either as principal forgiveness (grant) or as negative interest rates. Maine's DWSRF Program plans to give out subsidies to Disadvantaged Community PWSs only in the form of principal forgiveness.

Principal forgiveness will be made available to the highest-ranking projects first. A PWS must meet all the requirements of Section 5 of this IUP (capacity development, plans and specifications, and environmental review and approval) to enter into a loan agreement.

PWSs receiving loans with principal forgiveness as a "Disadvantaged Community" will be required to finance their project with a DWSRF Interim Loan or local Bond Anticipation Note. Financing with a DWSRF Long Term Loan will be made available after satisfactory determination of final project cost.

When the binding commitment amount and/or principal forgiveness (i.e., additional subsidy) amount does not meet the DWSRF required amounts for a particular IUP/PPL year, the DWP will select projects from subsequent years' IUP/PPL to meet the earlier year's requirement.

8C. Loan Fees and Costs

The one-time 0.9% DWP Project Management Fee on the total principal amount (i.e., the aggregate of the forgiven and non-forgiven amounts) and 5% MMBB Loan Administrative Fee will not be waived for PWSs that receive Disadvantaged Community Assistance. The DWP Project Management Fee will be paid from the portion of the loan that has been forgiven.

Fees will be waived for Small Public Water System Emerging Contaminant Grants and Very Small System compliance loans.

8D. Affordability Criteria

The Affordability Criteria will be based on the Median Household Income (MHI) of the PWS's year-round residential customers or the PWS's calculated Average Annual Water Bill to MHI Ratio.

Criteria I (MHI):

System wide Residential customers of a PWS must have an MHI of \$73,733 per year or less to qualify for receipt of Disadvantaged Community PWS assistance. This figure represents the average MHI for non-metropolitan Maine from the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate (2019-2023) prepared by the US Census Bureau. The income data used to determine MHI should be that which most accurately reflects the income of the year-round residential customers in a PWS's service area. This data can come from either the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates (2019-2023), or from a more current independent PWS income survey. All income surveys must be submitted to the Program for review and approval before the results can be used to determine the amount of DWSRF disadvantaged assistance to which a PWS is entitled. An independent Income Survey must be completed prior to and included with the SRF funding application. Income surveys must be conducted by an independent third-party using a methodology approved by the Program. Income surveys shall not be valid for more than three years.

Criteria II (Average Annual Water Bill to MHI Ratio):

The Ratio is Calculated as follows:

(Cost of 2,000 cubic feet of water per quarterly billing cycle X 4 quarters) / MHI

*A basis of 2,000cf. of water per quarter is used for average water consumption.

8E. Limitations/Terms of Disadvantaged Community Assistance

Disadvantaged Community Assistance subsidies in the form of principal forgiveness will be available to Community Water PWSs at maximum levels of 25, 35, 55, 70, 80 percent of the requested DWSRF loan amount based upon the following:

Water Rates as a Percentage of Median Household Income PF (%)

MHI > \$73,733 & Ratio > 0.80 or MHI < \$73,733 & Ratio < 0.80	25%
MHI < \$73,733 & Ratio 0.80 – 1.29	35%
MHI < \$73,733 & Ratio 1.30 – 1.49	55%
MHI < \$73,733 & Ratio 1.50 – 1.99	70%
MHI < \$73,733 & Ratio >/= 2.00	80%

Note that in certain cases such as when there is very limited customer base and/or an extremely disadvantaged population, the DWSRF Program Manager may increase the amount of principal forgiveness to make the resultant terms of the offer affordable.

<u>DWSRF Base and Supplemental Grants:</u> For PWSs with water rates as a percentage of MHI below 0.8%, the loan will be loaned for a 20-year repayment period. PWSs which qualify for Principal Forgiveness of 25% or more will be allowed for a 30-year repayment period. All Loans will have at a minimum a one percent interest rate. Loans for PWSs that qualify for this assistance will have a calculated repayment period of up to 30 years after the completion of the project but may never exceed the expected life of the project being financed. The terms of financial assistance to Disadvantaged Community PWSs will vary depending upon the Water Rates to MHI Ratio (see Section 8D) for each PWS. Subsidy will be determined at the time of application review; terms will be determined at the

time a PWS applies to the MMBB, accompanied by all supporting documentation necessary for the MMBB to make these determinations.

Community PWSs not regulated by the Maine Public Utility Commission that do not have water user rates in place may also be considered for Disadvantaged Community assistance. An applicant can propose an alternative methodology for review and consideration by the Program to determine the individual water user cost for 2,000 cubic feet of water consumed per calendar year quarter.

Nonprofit, non-Community Water PWSs may receive principal forgiveness if there is an excess of Disadvantaged Community PWS assistance dollars after all qualifying Disadvantaged Community PWS projects submitted have been financed. The amount of Principal Forgiveness given will be at the discretion of the Program.

The purchase of land or conservation easements by Disadvantaged Community PWSs using set-aside funds can only be accomplished with a loan for a maximum term of 20 years at an interest rate at or below the Standard Project Rate, but no lower than one percent.

The Program reserves the right to increase the maximum percentage of principal forgiveness if the loan subsidy requirement designated by the federal legislation is not met.

8F. PWSs/Projects to Receive Assistance

Subsidies to all Projects and PWSs to receive Disadvantaged Community PWS assistance will be based on the priority ranking system stated in Section 6 and their eligibility for this assistance, as described in this Section. The projects and PWSs to receive this assistance are listed with non-Disadvantaged Community PWS projects in Attachments F and G.

8G. Effects on Long-Term Funding Level of DWSRF

The maximum net long-term effect of the allocation of funds for financial assistance to Disadvantaged Community PWSs as proposed in this Section will be to reduce the future amount of funds available to the DWSRF by the amount of principal forgiveness, plus the lost interest earnings.

9. Public Review and Participation

Each year the IUP will be made available for public review and comment. Copies of the draft IUP will be made available upon request or by viewing the Program's web site. Informal public review meetings will be scheduled after the release of the Draft IUP. All DWSRF eligible PWSs, drinking water agencies and associations with a direct interest in drinking water matters, other organizations that are known to have an interest in public drinking water issues, and the public will be notified of the availability of the draft IUP. They will also be notified of the time and location of the public meetings where comments and questions related to the draft IUP will be accepted.

A public informational meeting was held on March 14, 2025.

The public review and participation activities for the draft 2025 IUP are as follows:

- August 30, 2024 Mailing to all PWSs eligible for DWSRF assistance, providing information on the Program and requesting applications for 2025 DWSRF funding. Information also placed on DWP web site.
- October 4, 2024 Last day for PWSs submitting 2025 DWSRF project applications.
- February 28, 2025 Draft IUP posted to website and emailed to all PWSs who applied for 2025 funding.
- March 14, 2025 Public informational meeting on draft IUP held virtually at 2:00PM.
- March 30, 2025 End of public comment period.
- April 2025 Project Loan Offers to PWSs with projects on the 2025 DWSRF Primary List.
- May 2025; Grant Pre-Submittal Review and Approval by DHHS Grant Review Committee.
- June 2025, DWSRF Grant Application prepared and submitted to EPA Region 1.
- August 2025, Expected Grant Award by EPA Region 1 (contingent on acquisition of State Match by June 30, 2025).

10. Funding Schedule

Table 10-1: Estimated Forecasted Cash Needs Percentages for FY2025

Grant Program	Capitalization Grant	1 st Quarter	2 nd Quarter	3 rd Quarter	4 th Quarter	Total Annual Need
	Base	\$5,456,500	\$1,818,833	\$1,818,833	\$1,818,834	\$10,913,000
Federal	Supplemental	\$12,449,000	\$4,157,967	\$4,157,967	\$4,157,966	24,898,000
	Emerging Contaminants	0%	0%	0%	\$7,857,000	\$7,857,000
Non- Federal	Base	\$2,182,600	0%	0%	0%	\$2,182,600
(State Match)	Supplemental	\$4,979,600	0%	0%	0%	\$4,979,600
Total		\$25,067,700	\$5,968,500	\$5,968,500	\$13,825,500	\$50,830,200

TABLE 3
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2025 DWSRF BASE, SUPPLEMENTAL & REALLOTMENT CAPITALIZATION GRANT FUNDS

Total Funds Available Funds Allotted for 2024 FTE Banked Credit **Banked Credit** Sub Accounts Balance 2025 2025 DWSRF Base Capitalization Grant & Reallotments \$10,913,000 2025 DWSRF Supplemental Capitalization Grant \$24,898,000 TOTAL \$35,811,000 Set-Asides D \$1,598,492 Program Administration (up to 4%) \$1,432,440 \$569,537 (\$862,903) \$2,461,395 1. DWP PORTION (up to 90%) \$426,293 2.5 2. MMBB PORTION (up to 10%) \$143,244 Technical Assistance to Small Systems (up to 2%) \$716,220 \$250,000 Е \$813,291 (\$466,220) \$1,279,511 1. MRWA WQS \$250,000 2.0 2. DWP OUTREACH SPECIALIST (using carryover) \$0 1.0 <-(incl 1 NEIWPCC) Drinking Water Program (up to 10%) \$3,581,100 \$1,941,627 \$3,237,374 \$4,876,847 (\$1,639,473) 1. PWSS PROGRAM \$1,941,627 11.5 <-(incl 5 NEIWPCC) Other Non-Project Activities (up to 15%) \$5,371,650 \$2,967,491 G 1. LAND ACQUISITION \$75,000 Land Acquisition & Conservation Easements \$75,000 2. CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE Comments \$1,231,796 Capacity Development Staff Assistance \$731,796 5.0 <-(incl 2 NEIWPCC) \$500,000 Capacity Development Grants 3. TRAINING ASSISTANCE \$260,000 \$1,231,796 Training Reimbursement Fund \$160,000 MRWA/Financial Circuit Rider \$80,000 MWUA/Leadership Training \$20,000 4. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS \$125,000 \$260,000 MRWA/Emergency Preparedness Technical Assistance \$45,000 MRWA/MeWARN Emergency Preparedness \$15,000 MRWA/Emergency Response Trailer \$25,000 MWUA/Resilience and Emergency Preparedness \$40,000 5. SPECIAL PROJECTS \$25,000 \$125,000 MRWA/Benchmarking \$5,000 MWUA/Workforce Development Program \$10,000 MWUA/Public Outreach & Communication \$10,000 6. WELLHEAD & SOURCE PROTECTION \$1,250,695 \$25,000 New Well Approval, Wellhead Protection and Source Water Protection Staff Assistance \$800,695 6.0 <-(incl 1 NEIWPCC) Wellhead/Source Water Protection and Water System Asset Security Grants \$400,000 HETL/ Rapid Microbiology Testing Equipment \$30,000 Public Education & Outreach Fund \$20,000 Set Aside Totals \$11,101,410 \$5,728,655 28.0 Remaining DWSRF Cap Grants Funds Available for Projects \$30,082,345 State Match \$7,162,200 Other Project Funds (Int., Repayments & Carry Over Funds) \$11,440,394 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PROJECTS \$48,684,939

TABLE 3A FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2025 DWSRF EMERGING CONTAMINANTS & REALLOTMENT CAPITALIZATION GRANT FUNDS

	Total Funds Available	Funds Allotted	Sub				Banked Credit	
Item	From Grant	for 2025	Accounts		FTE	Banked Credit	Used	Balance
2025 DWSRF Emerging Contaminants Capitalization Grant	\$7,640,000							
Reallotments	\$217,000							
TOTAL	\$7,857,000							
Set-Asides								
Program Administration (up to 4%)	\$314,280	\$295,140		D		\$321,820	(\$19,140)	\$340,960
1. DWP Portion (up to 50%)		\$138,000			1			
2. MMBB Portion (up to 50%)		\$157,140						
Technical Assistance to Small Systems (up to 2%)	\$157,140	\$69,000		Е		\$192,700	(\$88,140)	\$280,840
1. WQS/TREATMENT		\$69,000		="	0.5			
Drinking Water Program (up to 10%)	\$785,700	\$138,000		F		\$1,918,500	(\$647,700)	\$2,566,200
1. PWSS Program		\$138,000			1			
Other Non-Project Activities (up to 15%)	\$1,178,550	\$120,000		G				
Assistance for Capacity Development		\$60,000					Comments	
PWS Capacity Development Training			\$30,000					
Public Education & Outreach Fund			\$30,000					
TRAINING ASSISTANCE		\$60,000						
Training Reimbursement Fund			\$30,000					
Software/Data Management			\$30,000					
Set Aside Totals	\$2,435,670	\$622,140			2.5			
Remaining DWSRF Available for Projects	}	\$7,234,860						

Attachment B

DEFINITIONS

Administrative Expenses - Costs incurred in managing and operating the DWSRF program. A State may use up to 4% of its allotment for program administration expenses incurred by the Drinking Water Program or the Maine Municipal Bond Bank.

Annual Review - EPA's assessment of the success of a State DWSRF program.

Assurances - Certifications or pledges by the State that it will meet the requirements of the SDWA and other requirements of the program.

Automated Clearing House - A federal payment mechanism that transfers cash to States and other recipients of Federal assistance using electronic transfers from the Treasury through the Federal Reserve System.

Bank/Banking - Crediting amounts (contributed by the State to DWSRF eligible projects or activities) to the DWSRF in excess of amounts required towards meeting certain requirements of future capitalization grants.

Biennial Report - The State's DWSRF Report to EPA which contains information on how the State has met the goals and objectives of the previous two fiscal years as stated in the Intended Use Plan and grant agreement.

Binding Commitment - A legal obligation by the State to a local recipient that defines the terms and the timing for assistance under the DWSRF.

Capitalization Grant - The assistance agreement by which EPA obligates and awards funds allotted to a State for purposes of capitalizing that State's revolving fund and funds for other purposes authorized in section 1452.

Capitalization Grant Application - An application for Federal assistance submitted by a State, which in addition to the application form includes an Intended Use Plan, proposed payment schedule and Operating Agreement or other documents describing how the State intends to operate its DWSRF.

Community Water System - A public water system which serves at least fifteen service connections used by year-round residents or regularly serves at least twenty-five year-round residents.

Contaminated Source - Any Public Water System water supply source that contains a Safe Drinking Water Act regulated contaminant in excess of the maximum contaminant level (MCL).

Acute Contaminants - Contaminants that have the potential to cause disease to humans within a 96 hour period after exposure. These contaminants may be microbial (viruses, bacteria, protozoa, etc.) or chemical (nitrates/nitrites). The contaminants meeting these criteria are described in 40CFR 141.51 and 141.52.

Non-Acute Contaminants - Contaminants that over a longer period of time (usually 30 to 90

Attachment B

days) can cause disease when exposed to humans. These contaminants are not as life threatening as acute contaminants. Contaminants in this category consist of coliform bacteria (no fecal coliform or *e. coli* present) and high levels of some inorganic/organic contaminants.

Chronic Contaminants - Contaminants where human exposure to low levels over long periods of time (months to years or even decades) can result in disease. These are primarily carcinogenic contaminants (cancer causing). The contaminants in this category include gasoline, fuel oils, herbicides and pesticides (organic contaminants), lead and copper, arsenic, radionuclides, and trihalomethanes to name a few.

Cross-cutting Authorities - Federal laws and authorities that apply by their own terms to projects or activities receiving federal assistance. (See Attachment E).

Debt Obligation - A legal obligation or liability to pay something to someone else.

Default - Failure to meet a financial obligation such as a loan payment.

Disadvantaged Community - The service area of a public water system that meets affordability criteria established after public review and comment by the State in which the public water system is located.

Disbursement - The transfer of cash from the DWSRF to the assistance recipient.

Disbursement Schedule - A quarterly schedule of estimated disbursements from the DWSRF.

Eligible Public Water System - Community water system, both privately or publicly owned, and non-profit non-community water systems. Federally owned public water systems are not eligible.

Environmental Review - An environmental review process conducted by the State that complies with 40 CFR Part 6, Subpart E or an alternative "NEPA-like" State environmental review.

Equivalency Projects - Projects that must total the amount equal to the federal capitalization grants and must comply with environmental review requirements and federal cross-cutting authorities.

Guarantee - A promise to provide municipal bondholders with full and timely payment of principal and interest on the municipal debt obligation to the limit of the guarantee, in the event of defaults by the municipality.

Intended Use Plan - A document prepared each year by the State, which identifies the intended uses of the funds in the SRF and describes how those uses support the goals of the DWSRF.

Leveraging - The use of the capitalization grant as the security for the sale of State bonds. Leveraging does not include State financing arrangements in which repayment streams, rather than capitalization grant or ACH are used as the primary security for the bond issue.

Non-Compliance - Failure to satisfy the terms of the capitalization grant agreement, including unmet assurances, invalid certifications, or failure to manage the DWSRF in a financially sound manner.

Attachment B

Operating Agreement - An optional document filed with EPA Region I in which the State establishes the basic framework and procedures of the DWSRF that are not expected to change annually.

Payment/Payment Schedule - A payment is an action by EPA to increase the amount of funds available for cash draw in the Automated Clearing House. A payment is not a transfer of cash to the State, but only an authorization making funds available for transfer to the State when a cash draw request is submitted. A payment schedule, indicating the timing and size of the payments to be made, will be agreed upon by EPA and the State based on the State's projection of binding comments.

Refinancing - Purchase of a municipal debt obligation where the debt obligation was incurred after July 1, 1993.

Set-Aside - Non-project use of allotted State funds for a range of specific SDWA related activities identified in Section 1452, to encourage source water protection and other State drinking water program activities.

State Match - Funds equaling at least 20% of the amount of capitalization grants which the State must deposit into the DWSRF Fund. The State must also provide a 100% match if the State uses certain of the 1452 (g)(2) set-asides.

Substantial Completion – A water facility construction project is substantially complete at the point in time when all parties, the water system operator, water system's consulting engineer, contractor and DWSRF Program, agree that all functional components for which the facility was designed are installed and operating properly. At this point in time a punch list of items to be completed to fulfill all requirements of the construction contract documents will be developed and attached to a Substantial Completion document that has been signed by all parties to the contract. The estimated cost of the items on this list shall represent only 5% or less of the total cost for the construction of the project. All warrantees will be in effect at this time.

3



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between MAINE DEPARTMENT of HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES MAINE CENTER for DISEASE CONTROL and PREVENTION DRINKING WATER PROGRAM (DEPARTMENT)

and

MAINE MUNICIPAL BOND BANK (MMBB)

for

Administration of the Maine Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF)

I. Purpose

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to continue an agreement originally established between the Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention, Drinking Water Program (Department) and Maine Municipal Bond Bank (MMBB) on March 25, 1999, last amended on April 23, 2012. This agreement is intended to clearly describe responsibilities associated with the management and operation of the Maine Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF), established by Maine statute (30-A MRS § 6006-B).

II. Introduction/Background

The DWSRF is a special fund to provide financial assistance for the acquisition, design, planning, construction, replacement, enlargement, repair, protection or improvement of drinking water supplies, distribution, storage or treatment facilities required by the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 and amended in 1996 (SDWA).

Maine statute authorizes the MMBB to establish accounts and subaccounts within the DWSRF to segregate a portion or portions of the DWSRF as security for bonds issued by the MMBB for deposit in the fund and to be invested for the benefit of specified projects receiving financial assistance.

The Department prepares and certifies a project priority list to the MMBB of those community and nonprofit noncommunity public water system projects eligible for financing or assistance. Maine statute (30-A MRS § 6006-B (4)) requires the Department to consider the following factors in developing the priority list:

- A. Projects that address serious risks to public health;
- B. Projects necessary to ensure compliance with the SDWA;
- C. Projects to assist public water systems in need, on a per household basis, according to Maine's affordability criteria described in the Intended Use Plan (IUP); and
- D. Projects that meet factors used for developing the priority list and projects that are prepared to proceed to construction.

The Department must first certify to the MMBB that the project is eligible for immediate financing and listed on the priority list, before MMBB may grant financial assistance for a project. The Department may consider other factors, in addition to the required four factors above, for the priority list; however, the above four factors are required by law.

III. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The Department will:

- 1. Comply with its primacy obligations under the SDWA in accordance with oversight responsibilities for the DWSRF Program.
- 2. Serve as the Lead Administrator of the DWSRF.
- 3. Establish a Project Priority List on an annual basis for each Capitalization Grant applied for.
- 4. Manage all set-aside activities planned in the Intended Use Plan (IUP) and allowed by the DWSRF.
- 5. Prepare DWSRF Capitalization Grant Applications, Intended Use Plans, and Project Priority Lists, all United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) reviews and required reports, Infrastructure Needs Surveys, and the Operating Agreement.
- 6. Perform all environmental, engineering, and technical reviews and approvals required by the DWSRF Program.
- 7. Inspect all construction work in progress that is related to the DWSRF.
- 8. Ensure compliance with all EPA program requirements applicable to oversight of the DWSRF Program.
- 9. Review and approve all withdrawals from the DWSRF.
- 10. Report schedules, in conjunction with MMBB, to the EPA, that estimates payments to, and disbursements from, the DWSRF for each grant award.
- 11. Project, in conjunction with MMBB, any funding withdrawals on a quarterly basis.
- 12. Certify to the MMBB that any project to be financed is in conformance with all State and Federal laws relating to drinking water and all rules and regulations promulgated under those laws.
- 13. Act as the public contact for the State of Maine regarding all matters that relate to DWSRF activities.

- 14. Certify to the MMBB that a project applicant is eligible for immediate financing under Maine statute is on the Project Priority List, in accordance with 30-A MRS §§ 6006-B(4) and (5).
- 15. Cooperate with the MMBB in providing any necessary information to complete any annual reports or audits required.

B. MMBB will:

- 1. Serve as the Financial Administrator of the Fund to provide funding to the Department for purposes authorized by Maine statute (30-A MRS § 6006-B (2)), to include the mutually agreed upon percentage of the DWSRF program administration funds to the Department with 4% Set Aside funds.
- 2. Develop all loan agreements for DWSRF funding and approve any qualifying loan applications.
- 3. Set all loan interest rates and terms, including Disadvantaged Assistance determinations, after consulting with the Department.
- 4. Determine loan repayment schedules, after consulting with the Department regarding the useful life expectancy of public water system projects to be financed.
- 5. Manage all activities associated with securing and accounting of bond blend money for DWSRF-funded projects where blending will be involved.
- 6. Track all disbursements from, and receipts to, the DWSRF for all project and set-aside transactions;
- 7. Handle all payment requisitions in a timely and efficient manner, maintaining compliance with contractual agreements.
- 8. Invest all DWSRF funds prudently and in accordance with the EPA's DWSRF guidelines, Maine statutes, and the MMBB investment procedure/policy.
- 9. Maintain procedures for proper accounting and financial record keeping, in compliance with the SDWA.
- 10. Maintain files that contain the required documentation associated with payment requisitions for all DWSRF loans, which includes compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act and the Build America, Buy America Act as well as other contractual requirements included in the Contract General and Supplemental Conditions.
- 11. Provide all necessary DWSRF activity reports to the Department regarding the status of the DWSRF that includes, but is not limited to, loan commitment documentation.
- 12. Certify to the Department that it will cooperate with Department requests to provide: any information necessary to complete the Capitalization Grant Applications; all reports required by the EPA; and any required audits.
- 13. Certify that its accounting, audit, and fiscal procedures conform to Generally Acceptable Government Accounting Standards (GAGAS), which are guidelines for audits created by the Comptroller General the United States.
- 14. Reserve the right to reject any potential application on the basis of financial feasibility and/or total feasibility, after consultation with the Department.

15. Maintain separate accounts and expense withdrawals for each party's Administration Fee usage.

C. Both Parties will:

- 1. Notify the Governor of the State of Maine on an annual basis, the amount of the DWSRF anticipated for availability for the next fiscal year, in accordance with 30-A MRS § 5959 (2) (B-1).
- 2. Cooperate in the development of any rules, policies, procedures, or guidance materials necessary for the effective management of the DWSRF.
- 3. Assist each other by obtaining and sharing any and all necessary information from any applicant.
- 4. Coordinate the use and availability of any other programs, funds, and resources under their respective control, to assist in ensuring the effective and efficient operation of the DWSRF.
- 5. Cooperate with each other to correct any deficiency in the operation and management of the DWSRF which may be identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or become apparent as the result of any audits or day-to-day operations. Each party will be responsible for correcting errors or resolving shortcomings revealed by audits pertaining to that party's obligation under this agreement.
- 6. Use jointly the 4% Administrative Fee allowed from the total federal grant funds available per year, in accordance with 30-A MRS § 6006-B (2)(G).
- 7. Determine together whether excess administrative fee funds will be used, in excess of the mutually agreed upon percentage of the DWSRF program administration set-aside funds paid to the MMBB. Both parties agree to renegotiate these excess funds, should a need arise for a particular authorized use under 30-A MRS § 6006-B (2).

IV. Term of Agreement

This MOU will be effective from the date of the last signatory to December 31, 2028. The MOU may be amended or revoked at any time at the request of either party, in writing, with 30 days' notice to the other party.

V. Payment Terms

No payments are associated with this agreement.

VI. Confidentiality

To the extent that the services carried out under this Agreement involve the use, disclosure, access to, acquisition or maintenance of information that actually or reasonably could identify an individual or consumer receiving benefits or services from or through the Department ("Protected Information"), MMBB agrees to a) maintain the confidentiality and security of such Protected Information as required by applicable state and federal laws, rules, regulations and Department policy, b) contact the Department within 24 hours of a privacy or security incident that actually or potentially could be a breach of Protected Information and c)

cooperate with the Department in its investigation and any required reporting and notification of individuals regarding such incident involving Protected Information. To the extent that a breach of Protected Information is caused by MMBB or one of its subcontractors or agents, MMBB agrees to pay the cost of notification, as well as any financial costs and/or penalties incurred by the Department as a result of such breach.

VII. Signatures

Executive Director

For the Department of Health and Human Services:

Sara Gagné-Holmes Commissioner	_5-22-3625 Date
For Maine Municipal Bond Bank:	
DocuSigned by:	
teresea Hayes	5/28/2025 5:59 AM PD
Terry Hayes	Date



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING By and Between MAINE RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

DRINKING WATER PROGRAM
MAINE CENTER FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

For WATER QUALITY SPECIALIST, TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026

(Original Memorandum of Understanding established in 1998)

PURPOSE: A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for State Fiscal Year 2026 is hereby created by and between the Maine Rural Water Association (MRWA) and the Department of Health and Human Services (the Department), Maine CDC, Drinking Water Program (DWP). This memorandum sets forth the respective responsibilities in the operation of the water quality technical assistance programs established under the Maine Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Set-Asides provided by the 1996 Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), as outlined in the DWSRF Intended Use Plan and as required by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 6006-B Section 2. I.

The MOU recognizes MRWA as a stakeholder and a partner in the delivery of technical assistance to small public water systems (PWS). This MOU also recognizes that the DWP, the State primacy agency, administers the Set Asides to achieve the goal of insuring that PWS provide safe drinking water.

The Water Quality Specialist (WQS) Program is a State-wide technical assistance (TA) program designed to provide operational and compliance assistance to enhance the ability of public water systems to protect public health. The assistance is designed to include personalized, on-site outreach to educate system staff and improve the technical, managerial and financial capacity of the system.

OBJECTIVE: To provide personalized on-site technical assistance and education to promote compliance and increase technical, managerial, and financial capacity of public water system owners and operators. Targeted beneficiaries of the Program include approximately 1,700 Community (water systems that are not eligible under the USDA Circuit Rider Program), Non-transient Non-Community and Transient Public Water Systems (PWS).

In the event of a public water system emergency, a WQS can assist any water system with a population of up to 10,000. MRWA will notify the DWP that a WQS was sent to the water system for assistance within one (1) business day of the emergency.

SCOPE: This SOP applies to DWP and MRWA.

Procedure for Water Quality Specialist Program SOP ID: DWP0246
Maine Drinking Water Program

DEFINITIONS:

DHHS - Maine Department of Health and Human Services

DO – Designated Operator

DWP- Drinking Water Program

DWSRF- Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund

MCDC - Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention

MMBB- Maine Municipal Bond Bank

MRWA – Maine Rural Water Association

MOU- Memorandum of Understanding

PWS- Public Water System

PWSID - Public Water System Identification

RTCR - Revised Total Coliform Rule

SDWIS - Safe Drinking Water Information System

SFY - State Fiscal Year

WQS – Water Quality Specialist

DESCRIPTION OF MAINE RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION WATER QUALITY SPECALIST PROGRAM The WQS Program will consist of visits to a defined set of water systems by persons qualified to be a WQS and employed by MRWA. Each WQS will provide technical assistance to small PWS in the form of on-site system visits and off-site communications.

MRWA will ensure the availability of materials and equipment necessary to provide technical assistance. Certain tools are necessary to perform the tasks of a WQS. MRWA will provide equipment and expendable materials necessary to perform services and expected tasks (transportation, internet access, digital cameras, cell phones, computers, pH solution, DPD, leak detection equipment, pressure gauge, etc.). Administrative costs, salary and benefits are to be considered inclusive in the cost.

A. Water Quality Specialists must be and continue to be:

- 1. Water operators experienced with the operation of small water systems holding a current license issued by the Maine Board of Licensure of Water System Operators;
- 2. Knowledgeable of the Safe Drinking Water Act, DWP rules, industry standards for source water protection, security and emergency preparedness;
- 3. Trained in treatment processes, mechanical maintenance and distribution infrastructure operation and maintenance and
- 4. Competent and able to:
 - a. Provide education and training to PWS operators and owners and
 - b. Encourage PWS to be actively involved and trained on the subject of the assistance provided.
- 5. Professional and courteous in all behaviors because they are acting as representatives and extensions of the Drinking Water Program. As DWP representatives they are expected to follow DHHS policies and DWP procedures related to specific job tasks (e.g., sample collection). WQS will not be expected to perform in an enforcement capacity. WQS may be asked to confirm that actions have been completed or to assist a PWS in planning and executing a corrective action

RESPONSIBILTIES:

- A. MRWA and the DWP will work cooperatively to perform the following tasks:
 - 1. Schedule meetings, typically one per month, for training, identification of work priorities, program coordination and resolution of any issues.
 - 2. Review this MOU by May 1 for the upcoming State fiscal year.
 - 3. Develop a work plan by January 1 for the upcoming State fiscal year.

B. MRWA agrees to:

- 1. Respond to DWP and PWS requests for assistance in a timely manner.
- 2. Maintain and submit monthly visit summary, time logs and reports within fifteen days of the end of each month, detailing services provided. The visit summary must provide a clear and concise description of the WQS activity.
- 3. Submit detailed monthly invoices to DWP within 15 days of the end of the month for the previous month's services.

- 4. Provide the MRWA membership newsletter to the DWP.
- 5. Participate in appropriate training on DWP policies and procedures provided by DWP staff.
- 6. Attend Public Water System Inspector Meetings, as invited.

C. DWP agrees to:

- 1. Submit a work plan and budget to the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in order to secure the necessary funding from the DWSRF Set Asides.
- 2. Within fifteen business days of receipt of an invoice, forward MRWA's payment requests to the MMBB or return the invoice with changes requested.
- 3. Review monthly site visit summaries and invoices for accuracy and acceptability and ensure that work is progressing according to the work plan and within budget.
- 4. Provide data on PWSs as requested by MRWA.
- 5. Refer systems needing technical assistance to the WQS program.
- 6. Provide lists of systems or system types to include in DWP requested visits.
- 7. Establish technical assistance visit needs and priorities at the start of each State fiscal year.

DELIVERABLES: MRWA WQS will deliver on-site technical assistance visits as requested by DWP or a PWS. Visits are expected to be prompt and within a reasonable response time to the request. If a visit cannot be performed within a reasonable response time, MRWA will inform DWP so that other arrangements can be made to provide service to the water system. Reasonable response time varies according to the subject of the visit and must be assessed on a case-by-case basis.

A. Visit Expectations for WQS Personnel:

- 1. Provide education and training to PWS operators and owners as instructed by the DWP.
- 2. As soon as possible, report issues related to drinking water quality and overall system conditions that may pose an imminent risk to public health.
- 3. Refer questions concerning current compliance status, regulation or deregulation to DWP.
- 4. Review PWS contact information to update DWP records.
- 5. Identify system needs that warrant DWP assistance and refer as necessary.

B. Examples of Visits:

- 1. Emergency contacts as determined by either a PWS requests or a DWP requests, including boil water orders, leaks significantly affecting system operations and troubleshooting essential equipment failure. Communication is directly from DWP or PWS.
- 2. Assist systems with Level Assessments as requested by PWS or DWP.
- 3. Microbiological sample collection related to coliform rechecks and assessments and Ground Water Rule-triggered source water monitoring for transient water systems and other systems as determined by the DWP. This is further defined in the DWP Recheck Policy. Communication is through the DWP's Public Water System Inspection (PI) Team members.
- 4. If requested, new owner/ new system follow-up to review PWS requirements. This visit is a priority within the first monitoring period for the system. Topics to review during the visit include monitoring and reporting requirements, sampling techniques, treatment processes, source water protection and public health principles, appropriate actions to ensure water safety in an emergency, boil water order requirements and an assurance of available assistance by DWP, MRWA and other partners. Communication is through the DWP Data Management and Program Support Team through the New System Approval Process.
- 5. Assist in the collaboration between the Department of Education and the DWP. The WQS, acting upon the request of the DWP, may visit schools and offer technical assistance with Lead and Copper sampling protocol and post-sampling guidance including education and online resources. The WQS shall maintain monthly logs detailing assistance provided.
- 6. Contacts to transient surface water systems, as schedule allows. List is provided by the DWP.
- 7. Contacts to transient public water systems that operate continuous disinfection systems, as schedule allows. List is provided by the DWP.
- 8. Assistance to address recommendations or correct deficiencies found in a sanitary survey. Correction of deficiencies may be reported directly to PWS Inspector. WQS personnel are not expected to solely perform the task of correcting a deficiency, but to assist and educate the PWS representative during the completion of a tank. Requests to come from the DWP or PWS.

- a. PWS requests for assistance and actual on-site technical assistance may occur prior to a scheduled sanitary survey to help PWS prepare for sanitary survey.
- 9. Assist DWP compliance, field inspection, capacity development and enforcement staff to help systems return to compliance. Requests made by e-mail directly by DWP staff.
- Assist PWS in the timely completion of required documentation/or sampling. Requests to come from DWP or PWS.
 - a. Example: Synthetic Organic Compound (SOC) waiver applications, water quality parameters, nitrate samples, Public Notice requirements, Consumer Confidence Reports or monthly operating reports.
- 11. Requests from PWSs for assistance in the interpretation of laboratory results.
- 12. System improvement plans to improve water quality or maintain service. Assure that system knows that treatment changes must be performed according to DWP standards and approved by DWP prior to installation. Request to come DWP or PWS.
- 13. Newly installed process review for proper operation and reporting requirements. Requests to come from DWP or PWS.
 - a. Examples: visit disinfecting systems to review process, monitoring and reporting or ion exchange installations record keeping, reporting and maintenance.
- 14. Emergency preparedness and system vulnerability review and assistance.
- 15. Preparation of Emergency Response Plans.
- 16. Assistance finding a water leak. This is not intended to be a water system leak detection survey.
- 17. Wellhead protection education and assistance.
- 18. Assistance with seasonal systems start-up plans, and small system sample site plans.
- 19. Accompany PIs on Sanitary Surveys as requested.
- 20. Take PWS samples to lab if in the area. This is a lower priority, but authorized.
- C. Participate in the collaborative development and instruction of training sessions for PWSs, as requested by the DWP.

D. Not to be counted as site visits:

- 1. Contacts that are made specifically to promote MRWA membership, benefits, classes, or services.
- 2. Services conducted by WQS unrelated to this technical assistance program.

CONFIDENTIALITY

To the extent that the services carried out under this Agreement involve the use, disclosure, access to, acquisition or maintenance of information that actually or reasonably could identify an individual or consumer receiving benefits or services from or through the Department ("Protected Information"), MRWA agrees to a) maintain the confidentiality and security of such Protected Information as required by applicable State and federal laws, rules, regulations and Department policy, b) contact the Department within 24 hours of a privacy or security incident that actually or potentially could be a breach of Protected Information and c) cooperate with the Department in its investigation and any required reporting notification of individuals regarding such incident involving Protected Information. To the extent that a breach of Protected Information is caused by the MRWA or one of its subcontractors or agents, MRWA agrees to pay the cost of notification, as well as any financial costs and/or penalties incurred by the Department as a result of such breach.

FUNDING

Finding shall not exceed \$250,000 for FY 2025 (July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026).

Funding shall come from the Small Systems Technical Assistance Set Aside which provides up to 2% of the DWSRF Grant. Disbursement of funds will be made by the Maine Municipal Bond Bank upon approval by the DWP. Funding allocations are described in the DWSRF Intended Use Plan.

The DWP and MRWA agree to cooperate to correct any deficiency in meeting the terms of this MOU. Deficiencies may be identified by the US Environmental Protection Agency, the DWP or MRWA, as a result of any audits or day-to-day operators. Each party is responsible for correcting and improving upon their respective errors or shortcomings resulting from any audit.

TERM

This MOU will be effective from the date of the last signatory to December 31, 2028. The MOU may be amended or revoked at any time at the request of either party, in writing, with 30 days' notice to the other party.

In the event of a breach of individually identifiable information, data sharing may be suspended immediately pending investigation of the incident.

In the event of any conflicts between any federal or State statutory provision relating to the technical assistance set aside or its related activities and this Memorandum, the statutory language shall control. The failure of any portion of this Memorandum shall affect only that section of the memorandum.

APPROVALS

Executive Director

In witness wherof, the parties to this agreement have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be Executed by their duly authorized officers.

Sara Gagné-Holmes Commissioner	Date
For Maine Rural Water Association:	
Kirsten Hebert	(e 22 25

For the Department of Health and Human Services:

The following is a list of Environmental Cross-Cutting Agencies

Act or Law	Contact Information	Submittal description, Assistance sites.
 National Historic Preservation Act Archeological and Historic Preservation Act 1974, Public Law86-523 as amended Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment (Executive Order 11593) 	Kirk F. Mohney, SHPO and Director Maine Historic Preservation Commission 65 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333-0065 Phone 207-287-3811 kirk.mohney@maine.gov	Site location map, photos, known sites. http://www.maine.gov/mhpc https://www.maine.gov/mhpc/programs/project-review
 National Flood Insurance Act Flood Disaster Protection Act National Flood Insurance Reform Act Executive Order 11988: Floodplain Management 	Sue Baker, CFM, Program Coordinator Maine Floodplain Management Program Dept. of Agriculture, Conservation & Forestry 93 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0093 Phone 207- 287-8063 Sue.baker@maine.gov	Activity located on floodplain map Activity located on site location map Description of any activity in floodplain https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home https://www.maine.gov/dacf/flood/interagencyreview.shtml
Sole Source Aquifers (Islesboro, Matinicus, Monhegan, North Haven, and Vinalhaven Islands have SSAs)	John Hopeck, Senior Geologist Bureau of Land & Water Quality Dept. of Environmental Protection 17 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333-0017 Phone 207-215-4463 John.T.Hopeck@maine.gov	
Coastal Barriers Resources Act. Ocean beach and dune/coastal barrier areas.	Peter A. Slovinsky, Marine Geologist Maine Geological Survey Dept. Agriculture, Conservation, and Forestry 22 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0093 Phone 287-7173	Contact with MGS is required for projects in some coastal towns. https://www.maine.gov/dacf/mgs/explore/marrine/facts/barrier.htm

	Peter.A.Slovinsky@maine.gov	
Coastal Zone Management Act.	Erin Wilson, Federal Consistency	https://www.maine.gov/dmr/mcp/federal-
Coastal Zone Consistency	Coordinator	consistency-review/index.htm
	Maine Coastal Program	
	Dept. of Marine Resources	
	21 State House Station	
	Augusta, Maine 04333-0093 Phone	
	207-707-2324	
	Erin.Wilson@maine.gov	
Endangered Species Act	Mark Murray-Brown, ESA Section 7	https://www.fisheries.noaa.gov/topic/consulta
Consultation with NOAA Fisheries is	Coordinator	tions#endangered-species-act-consultations
required when any project or action	Greater Atlantic Regional Fisheries	
might affect an ESA-listed marine	Office	
species or designated critical marine	NOAA Fisheries	
habitat.	Phone 978-281-9306	
	Mark.Murray-Brown@noaa.gov	
Safe Drinking Water Act	McKenzie Parker, DWSRF Program	Coordination on the SDWA will be
	Manager	provided during the DWSRF
	Maine Drinking Water Program	environmental review process. Do not
	Dept. of Health and Human	contact as a cross cutter for DWSRF
	Services 11 State House Station	projects.
	Augusta, Maine 04333-0011 Phone	
	207-557-2255	https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/mecdc/environ
	McKenzie.Parker@maine.gov	mental-health/dwp/pws/rulesPolicies.shtml
Maine Endangered Species Act	John Perry, Environmental Review	https://www.maine.gov/ifw/fish-
Natural Resources Protection Act	Coordinator	wildlife/wildlife/environmental-
	Dept. of Inland Fisheries & Wildlife	review/process.html
	41 State House Station	
	Augusta, ME 04333	
	Phone 207-287-5254	
	John.Perry@maine.gov	
	IFWEnvironmentalreview@maine.gov	
Endangered Species Act	Shay White	See DWSRF Project Guide Appendix J
Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act	U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service	·

Migratory Bird Treaty Act	U S Dept. of Interior PO Box A East Orland, ME 04431 Phone 207-902-1568 Shay_White@fws.gov Wende Mahaney (Federal Projects & Permits, Atlantic	http://www.fws.gov/mainefieldoffice/Project %20reviews.html IPAC: https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/user/login Bald Eagle Nest Location: https://fws.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappvie wer/index.html?id=796b7baa18de43b49f911f
	Salmon ESA Consultation) Phone 207-902-1569 Wende_Mahaney@fws.gov Anna Harris, Project Leader Phone 207-902-1567	<u>e82dc4a0f1</u>
Submerged Lands Program Actions in tidal rivers, Great Ponds, international boundary rivers (St. Croix, St. John, St. Francis), and coastal regions (including islands) including dredging, filling, or placement of permanent structures.	Anna Harris@fws.gov Karen L. Foust, Planning & Research Bureau of Parks and Public Lands Dept. of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry 22 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0022 Phone 207-287-6128 Karen.L.Foust@maine.gov	https://www.maine.gov/dacf/parks/about/sub merged_lands.shtml
Wild and Scenic Rivers Act. Only applies to work in the vicinity of the Allagash Wilderness Waterway	Ron Hunt, Acting Director of Operations Bureau of Parks and Public Lands Dept. of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry 22 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333-0022 Phone 287-4717 Ron.Hunt@maine.gov	
 Clean Air Act USEPA Implementing Regulations Protection and Improvement of Air Law 	Eric Kennedy, Licensing and Compliance Bureau of Air Quality Dept. of Environmental Protection 17 State House Station	https://www.maine.gov/dep/air/

Rivers and Harbors Act (Section 10)	Augusta, ME 04333-0017 Phone 207-287-5412 Eric.kennedy@maine.gov U.S. Army Corp of Engineers	https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Missions/Re
 Clean Water Act (Section 404) Dredging, filling, discharging or constructing in navigable waters, wetland, or waterways. Maine General Permit 	442 Civic Center Drive, Suite 350 Augusta, ME 04330 Phone 623-8367 cenae-r-me@usace.army.mil	gulatory/ General Permit: https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/State-General-Permits/Maine-General-Permit/
Farmland Protection Policy Act	Michelle Webb, Farm Viability and Farmland Protection Specialist Division of Agricultural Resource Development Dept. of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry 28 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0028 Phone 207-287-2400 Michelle.T.Webb@maine.gov	https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/farmland_protection/index.shtml
Natural Resources Protection Act	Lisa St. Hilaire, Information Manager Maine Natural Areas Program Dept. of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry 177 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0093 Phone 207-287-8044 Lisa.St. Hilaire@maine.gov	https://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap/assistance/review.htm
 Solid Waste Disposal Act Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 	Division of Solid Waste Management Dept. of Environmental Protection 17 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0017 Phone 287-6115	

 Site Location Law. Projects in excess of 20 acres or structures covering more than 3 acres. Natural Resource Protection Act. Executive Order 11990 (wetlands). Dredging, filing, construction in, on, over, adjacent to, dune system, river pond, stream, brook, coastal and freshwater wetlands. Storm Water Management Law 	Mark Stebbins, Land Div. Director Division of Land Resource Regulation Dept. of Environmental Protection 11 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333-0017 Phone 207-592-4810 mark.n.stebbins@maine.gov	https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/sitelaw/index.html https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/nrpa/index.html https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/stormwater/storm.html
Protection and Improvement of Waters Law All overboard wastewater discharges from municipalities and industries.	Gregg Wood Bureau of Water Quality Dept. of Environmental Protection 17 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0017 Phone 207-287-7693 Gregg.Wood@maine.gov	https://www.maine.gov/dep/water/laws/index .html
 Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules Minimum Lot Size Rules Seasonal Conversion Rules Rules for Site Evaluators Private Cemetery Regulations 	Alex Pugh, Sr. Environmental Hydrogeologist Division of Environmental Health Dept. of Health and Human Services 11 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0011 Phone 207-592-2086 Alex.L.Pugh@maine.gov	
 Tribal-State Collaboration Act Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act 	Allison Binney, Interim Tribal Liaison Penobscot Nation abinney@akingump.com William Nicholas, Chief Passamaquoddy Tribe at Indian Township Chief.wnicholas@gmail.com	https://digitalcommons.colby.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?referer=&httpsredir=1&article=1016&context=atlas_docs

Corey Hinton, Interim Tribal Liaison Passamaquoddy Tribe at Pleasant Point mchinton@dwmlaw.com	
Zeke Crofton-MacDonald, Ambassador Houlton Band of Maliseet Indians ambassador@maliseets.com	
Corey Hinton, Interim Tribal Liaison Mi'kmaq Nation mchinton@dwmlaw.com	

Attachment F

Total PF: \$16,206,550

	2025 DRAFT DWSRF PRIMARY PROJECT LIST											
Total Points	Project Number	PWSID	Pop Served	Project Type	Equiv.	Name of Public Water System (PWS)	Project Title	Amount Requested	Amount SRF Funded	DAC	PF (%)	PF (\$)
PHASED (97)	2025-06	ME0090520	3,910	Treatment	No	City of Ellsworth Water Department	Ellsworth Water Treatment Facility	\$10,430,350	\$6,000,000	Yes	35%	\$2,100,000
PHASED (89	2025-10	ME0090560	1,595	Distribution	Yes	Fort Kent Water & Wastewater Department	Distribution System Improvements	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	Yes	35%	\$1,050,000
130	2025-01	ME0090150	2,723	Treatment	No	Berwick Water Department	*DESIGN: Water Treatment Plant Upgrades	\$2,679,250	\$600,000	Yes	35%	\$210,000
117	2025-23	ME0090920	2,763	Storage	No	Madawaska Water District	7th Avenue Water Tank Painting Project	\$656,000	\$656,000	Yes	55%	\$360,800
113	2025-35	ME0091550	1,040	Distribution	Yes	Vinalhaven Water District	Main Street Water Main Replacement	\$1,422,150	\$1,423,000	Yes	35%	\$498,050
108	2025-14	ME0090700	4,750	Distribution	Yes	Houlton Water Company	HWC Phase 2 Water Main Replacement	\$2,686,600	\$2,687,000	Yes	25%	\$671,750
107	2025-34	ME0091550	1,040	Treatment	No	Vinalhaven Water District	DBP Mitigation	\$946,875	\$947,000	Yes	35%	\$331,450
105	2025-32	ME0004295	75	Treatment	No	Squire Court Mobile Home Park	New Pump Station	\$587,820	\$588,000	Yes	80%	\$470,400
103	2025-29	ME0091279	3,083	Distribution	Yes	Pittsfield Water Department	Pittsfield Library Street Water Main Replacement	\$1,500,000	\$1,500,000	Yes	25%	\$375,000
103	2025-31	ME0091470	3,575	Source	No	South Berwick Water District	Agamenticus Supply Redundancy	\$410,244	\$411,000	No	0%	\$0
102	2025-28	ME0091278	3,083	Distribution	Yes	Pittsfield Water Department	Pittsfield Birchwood Terrace Water Main Replacement	\$460,000	\$460,000	Yes	25%	\$115,000
98	2025-19	ME0090860	3,055	Distribution	Yes	Lincoln Water District	Mohawk Road Water Main Replacement	\$2,037,120	\$2,038,000	Yes	35%	\$713,300
92	2025-13	ME0090650	2,190	Distribution	Yes	Hallowell Water District	*DESIGN: Hallowell Water Street Water Main Replacement	\$2,273,147	\$100,000	Yes	25%	\$25,000
92	2025-30	ME0091310	5,743	Distribution	Yes	Presque Isle Utilities District	State Street Transmission Main Replacement	\$5,202,005	\$5,203,000	Yes	35%	\$1,821,050
91	2025-02	ME0090200	8,958	Distribution	No	Boothbay Region Water District	Southport Year-Round Water Main	\$1,432,500	\$1,433,000	Yes	70%	\$1,003,100
91	2025-17	ME0090750	22,060	Distribution	Yes	Kennebec Water District	Sanger Avenue & Boutelle Avenue Water Main Improvements	\$4,216,750	\$4,217,000	Yes	35%	\$1,475,950
91	2025-20	ME0090880	2,950	Distribution	Yes	Livermore Falls Water District	Rte.17 Full Reconstruction	\$3,000,000	\$3,000,000	Yes	35%	\$787,500
90	2025-21	ME0090890	440	Distribution	Yes	Long Pond Water District	East Side Road Water Main @ MDOT Culverts	\$225,000	\$225,000	Yes	70%	\$157,500
86	2025-27	ME0091280	3,083	Distribution	Yes	Pittsfield Water Department	*DESIGN: Pittsfield Main Street Water Main Replacement	\$9,860,000	\$800,000	Yes	25%	\$200,000
86	2025-33	ME0090120	4,625	Distribution	Yes	Town of Bar Harbor – Water Division	Glen Mary and Shannon Roads Utility Upgrades and Roadway Recc	\$2,340,000	\$2,340,000	Yes	35%	\$819,000
83	2025-09	ME0090440	2,328	Distribution	Yes	Dexter Utility District	*DESIGN: Grove Street Water Main Replacement Project	\$2,500,000	\$140,000	Yes	35%	\$49,000
83	2025-25	ME0091160	625	Distribution	Yes	North Jay Water District	Route 4 Replacement of Main Line	\$6,373,100	\$6,374,000	Yes	25%	\$1,593,500
82	2025-22	ME0090900	1,680	Distribution	Yes	Lubec Water District	*DESIGN: Lubec Water System Improvements	\$5,000,000	\$720,000	Yes	35%	\$252,000
81	2025-04	ME0090320	4,000	Distribution	Yes	Caribou Utilities District	Aroostook River Crossing Project	\$2,191,700	\$2,192,000	Yes	35%	\$767,200

PHASED: Prior year award split across multiple funding years

DAC: Disadvantaged Community PF: Principal Forgiveness Equiv.: Equivalency Project (BABA applies) 2025 Primary Project List Total Funded: \$47,054,000 Total PF: \$15,846,550

^{*}DESIGN: Projects that ranked high enough to make the primary list but indicated construction start dates beyond 2025 will be allocated funds for preliminary expenses and engineering as provided in project budget.

These projects will need to reapply for construction funds in subsequent years if additional funding is still needed.

	VERY SMALL PWS COMPLIANCE LOAN FUND								
N/A	VSPWSCL	<100	Comm./Non-Profit Non-Comm.	Very Small PWS Compliance Loans	\$360,000	100%	\$360,000		
	EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION LOAN FUND								
N/A	EMERGENCY	N/A	Comm./Non-Profit Non-Comm.	Emergency Construction Loans	\$250,000	0%	\$0		
	CONSOLIDATION GRANT FUND								
N/A	CONSOL.	N/A	Comm./Non-Profit Non-Comm.	Consolidation Grants	\$200,000	100%	\$200,000		

Total 2025 Primary Project List Funding: \$47,864,000

2025 DWSRF PRIMARY PROJECT LIST PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS

2025-06: City of Ellsworth Water Department – Water Treatment Facility

This project involves the design and construction of a new water treatment plant on the site of the existing treatment plant adjacent to Branch Lake. The ultimate scope of this project is largely dependent on the selected treatment methods, which will be determined during a conceptual engineering phase that is ongoing. The construction of the new facility onsite will allow the existing plant to operate with minimal interruption during construction. The result will provide the City of Ellsworth with a new, reliable treatment system that will meet the growing demands associated with current economic development that has been occurring in the City since the relocation of a significant component of The Jackson Laboratory operations in the last several years.

2025-10: Fort Kent Water & Wastewater Dept. – Route 1 Distribution System Improvements

This project includes Route 1 transmission main replacement and Route 1 dual main consolidation. The Route 1 transmission main replacement includes replacing approximately 5,900 feet of deteriorated 10-inch asbestos cement (AC) pipe with new 12-inch ductile iron pipe on Route 1 from the well pump houses on Pump House Road to Northern Maine Medical Center. Route 1 Dual Main Consolidation includes replacing two parallel 6-inch cast iron water mains with approximately 2,900 feet of 12-inch ductile iron water main on Route 1 from Northern Maine Medical Center to Cannan Street.

2025-01: Berwick Water Department – Design: Water Treatment Plant Upgrades

This project involves the implementation of water treatment plant upgrades to treat for manganese removal and replace the current backwash recycling pretreatment system. There will also be upgrades to chemical feed systems, water quality monitoring analysis, instrumentation, and the valve actuator. These treatment facility upgrades are required to address seasonally high levels of manganese in the raw water supply (>0.3 mg/l). The project will implement construction of infrastructure and chemical feed for a permanganate system to be utilized seasonally with the Micfloc process to remove naturally occurring manganese in the Salmon Falls River to levels below 0.05 mg/l.

2025-23: Madawaska Water District - 7th Avenue Water Tank Painting Project

This project involves the completion of interior and exterior coating replacement of the system's 500,000-gallon water storage tank. It also includes the replacement of the tank's vent, ladder, and overflow, and the addition of a splash pad, and a fence around the tank. The tank was last painted in 1985, and the coating system is failing with corrosion evident on the exterior and interior of the tank per the most recent tank inspection reports. In addition, the overflow does not extend to the ground and there is no splash pad which can lead to further erosion, there is no fall protection

on the current ladder which is now required by OSHA, and the facility is not fenced, with an ATV trail that runs immediately adjacent to the tank. The project will bring the tank into compliance for safety and security and will remove all corrosion and recoat the tank for its continued service for many years to come.

2025-35: Vinalhaven Water District - Main Street Water Main Replacement

The proposed project will replace approximately 900 feet of existing 10-inch unlined cast iron main installed in 1908 with 12-inch cement lined ductile iron pipe on Main Street in Vinalhaven. The project extends from High Street to Water Street and includes a 140-foot bridge crossing. The project will also include the replacement of services and hydrants within the project area. The 10-inch water main on Main Street is the single connection between the west and east side of the island. The pipeline has been identified in the master plan, which includes replacement of the bridge crossing due to the condition of the brackets and the age and criticality of the pipe. Additionally, the project would seek to improve the current water main alignment to provide 10 feet of horizontal separation between water and sewer throughout the project area. The project received funding in 2020 but significant inflationary cost to materials, and ferry and mobilization costs have resulted in a funding shortage.

2025-14: Houlton Water Company - HWC Phase 2 Water Main Replacement

The work included in this request is the second phase of a 3-phase project to improve flow and reliability to the airport zone in the Houlton Water Company system. Phase 2 includes the replacement of approximately 6,600 feet of 10-inch AC water main with 12-inch cement lined ductile iron water main. The transmission main runs from the White settlement pump station to the Reservoir Hill Water Storage Tank. The project will include relocating a short segment of water main from across private property into the road right-of-way on Reservoir Hill Road. The pipeline between White Settlement Road pump station and Reservoir Hill water storage tank is constructed of AC pipe and has experienced multiple failures in recent years. The existing pipeline has reached the end of its useful design life and will likely see significant additional pipeline failures going forward. Replacement of the pipe also eliminates potential health risks associated with aging asbestos pipe. To minimize project cost, the new water main is designed to be installed parallel and adjacent to the existing pipeline, leaving the existing pipe in service until the completion of the replacement pipeline.

2025-34: Vinalhaven Water District – DBP Mitigation

The purpose of the project is to find both short- and long-term mitigation solutions for disinfection byproducts (DBP) for the Vinalhaven Water District (VHWD). VHWD has been out of compliance with DBPs since quarter 3 of 2023, raising health concerns among customers and DWP. This project has two components: The first component is to develop and implement a short-term mitigation strategy for DBPs. This portion of the project will include engineering support, purchase and installation of all necessary equipment, piloting, and related water quality testing and analysis. The second component of the project will be to develop a long-term DBP mitigation solution. This solution consists of extensive review and planning of a new conventional treatment plant. Significant engineering support will be needed to assist with an

alternatives analysis completion, piloting durations and special investigations, including land survey and laser scanning, geotechnical investigation and pipeline inspection of existing transmission main.

2025-32: Squire Court Mobile Home Park – New Pump Station

The two pump stations at Squire Court Mobile Home Park are in a dilapidated state and are at risk of causing contamination. The structures are rotten and are too small for the equipment that is necessary to operate the system properly. The pump houses do not provide for a safe work environment in their current condition. The proposal is to replace both pump houses with new structures and some new equipment. The operator of the system has expressed concern that the buildings and some of the equipment are not adequate for maintaining compliance and hinder the ability to provide reliable water service. Due to the condition, age and size of the existing structures, it is not feasible nor financially responsible to try to repair the old buildings and the contents.

2025-29: Pittsfield Water Department – Pittsfield Library Street Water Main Replacement

This project will upgrade approximately 1,000 feet of water line on Library Street. This line is old 4-inch and 6-inch cast iron and is undersized. Its exact age is unknown, but it is believed to have been in service for over a century. This pipe has leaked several times in recent years causing expensive emergency repairs. The water main is 6-inch diameter cast iron and has had multiple failures. The water line is at the end of its useful life and should be replaced. This is adjacent to and serves the downtown area in Pittsfield. As this line has now leaked several times, there is a risk of contamination to the public due to pressure drop during failures. The best feasible alternative is to replace this main in the same general area as the existing main.

2025-31: South Berwick Water District – Agamenticus Supply Redundancy Resiliency, and Infrastructure Renewal Project:

This project plans to add a redundant small-scale shallow well point system, with the same existing system design, to South Berwick Water District's (SBWD) aquifer for supply redundancy, resiliency, and rehabilitation. This addition is recommended by their Caswell Groundwater Source Exploration Report. SBWD also plans to restore the pump station building, electrical and pumping systems, and rehabilitate the building's small internal holding tank. These upgrades are necessary because the existing Agamenticus shallow well point system installed in the late 1960s to early 1970s has been decreasing in withdrawal capacity for some time. Due to the failure of multiple system isolation valves, routine rehabilitation of the system can no longer be performed. This redundancy project is believed to be the most realistic, easily feasible, and low-cost option to restore and potentially increase water capacity at this site.

2025-28: Pittsfield Water Department – Pittsfield Birchwood Terrace Water Main Replacement

This project will upgrade the water line on Birchwood Terrace, extending from Hamilton Terrace to Somerset Avenue. This line is 8-inch diameter AC and has leaked many times in recent years,

which has been an ongoing issue due to substandard materials of construction. The water line is at the end of its useful life and needs to be replaced. This is a critical line that feeds multiple roads in a large residential subdivision. Construction is planned to occur in conjunction with underground communication, electrical, sewer, drainage, and roadway improvements. The design of this water main upgrade was funded previously through DWSRF. The Town has also received CWSRF funds for the sewer work. Design of the water line replacement and the other utility upgrades in the same area is 70% complete. The plans have been reviewed with the Town and project neighbors, and the project will be ready to bid upon completion of the specifications.

2025-19: Lincoln Water District - Mohawk Road Water Main Replacement

The project involves the replacement of approximately 5,800 feet of old 8-inch unlined cast iron main with new cement lined ductile iron. Also included are gate valves, 4 hydrants and approximately 50 water services. The existing main on Mohawk Road is old, unlined cast iron. It is a dead-end line serving a residential area and has low usage. Therefore, it is difficult to maintain chlorine residual at the end of the line. The Lincoln Water District is in full compliance with all water regulations but wishes to alleviate the potential concern with biofilms on the unlined cast iron pipe which create significant chlorine demand. New services will be installed and all private services that are found to be lead or galvanized downstream of lead components will be replaced.

2025-13: Hallowell Water District – Design: Hallowell Water Street Water Main Replacement

Hallowell Water District (HWD) has seen significant deterioration to the old cast iron water main on Water Street (Route 201) in Hallowell. This section of 6-inch and 8-inch, 100+ year-old cast iron water main, is significantly undersized for adequate supply for the downtown area in Hallowell. This pipe segment is undersized, at the end of its design life, and prone to water quality concerns. HWD completed an updated comprehensive facilities evaluation in 2023 which indicated this pipe segment was a high priority for. The project consists of installation of approximately 3,400 feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipe on Water Street (Route 201) in two segments from Greenville Street to Temple Street for the first segment and between Hinkley Road and North Street for the second segment. The project includes new connections to five side streets and approximately 40 water service connections. The project improvements included in this application request are proposed to be contracted with a MaineDOT road reconstruction project.

2025-30: Presque Isle Utilities District – State Street Transmission Main Replacement

The project consists of replacing approximately 4,500 feet of 12-inch and 14-inch water main along with hydrants, valves, and services. This transmission main is utilized as the primary single connection to the District's two water storage reservoirs from the water treatment plant. The existing transmission main was installed in 1911, which makes it over 114 years old and well beyond the calculated and expected useful life (100 year) of a pipe so critically important to the functional day-to-day operation of a water system. Failure of this fragile infrastructure

system because of breakage due to age, ground shift, frost pressures, or other influences would be catastrophic in many regards, including the obvious loss of water to most if not all the users in Presque Isle as well as the inability to sustain firefighting abilities. In addition to the immediate loss of water and the indeterminate amount of time required to repair the pipeline, the potential exists for extensive erosion of roadways, other utilities such as power and communications, and flooding of residences and businesses. This project must be undertaken and completed before failure becomes the catalyst for action.

2025-02: Boothbay Region Water District – Southport Year-Round Water Main

This project will replace approximately 7,500 feet of seasonal water mains along Hendrick's Hill Road in Southport with buried year-round water mains. Work will include services to the right-of-way line and new hydrants. The water main will have a minimum inside diameter of 12-inches. New service lines will be buried in the Right-of-way where they will be connected to the existing seasonal services until private landowners can upgrade their services. Southport Island is primarily served by seasonal water mains, but there are many year-round residents and commercial properties. These properties get their water from private wells during the winter months. Some of these wells have experienced saltwater intrusion contamination in recent years, and a sea level rise of over 5 feet is expected in the next 50 years, putting more of these wells at risk of saltwater intrusion. This project is intended to provide community-based year-round water services to the region.

2025-17: Kennebec Water District – Sanger Avenue & Boutelle Avenue Water Main Improvements

This project seeks to replace approximately 4,300 feet of existing 6-inch and 740 feet of 8-inch cast iron water main on Sanger Avenue, Boutelle Avenue and Colonial Street with 8-inch ductile iron water main. Fire hydrants, service lines and main line valves will also be replaced within the project area. The existing water mains on Sanger and Boutelle Avenues are more than 100 years old with a significant portion (~750 feet) more than 120 years old. The main on Colonial Street is nearly 100 years old. There have been nine main breaks on these three streets in the past 30 years, causing traffic disruptions and unplanned water outages for many customers. In addition to the poor physical condition of the water mains proposed for replacement, the water mains are undersized for the water demands of the heavily clustered development along Sanger Avenue and Boutelle Avenue. Upsizing the existing 6-inch water mains to 8-inches will help to improve the hydraulics of the system and capacity of water available to fight fires in the neighborhood.

2025-20: Livermore Falls Water District – Rte. 17 Full Reconstruction

The project will allow Livermore Falls Water District (LFWD) to replace aging infrastructure from 1899 that has reached the end of its useful life and is at risk of causing contamination. This includes new mains, valves, hydrants, and services on Main Street, Depot Street, Park Street, Baldwin Street, Pleasant Street, Water Street, and Wheeler Street. Replacement on these Streets will allow the district to increase fire protection through the downtown business district as well as eliminate a water line from under one of three railroad crossings. The project will be completed in coordination with the MDOT roadway improvement project and the Town of

Livermore Falls Sewer Department's sewer main replacement project to maximize economies of scale. The work will assist the district with EPA's push to get the Lead Out and it will improve water quality and fire protection throughout the project area.

2025-21: Long Pond Water District – East Side Road Water Main at MDOT Culverts

This project includes the replacement of 225 feet of antiquated, undersized water main. The new main will be 12-inch water main, and this work area includes one service connection replacement. The existing piping passes through two very old granite block culverts crossing Maine DOT Route 185. The pipes are exposed in the bottom of these old block structures. Maine DOT will be replacing both culverts, and the water mains through them must be relocated (Maine DOT Project no. 27687.00). This project will replace both culverts and the old and undersized pipe between the culverts.

2025-27: Pittsfield Water Department – Design: Pittsfield Main Street Water Main Replacement

This project will upgrade approximately 6,000 feet of water line on Main Street to 12-inch diameter cement lined ductile iron pipe. The current cast iron line is over a century old, is undersized, and is at the end of its useful life. This area is part of a larger joint project with MaineDOT Village Partnership Initiative (VPI). This VPI project is going to extend from the area known as Grove Hill to Stinson Street. The water main has already been partially renewed in this area. This project would renew all the remaining water main within the MaineDOT scope that has not been previously replaced. This project is located within the commercial downtown area in Pittsfield. As the MaineDOT project will be a full surface restoration combined with multimodal transportation design and beautification, these water main upgrades will benefit the Town by preventing the need for emergency repairs that could occur on an extremely old main disturbed by construction activities. The Town has also secured funding for the renewal of the older part of the sewer main as needed, making this a multi-utility project.

2025-33: Town of Bar Harbor - Water Division - Glen Mary and Shannon Roads Main Replacement

The project includes upgrading approximately 2,700 feet of undersized galvanized and AC water lines. New water services, valves, and fire hydrants will be installed. The funding requested will be for the water improvements planned to take place in conjunction with the larger project. The current water mains along Glen Mary and Shannon Road consist of approximately 1,200 feet of 3-inch galvanized water mains, and 1,500 feet of 10-inch diameter AC water mains. These mains are believed to be over 50 years old and are contributing to poor water quality, pressure, and fire protection in this densely-populated area. Flows are inadequate for domestic use due to the small diameter of the lines and obsolete galvanized material present. Other utility upgrades are taking place in this area and with the brittle water main materials present, there is a high probability of damage to the existing water pipes. Replacing all the utilities prior to rebuilding the road will be the most cost-effective project for the ratepayers and will improve water quality and reliability.

2025-09: Dexter Utility District - Design: Grove Street Water Main Replacement Project

This project will upgrade Dexter Utility District's aging water infrastructure along Grove Street, extending from the water treatment plant to Main Street. The improvements include the installation of approximately 2,100 feet of new 12-inch diameter water main and 2,200 feet of 8-inch diameter water main. As part of the work, hydrants and service connections will also be replaced. The existing Grove Street water main consists of a patchwork of 4-inch cast iron pipe from 1919 and 6-inch cast iron pipe from 1910, both with leaded joints and possibly lead goosenecks. Additionally, the District has identified outdated galvanized iron service lines in the area. These pipes are undersized, in deteriorating condition, and have been a frequent source of leaks over the years. The southern section of the project area includes numerous abandoned service lines that once supplied now-defunct mills, with many of their exact locations unknown. This project aims to identify and eliminate obsolete lines, improve system reliability, and significantly reduce water loss.

2025-25: North Jay Water District – Route 4 Replacement of Main Line

This project will replace the aging AC Transite water main that supplies the entire North Jay Water District system. The work includes installing new 8-inch ductile iron and 10-inch HDPE pipe, replacing all water services along Route 4, and upgrading all fire hydrants. Additionally, a system loop will be created on Barbridge Drive to enhance water circulation and quality. The existing AC main, nearing the end of its approximately 100-year lifespan, has experienced around 15 breaks over the past 15 years. Replacing it will significantly improve system reliability and water quality by reducing the risk of main breaks and associated boil water advisories.

2025-22: Lubec Water District – Design: Lubec Water System Improvements

The Lubec Water District is planning to replace approximately 15,000 feet of cast iron water main and 3,000 feet of service lines along North Lubec Road, which supplies drinking water to the entire North Lubec area. Originally installed in 1901, the existing main includes leaded joints that pose a health risk and is well beyond its useful life. The project will install new 8-inch ductile iron pipe, replace inoperable valves, upgrade existing hydrants, and add new hydrants where needed. Over time, internal corrosion and tuberculation have reduced flow capacity, limiting both domestic service and fire protection. This project will restore system performance, improve water quality, and eliminate obsolete and potentially hazardous materials. The District is seeking Rural Development funding as part of the effort to complete the full system upgrade.

2025-04: Caribou Utilities District – Aroostook River Crossing Project

This project will construct a redundant water main across the Aroostook River from River Road to Limestone Street with a new 12-inch ductile iron water main and extend the water main along Limestone Street to connect to the new River crossing. Total length of new pipe 2,450 feet. This project creates redundancy in the District's most critical piping and creates a vital piping loop

around the north part of the system. The District currently has just one river crossing to convey water from the wells on one side of the river to 100% of its customers located on the opposite side of the river.

	2025 DRAFT DWSRF BACKUP PROJECT LIST											
Total Points	Project Number	PWSID	Pop Served	Project Type	Equiv.	Name of Public Water System (PWS)	Project Title	Amount Requested	Amount Eligible for Funding	DAC	PF (%)	PF (\$)
78	2025-18	ME0090560	1,595	Distribution	Yes	Fort Kent Water and Wastewater Depart.	Highland Avenue Water System Improvements	\$2,980,510	\$2,981,000	Yes	25%	\$745,250
76	2025-11	ME0090860	3,055	Distribution	Yes	Lincoln Water District	Katahdin Ave., Spring St. and Grindle St. Water Main Replacement Project	\$1,293,416	\$1,294,000	Yes	35%	\$452,900
72	2025-07	ME0090350	1,035	Distribution	Yes	Clinton Water District	Clinton Water Transmission Main Improvements	\$697,910	\$698,000	No	35%	\$244,300
71	2025-15	ME0090740	863	Distribution	Yes	Jay Village Water District	Jay Village Main Street Water Main Replacement	\$3,300,000	\$3,300,000	No	0%	\$0
71	2025-16	ME0090750	22,060	Treatment	No	Kennebec Water District	DESIGN: Water Treatment Plant Lagoon Effluent System Upgrades	\$2,763,310	\$2,764,000	Yes	0%	\$0
67	2025-24	ME0090920	2,763	Distribution	Yes	Madawaska Water District	Customer Meter Replacement Project	\$156,348	\$157,000	Yes	70%	\$109,900
59	2025-26	ME0090510	2,125	Other	Yes	Passamaquoddy Water District	New Control Panel	\$550,000	\$550,000	Yes	55%	\$302,500
42	2025-03	ME0090310	293	Other	Yes	Canton Water District	Canton Meter Replacement Project	\$223,816	\$224,000	Yes	35%	\$78,400
0**	2025-05	ME0001006	100	Treatment	Yes	Charter Oaks Village Cooperative	Charter Oaks Water Distribution and Treatment Improvements	\$1,337,785	\$1,338,000	Yes	80%	\$1,070,400
0**	2025-36	ME0007009	150	Distribution	Yes	Wardtown Park	Wardtown Distribution and Treatment Improvements	\$2,774,291	\$2,775,000	Yes	80%	\$2,220,000

DAC: Disadvantaged Community

PF: Principal Forgiveness

2025 Backup Project List Total Amount Eligible for Funding: \$16,081,000 Total PF: \$5,223,650

Equiv.: Equivalency Project (BABA applies)

^{*}DESIGN: Projects that indicated construction start dates beyond 2025 will be allocated funds for preliminary expenses and engineering as provided in project budget **IF** they make it on to the primary project list. These projects should reapply for construction funds in subsequent years if additional funding is still needed.

^{0**:} Previously awarded funds adequate to cover preliminary and engineering expenses in 2024 and indicated construction start date beyond 2025. PWSs should reapply for construction funds in 2026 funding cycle if additional funding is still needed.

Attachment H

				2022-2025 Rolling IIJA-EC	Project List				
Project Number	PWSID	Pop Served Project Type	Equiv. Project	Name of Public Water System (PWS)	Project Title	Total Project Budget	Total Funding	PF (%)	Status
	ME0090700								
2022-35EC	ME0092319	4735 + 140 Consolidation	Yes	Houlton Water Company / Houlton Mobile Home Park	Water Main Extension	\$1,686,000	\$1,569,386	100%	Complete
2022-100EC	ME0090260	17,943 Planning	Yes	Brunswick Topsham WD	Jordan Ave Wellfield PFAS Pilot	\$463,978	\$463,978	100%	Complete
2022-101EC	ME0090760	35663 Treatment	Yes	KKW WD	Media Replacement	\$165,000	\$165,000	100%	Complete
		Treatment/							
2022-107EC	ME0300642	300 Consolidation	Yes	Unity College - Wood Hall	PFAS Treatment and PWS Interconnect	\$200,000	\$120,815	100%	Complete
2022-108EC	ME0095010	65 Treatment	Yes	The Meadows	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$26,982	100%	Complete
2022-109EC	ME0090615	60 Treatment	Yes	Sunny Gables-Glenburn Housing	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$57,671	100%	Complete
2022-118EC	ME0090060	2,085 Treatment	Yes	Fryeburg Water Company	Temporary PFAS Water Treatment Facility	\$249,000	\$249,000	100%	Complete
	ME0008778								
	ME0000147								
	ME0093804	Treatment/		MSAD 6 Bonny Eagle MS, Bonny Eagle HS, Hollis Center,					
2022-119EC	ME0000304	2,410 Source	Yes	Frank Jewett PFAS	PFAS Treatment, and New Source	\$1,010,000	\$1,010,000	100%	In-Progress
2022-120EC	ME0000266	528 Treatment	Yes	Glenburn Elem. School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$25,127	100%	Complete
2022-121EC	ME0110642	78 Treatment	Yes	Unity College - Unity #3	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$27,557	100%	Complete
2022-122EC	ME0000642	25 Treatment	Yes	Unity College #642	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$24,348	100%	Complete
2022-123EC	ME0094924	150 Treatment	Yes	Unity Community Ctr For Performing Arts	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	Dropped?
2022-124EC	ME0007367	218 Consolidation	Yes	Pine Cone Mobile Homes CT #1 / Brewer Water Dept.	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$66,245	100%	Complete
2022-126EC	ME0000168	243 Treatment	Yes	RSU 87 Caravel Middle School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$26,292	100%	Complete
2022-128EC	ME0000099	319 Treatment	Yes	MSU 93 Blue Hill Consolidated School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$26,058	100%	Complete
	ME0109306								
	ME0009306	Treatment/							
2022-129EC	ME0209306	487 Consolidation	Yes	Washington Academy	PFAS Treatment and Consolidation	\$727,200	\$727,200	100%	In-Progress
2022-130EC	ME0000624	166 Treatment	Yes	Surry Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$23,738	100%	Complete
2022-131EC	ME0000185	40 Source	Yes	Chebeague Island School	Replacement Water Supply	\$101,000	\$101,000	100%	In-Progress
	ME0090060			•					In-Progress
2023-26EC	IVIEUU9UU6U	2,085 Treatment	Yes	Fryeburg Water Company	Permanent PFAS Water Treatment Facility	\$2,776,000	\$751,000	100%	III-Progress
2022 10050	N4E0002402	100 Caraalidatiaa	V	The Meadows at Fieldstone Landing / Kennebec Water	DEAC Consolidation with WAVD	ć 400 000	¢433.000	1000/	In Dunnan
2023-100EC	ME0092482	100 Consolidation	Yes	District	PFAS Consolidation with KWD	\$480,000	\$432,000	100%	In-Progress
2023-101EC	ME0090010	168 Treatment	Yes	Addison Point Water District	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$47,507	100%	Complete
2023-102EC	ME0094508	550 Treatment	Yes	Hermon High School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$76,420	\$76,420	100%	Complete
2023-103EC	ME0000288	219 Treatment	Yes	Hancock Grammer School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$26,986	100%	Complete
2023-105EC,	ME0000301	AFA Tooloo		AMCAD 70 Hard day 51 years of Cabrad 6 High Cabrad	Constitution of Constitution	ć420.000	6420.227	4000/	6
2023-104EC	ME0093837	451 Treatment	Yes	MSAD 70 Hodgdon Elementary School & High School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$120,000	\$128,237	100%	Complete
2023-107EC	ME0000945	78 Treatment	Yes	Chewonki Foundation #1	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$41,500	100%	Complete
2023-110EC	ME0002577	75 Treatment	Yes	Windswept Estates MH Park	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$65,954	100%	Complete
2023-112EC	ME0009728	816 Treatment	Yes	RSU 38 Maranacook Community School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$42,886	100%	Complete
2023-113EC	ME0008636	117 Treatment	Yes	RSU 38 Mt Vernon Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$34,986	100%	Complete
2023-114EC	ME0092110	60 Treatment	Yes	Blue Hill Terrace	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$16,807	100%	Complete
2023-115EC	ME0003837	700 Treatment	Yes	MSAD 61 Lake Region High School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$45,044	100%	Complete
2023-117EC	ME0092669	60 Treatment	Yes	Ninny's House Child Care	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$5,812	100%	Complete
2023-118EC	ME0091055	97 Treatment	Yes	Narraguaugus Estates	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$56,583	100%	Complete
2023-119EC	ME0018559	340 Treatment	Yes	RSU 57 Line Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$226,530	\$226,530	100%	In-Progress
2023-120EC	ME0012826	325 Treatment	Yes	RSU 57 Lyman Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2023-122EC	ME0000585	200 Treatment	Yes	RSU 57 Shapleigh Memorial School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2023-124EC	ME0092345	420 Treatment	Yes	RSU 56 Dirigo Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$45,889	100%	Complete
2023-125EC	ME0000437	170 Treatment	Yes	AOS 93 Nobleboro Central School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$36,580	100%	Complete
2023-126EC	ME0000175	212 Treatment	Yes	RSU 18 China Middle School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2023-127EC	ME0094729	280 Treatment	Yes	Raymond Elementary School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
				Coastal Maine Botanical Gardens / Boothbay Regional Wat	er				
2023-128EC	ME0094811	110 Consolidation	Yes	District	Barter's Island Road Water Main Extension	\$4,586,000	\$2,000,000	100%	In-Progress
2023-129EC	ME0091410	14,303 Treatment	Yes	Sanford Water District	Cobb Well PFAS Treatment	\$10,599,550	\$4,000,000	100%	In-Progress
2024-01EC	ME0090080	13,750 Treatment	Yes	Greater Augusta Utilities District	Riverside PFAS Treatment	\$12,301,800	\$4,000,000	100%	In-Progress
2024-02EC	ME0009262	163 Treatment	Yes	MSU 76 Deer Isle-Stonington JR/SR HS	PFAS Treatment	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
			.00			,,	7,0		

2024-03EC	ME0094509	84 Treatment	Yes	MSU 76 Brooklin New Elementary School	PFAS Treatment	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2024-04EC	ME0000635	145 Treatment	Yes	AOS 91 Tremont Consolidated School	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2024-05EC	ME0092359	44 Treatment	Yes	Town & Country Motel Apartments	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,071	100%	Complete
2024-06EC	ME0092394	70 Treatment	Yes	RSU 68 - Administration Campus	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$25,572	100%	Complete
2024-07EC	ME0000196	197 Treatment	Yes	Dedham School Dept	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2024-08EC	ME0092265	120 Treatment	Yes	Parker Ridge Retirement Community	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$52,328	100%	Complete
2024-09EC	ME0092270	60 Treatment	Yes	Plymouth Water District	Small PWS EC Grant	\$90,000	\$62,983	100%	Complete
2024-10EC	ME0092887	30 Treatment	Yes	The Growing Patch Childcare	Small PWS EC Grant	\$60,000	\$60,000	100%	In-Progress
2025-01EC	ME0090080	14,000 Treatment	Yes	Greater Augusta Utilities District	Riverside PFAS Treatment	\$12,301,800	\$4,900,000	100%	Pending
2025-02EC	ME0091410	14,303 Treatment	Yes	Sanford Water District	Cobb Well PFAS Treatment	\$10,599,550	\$4,900,000	100%	Pending
2025-03EC	ME0091670	8,125 Design	Yes	Yarmouth Water District	PFAS Treatment Planning	\$200,000	\$200,000	100%	Pending
2025-04EC	ME0090870	6,150 Design	Yes	Lisbon Water District	PFAS Treatment Planning	\$200,000	\$200,000	100%	Pending

^{*}In-Progress: Work may be complete but final reimbursement has not yet been processed

BIL-EC Funds Available for Projects				
2022	\$6,802,780			
2023	\$6,882,440			
2024	\$6,864,684			
2025	\$7,234,860			
Total Available Funds: \$27,784,764				

*Pending: Subject to Approval of Maine's 2025 Capitalization Grant by USEPA

Awarded to Date	\$27,792,072
Remaining Balance:	(\$7,308)

Janet T. Mills Governor

Jeanne M. Lambrew, Ph.D. Commissioner



Maine Department of Health and Human Services
Maine Center for Disease Control and Prevention
11 State House Station
286 Water Street
Augusta, Maine 04333-0011
Tel; (207) 287-8016; Fax (207) 287-9058
TTY: Dial 711 (Maine Relay)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING By and Between

MAINE WATER UTILITIES ASSOCIATION and

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES DRINKING WATER PROGRAM For

July 1, 2021 – June 30, 2022

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for State Fiscal Year 2022 and 2023 is hereby created by and between the Maine Water Utilities Association (MWUA) and the Department of Health and Human Services, Drinking Water Program (DWP). This memorandum sets forth the respective responsibilities for Capacity Development Improvement and Assistance established under the Maine Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund (DWSRF) Set-Asides provided by the 1996 Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA), as provided in the DWSRF Intended Use Plan and as required by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 6006-B Section 2. I.

The MOU recognizes MWUA as a stakeholder and a partner in the delivery of education and outreach to public water utilities. MWUA has been providing assistance to the DWP to improve water system capacity through training and outreach since 2001. As a non-profit membership based volunteer organization MWUA is uniquely situated to develop and produce professional learning opportunities and outreach to water utilities. The Education and Operations Committee is the lead committee in providing the deliverables of the MOU. With the assistance of the Executive Director they work with other committees to address the needs of the profession.

This MOU also recognizes that the DWP, the State primacy agency, administers the Set-Asides to achieve the goal of insuring that public water systems provide safe drinking water. Training and education are a primary means to increase compliance with regulations and to protect the quality and quantity of water available for drinking.

Funding is provided through the DWSRF Capacity Development Set-aside. The goal of this fund is to assure training is provided to operators that increases public health protection through the advancement in knowledge of the technical, financial, and managerial aspects of water systems operation.

Deliverables:

- Reports outlining the proposed and completed activities of each state fiscal year. These will consist of:
 - O Workplan submitted by September 30th describing the budget and specific plan of work for the following fiscal year. The workplan should demonstrate how the described activities will promote the protection of public health. This does not need to be course topic specific but types of courses to be presented, i.e. multi-site-statewide, large seminar, single course.

- o Record of training submitted 30 days after completed course detailing name of attendees, license number, system/entity represented and evaluations of training.
- O Quarterly expense report and request for payment distribution due by the 15th of October, January, April, and July for previous quarter respectively.
- O Annual Summary Report due by July 31st for previous fiscal year detailing number of persons, and systems served by the training. The reports should summarize the improvements to the protection of public health addressed and any measured directly associated benefits.
- Approximately twelve (12) continuing education training courses approved by the Board of Licensure of Water System operators annually. This may include a mixture of types of classes, courses and seminars held state-wide. Partnering with other organizations is encouraged. This does not include the organization's member meetings.
 - Courses shall be approved by the Board of Licensure through the Training Provider process. This includes a description of learning objectives, submittal of attendance and evaluations.
 - A budget for the year should be established with payment of each course structured similar to the Capacity Development Training Reimbursement Fund. Payment for attendance of water system personnel and licensed operators at a consistent fee per TCH awarded. No expense report will be necessary.
- Sponsoring a site(s) for four to six proctored webcasts trainings based on an expense based budget.
- Assisting utilities with and participation in the promotion of Drinking Water Week.
- Partnering with DWP to disseminate drinking water related initiative information and outreach to
 utilities. Past projects include –water use efficiency, surface water level and flow. This could
 include committee establishment and associated work sessions, development, and facilitation of
 seminars. Payment will be based on an expense budget.

MWUA and the DWP will work cooperatively to achieve the program goals through:

- DWP participation in MWUA committees to assure DWP initiatives are communicated to utilities.
- Review annual workplans and reports to assure accomplishments and address continued needs of the program.
- Develop a work plan and budget by October 1st for the upcoming fiscal year.

MWUA agrees to:

- Provide the DWP with three copies of the membership mailings (Journal, newsletters, outreach.
- Submit reports as described in Deliverables.

DWP agrees to:

- Submit workplan and budget to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), to secure the necessary funding from the DWSRF Set Asides.
- Forward payment requests to the Maine Municipal Bond Bank within five days of receipt of invoice, if acceptable.
- Review monthly and quarterly submittals for accuracy and acceptability and ensure the program is progressing according to the workplan and within budget.

Provide data on public water systems.

MAINE WATER UTILITIES ASSOCIATION

Objective: To provide water system training and informational outreach to water systems and stakeholders concerning the operations and needs of the drinking water industry. The training and outreach will address technical, managerial, and financial capacity development issues facing utilities.

Program Goals:

- ➤ To provide approved training in all aspects of operation including administration, water quality and treatment, compliance with state and federal requirements and distribution, operations and maintenance procedures to water system operators and employees.
- > To provide networking opportunities for all of Maine's public water systems with each other and other water related entities, to promote engaging these entities in the topics of concern to the water industry from source protection to infrastructure.
- > To provide training to various size and types of utilities within two hours driving time statewide.
- > To provide training that complements training and programs offered by other service provider organizations.
- > To assure that an equitable cost of attendance at training venues is distributed between the attendee and the funded portion.
- ➤ To assist in the DWP messaging of regulatory and other water profession related initiatives.

The DWP and MRWA agree to cooperate to correct any deficiency in meeting the terms of this MOU. Deficiencies may be identified by the US Environmental Protection Agency, the DWP, or MRWA, as a result of any audits or day-to-day operations. Each party is responsible for correcting and improving upon their respective citing of errors or shortcomings, as the result of any audit.

In the event of any conflicts between any Federal or State statutory provision relating to the SRF Capacity Development Funds or its related activities, and this memorandum, the statutory language shall control. The failure of any portion of this memorandum shall affect only that section of the memorandum.

In witness whereof, the parties to this Agreement have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be executed by their duly authorized officers.

Date: _____ By: _____ Title: Executive Director STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DRINKING WATER PROGRAM Date: _____ By: _____ Title: Drinking Water Program Manager

March 14, 2025,1:00 PM - 2:00 PM

Attendance:

McKenzie Parker DWP,

David Welch DWP,

Steven Bechard Madawaska Water District,

Don Schwartz The Water Office, LLC,

Stephanie Morancie Maine PUC,

James Garland DWP,

Elizabeth Pereira Wright-Pierce,

Jeremy McDaniel MMBB,

Michelle Ames Small community water operator - Blue Ridge Properties LLC,

Jennifer Jamison DEH,

Michelle Ross DWP,

Sofia Licht DWP,

Tom Bahun Tom's Water Solutions LLC,

Roger Crouse Kennebec Water District,

Jordan McColman Maine PUC,

Bradley Sawyer Maine Rural Water Association

Jasmine Bouchard DWP,

Kerry Bowe DWP,

Brent Bridges Woodard & Curran,

Greg Connors DWP,

Daniel Bahun Tom's Water Solutions LLC,

Josh Gildert DWP,

Anna Malenfant CDM Smith,

Emma Morgan DWP,

Noah Bussiere DuBois & King, Bangor ME,

Christina Trufant Maine PUC,

Ralph Wesinger DWP,

Nicki Pellenz MWUA,

Max Kenney Kennebec Water District,

Kirsten Hebert MRWA,

Keith Levasseur Sanford Water District

Maraquita Hollman Maine Drinking Water Program

Ashley Hodge - Maine Drinking Water Program

Dan Gray, Camps Newfound Owatonna

Kendra Nash DWP

Amanda Ray & Reggie Winslow City of Ellsworth

Nate McLaughlin Woodard & Curran?

Chris Cossette, Wiscasset Water District

Eli Pellegrino DWP

Questions:

- 1) Roger Crouse: Rapid microbiological testing. After hour services, what happens when the emergency is on the weekend? Answered by McKenzie no, likely not. Only during operating hours. No wait from Friday to Monday, for instance. Jen added: In a huge emergency, HETL could get staff into the office off hours. This solution could keep people from coming in on Saturday. Does method require special bottles or agents in the bottles? Jen has asked Christine to look into it, will need to get back to him. Responded later, same sample bottles as for other methods.
- 2) Roger Crouse: Does the loan setup deadline refer to interim or final loan? **Answered** just the interim loan.
- 3) Steve Bechard: safe to assume that 2024 project monies have a 10/1/2025 deadline? **Answered Yes**
- 4) Jen Jamison said thank you for this presentation as she's trying learn more about the DWSRF.
- 5) Roger Crouse: EC for expansion question. \$2M limit per project. How are we defining project? Is it per street, or something else? Answer: \$2M per effort. For like the entire town of Fairfield, \$2M. Although is we have more money than we can spend at the end of the day, we can revisit. But we wanted to avoid giving everything to Fairfield.

Updated June 2025

PWSID	SYSTEM NAME	CITY	SYSTEM TYPE	POPULATION	OPER_CATEGORY_CD
ME0092649	39 LIMERICK ROAD LLC	ARUNDEL	NTNC	55	VSWS
ME0092373	A PLACE FOR ALL SEASONS	CARIBOU	С	90	VSWS
ME0094720	ACADIA HEALTHCARE/SWEETSER	WINTERPORT	NTNC	25	VSWS
ME0094712	ACAP CHILD & FAMILY CENTER	CARIBOU	NTNC	200	VSWS
ME0000002	ACTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	ACTON	NTNC	275	VSWS
ME0090010	ADDISON POINT WATER DISTRICT	ADDISON	С	168	VSWS
ME0090030	ALLEN WATER COMPANY	COLUMBIA	С	50	VSWS
ME0094108	AMERICAN CONCRETE IND INC	VEAZIE	NTNC	50	VSWS
ME0193835	AOS 77 ALEXANDER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	ALEXANDER	NTNC	61	VSWS
ME0093820	AOS 77 PEMBROKE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	PEMBROKE	NTNC	90	VSWS
ME0018538	AOS 77 PERRY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	PERRY	NTNC	87	VSWS
ME0008179	AOS 90 EAST RANGE II CSD SCHOOL	TOPSFIELD	NTNC	48	vsws
ME0093810	AOS 90 PRINCETON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	PRINCETON	NTNC	138	VSWS
ME0000635	AOS 91 TREMONT CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL	TREMONT	NTNC	145	VSWS
ME0093795	AOS 92 VASSALBORO COMMUNITY SCHOOL	VASSALBORO	NTNC	479	VSWS
ME0000119	AOS 93 BRISTOL CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL	BRISTOL	NTNC	243	VSWS
ME0093800	AOS 93 JEFFERSON VILLAGE SCHOOL	JEFFERSON	NTNC	288	VSWS
ME0000437	AOS 93 NOBLEBORO CENTRAL SCHOOL	NOBLEBORO	NTNC	170	VSWS
ME0093846	AOS 93 SOUTH BRISTOL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	SOUTH BRISTOL	NTNC	72	VSWS
ME0000015	AOS 94 ATHENS COMMUNITY SCHOOL	ATHENS	NTNC	155	vsws
ME0093794	AOS 96 BAY RIDGE ELEMENTARY	CUTLER	NTNC	75	vsws
ME0009222	AOS 96 ELM STREET SCHOOL	EAST MACHIAS	NTNC	230	VSWS
ME0000391	AOS 96 FORT OBRIEN SCHOOL	MACHIAS	NTNC	62	VSWS
ME0012984	AOS 96 JONESBORO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	JONESBORO	NTNC	57	VSWS
ME0009226	AOS 96 WHITING VILLAGE SCHOOL	WHITING	NTNC	33	VSWS
ME0025958	AOS 98 EDGECOMB EDDY ELEMENTARY II	EDGECOMB	NTNC	100	vsws
ME0093813	AOS 98 GEORGETOWN CENTRAL SCHOOL	GEORGETOWN	NTNC	98	VSWS
ME0092367	APPLEWOOD	WATERBORO	С	40	VSWS
ME0091800	ARCTARIS SADDLEBACK SKI OPS	RANGELEY	NTNC	63	VSWS
ME0092382	AROOSTOOK RENTAL HOUSING LLC	EASTON	С	42	vsws
ME0094156	ARROWSMITH BLDG - MILES HEALTH	DAMARISCOTTA	NTNC	40	vsws
ME0094551	ASHWOOD WALDORF SCHOOL	ROCKPORT	NTNC	72	vsws
ME0092429	AUTUMN COURT LLC	GORHAM	NTNC	25	vsws
ME0095635	AVERILLS MOBILE HOME PARK	BENTON	С	83	vsws
ME0094858	BACKYARD FARMS-GREENHOUSE #1	MADISON	NTNC	207	vsws

MEU1018E0	BACKYARD FARMS-GREENHOUSE #2	MADISON	NTNC	207	VSWS
	BAY SCHOOL	BLUE HILL	NTNC	_	VSWS
	BECKET ACADEMY CENTRAL ME LEARNING CTR	BELGRADE	NTNC		VSWS
	BEGIN TRAILER PARK	SABATTUS	C	_	VSWS
	BELFAST AREA CHILDRENS CENTER	WALDO	NTNC		VSWS
	BELFAST COHOUSING & ECOVILLAGE CONDOS	BELFAST	С		VSWS
	BENJAMIN RIVER APTS	SEDGWICK	С		VSWS
ME0095024	BERWICK EARLY LEARNING CENTER	BERWICK	NTNC	56	VSWS
ME0018680	BIG CATS CATERING-TINY TYKES DAYCARE	TRENTON	NTNC	383	VSWS
ME0007233	BIRCH HAVEN TRAILER PARK	HANCOCK	С	43	VSWS
ME0095663	BIRCH TREE MEADOWS MHP	HANCOCK	С	105	VSWS
ME0095550	BIRCHWOOD TRAILER PARK	BELMONT	С	90	VSWS
ME0094466	BLACK HORSE INN	LINCOLNVILLE	С	38	VSWS
ME0092678	BLUE HILL CO-OP-SOUTH STREET	BLUE HILL	NTNC	70	vsws
ME0095658	BLUEBERRY RIDGE MOBILE VILLAGE	WELLS	С	138	VSWS
ME0092493	BLUEPRINTS LEARNING CENTER	LEBANON	NTNC	80	VSWS
ME0095575	BOUDREAU TRAILER PARK	PRINCETON	С	50	VSWS
ME0090205	BOULIER PLACE APTS	HERMON	С	60	VSWS
ME0092417	BRIGHT IDEAS CHILD CARE CENTER	LIVERMORE	NTNC	96	vsws
ME0095719	BROCKS MOBILE HOME PARK	VASSALBORO	С	30	vsws
ME0092365	BROOK HOLLOW	NAPLES	С	35	vsws
ME0005826	BROOKSIDE MHP	PITTSTON	С	40	vsws
ME0095595	BROOKSIDE MOBILE HOME COURT	WALDOBORO	С	58	VSWS
ME0000195	BROWNFIELD-DENMARK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	DENMARK	NTNC	100	VSWS
ME0092341	BURNT MILL SETTLEMENT	WELLS	С	73	VSWS
ME0094730	BUXTON MUNICIPAL COMPLEX	BUXTON	NTNC	25	VSWS
ME0009850	CALAIS HIGH SCHOOL	CALAIS	NTNC	390	VSWS
ME0093894	CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH/ACADEMY	TURNER	NTNC	124	vsws
ME0100840	CAMP KIEVE #2	NOBLEBORO	NTNC	25	vsws
ME0095630	CANTON POINT PARK	CANTON	С	88	VSWS
ME0002439	CARIBOU STREAM MOBILE HOME PK	CARIBOU	С	95	VSWS
ME0094827	CARRABASSETT VALLEY ACADEMY DORM	CARRABASSETT VL	NTNC	90	VSWS
	CASCO INN RESIDENTIAL CARE	CASCO	С		VSWS
	CASWELL ELEM/AKA DAWN BARNES	CASWELL PLT	NTNC		VSWS
	CATHANCE TRAILER PARK	TOPSHAM	С		VSWS
	CEDAR HAVEN MHC	HOLDEN	С		VSWS

ME0000470	CENTER DRIVE SCHOOL	ORRINGTON	NTNC	450	VSWS
ME0094401	CENTER FOR TEACHING/LEARNING	EDGECOMB	NTNC	87	VSWS
ME0000185	CHEBEAGUE ISLAND SCHOOL	CHEBEAGUE ISLAND	NTNC	40	VSWS
ME0200945	CHEWONKI FOUNDATION #2	WISCASSET	NTNC	95	VSWS
ME0094723	CHILDRENS VILLAGE CHILD CARE CENTER	CARMEL	NTNC	55	VSWS
ME0400949	CHOP POINT (GREENHOUSE)	WOOLWICH	NTNC	84	VSWS
ME0094004	CIVES STEEL-NEW ENGLAND DIV	AUGUSTA	NTNC	120	VSWS
ME0092638	CLC YMCA CHILD CARE	NOBLEBORO	NTNC	62	VSWS
ME0093881	COASTAL CHRISTIAN SCHOOL	WALDOBORO	NTNC	80	VSWS
ME0092376	COCOONS DAY SCHOOL	KENNEBUNK	NTNC	54	VSWS
ME0090360	COLD SPRING WATER COMPANY	LAMOINE	С	265	VSWS
ME0007736	COLONIAL MOBILE HOME PARK	LEBANON	С	270	VSWS
ME0000179	CONNOR CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL	CONNOR TWP	NTNC	43	VSWS
ME0092305	CORINNA WATER DISTRICT	CORINNA	С	80	VSWS
ME0090378	CORINTHIAN MANOR	CORINTH	С	60	VSWS
ME0000183	CORNVILLE REGIONAL CHARTER SCHOOL	CORNVILLE	NTNC	164	VSWS
ME0006648	COUNTRY ACRES TRAILER PARK	DURHAM	С	75	VSWS
ME0092716	COUNTRY KIDS	MONMOUTH	NTNC	58	VSWS
ME0007543	COUNTRY MOBILE HOME PARK	KENDUSKEAG	С	155	VSWS
ME0092500	CRANTON-THOMES DAY SCHOOL	WELLS	NTNC	80	VSWS
ME0095190	CRAWFORD COMMONS	UNION	С	50	VSWS
ME0007237	CRESCENT MOBILE HOME PARK	HANCOCK	С	55	VSWS
ME0095020	CREST VIEW MANOR	HOULTON	С	38	VSWS
ME0002893	CRYSTAL SPRING ESTATES	SCARBOROUGH	С	40	VSWS
ME0093802	CSD 8 AIRLINE COMMUNITY SCHOOL	AURORA	NTNC	49	VSWS
ME0092509	DAMARISCOTTA MONTESSORI SCHOOL	NOBLEBORO	NTNC	112	VSWS
ME0094952	DANFORTH PLAZA	HERMON	NTNC	47	VSWS
ME0108180	DAYTON SCHOOL DEPARTMENT	DAYTON	NTNC	142	VSWS
ME0000193	DEDHAM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	DEDHAM	NTNC	197	VSWS
ME0001194	DEER RIDGE MOBILE HOME PARK	AUGUSTA	С	33	VSWS
ME0090425	DEER RUN APTS	DEER ISLE	С	60	VSWS
ME0002456	DEL-WOOD TRAILER PARK	CARIBOU	С	90	VSWS
ME0090427	DENNYSVILLE HOUSING	DENNYSVILLE	С	43	vsws
ME0092430	DEVELOPING MINDS 2 PRESCHOOL	HOLLIS	NTNC	74	VSWS
ME0093963	DFD RUSSELL MEDICAL CENTER- LEEDS	LEEDS	NTNC	30	VSWS
ME0090450	DINGLEY SPRING ESTATES	GORHAM	С	90	VSWS

ME0094694	DIPPER COVE ASSOCIATION	HARPSWELL	C 30	VSWS
ME0095650	DIRIGO MOBILE HOME PARK	CHINA	C 80	VSWS
ME0001978	DOVER REALTY VENTURES MHP LLC	BREWER	C 145	VSWS
ME0094726	DOWN EAST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	MACHIAS	NTNC 20	VSWS
ME0098560	DOWNEAST CORRECTIONAL FACILITY	MACHIASPORT	C 63	3 VSWS
ME0000207	DRESDEN ELEM SCHOOL	DRESDEN	NTNC 9:	1 VSWS
ME0007001	DUCK-A-WAY ON CASCO BAY	FREEPORT	C 65	5 VSWS
ME0000212	EASTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	EASTON	NTNC 140	vsws
ME0093811	EASTON HIGH SCHOOL	EASTON	NTNC 118	3 VSWS
ME0008806	EDMUNDS CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL	EDMUNDS TWP	NTNC 90	vsws
ME0092552	ELLIOTT APARTMENTS	OWLS HEAD	C 55	5 VSWS
ME0092366	ELWELL FARMS	BUXTON	C 30	5 VSWS
ME0092585	ESSENTIAL LEARNING SOLUTIONS	LIVERMORE	NTNC 2	7 VSWS
ME0002809	ESTES LAKE MOBILE HOME PARK	SANFORD	C 177	2 VSWS
ME0007154	EVERGREEN COMMUNITY MH PARK	GREENBUSH	C 90	VSWS
ME0007731	EVERGREEN ESTATES OF LEBANON LLC	LEBANON	C 50	vsws
ME0091780	FAIRGROUND APARTMENTS	ORRINGTON	C 63	3 VSWS
ME0093806	FAITH BIBLE COLLEGE INTERNATIONAL	CHARLESTON	NTNC 99	9 VSWS
ME0000242	FAYETTE CENTRAL SCHOOL	FAYETTE	NTNC 85	5 VSWS
ME0000104	FHC INC	BOWDOIN	NTNC 110	vsws
ME0092371	FOUR WINDS HOMEOWNERS ASSN	SOUTH THOMASTON	C 43	3 VSWS
ME0090745	GAELIC SQUARE HOUSING	JONESPORT	C 50	VSWS
ME0007372	GEORGE POND ESTATES LLC	HOLDEN	C 50	VSWS
ME0000266	GLENBURN ELEM SCHOOL	GLENBURN	NTNC 528	3 VSWS
ME0092764	GOLDEN SUN CHILD CARE	BLUE HILL	NTNC 28	3 VSWS
ME0000225	GOOD WILL HOME ASSOCIATION	FAIRFIELD	C 72	2 VSWS
ME0094872	GRACES BUSY BEES LEARNING CENTER	CHINA	NTNC 7:	ı vsws
ME0003060	GRANDEUR MOBILE HOME ESTATES	CARMEL	C 100) VSWS
ME0005825	GREENLEDGE PARK LLC	PITTSTON	C 5:	5 VSWS
ME0092327	GREENWOOD GARDEN APARTMENTS	HOLDEN	C 50) VSWS
	HADLEYS LAKE APARTMENTS	EAST MACHIAS		5 VSWS
	HALLOWELL ROAD MOBILE HOME PARK	LITCHFIELD		5 VSWS
	HAMMOND LUMBER COMPANY	BELGRADE		5 VSWS
	HANCOCK GRAMMAR SCHOOL	HANCOCK		9 VSWS
	HANCOCK LUMBER - RYEFIELD MILL	CASCO		5 VSWS
	HANCOCK LUMBER-BETHEL PLANER MILL	BETHEL) VSWS
10150134303	HANCOCK LUIVIDER-DETHEL PLAIVER IVIILL	DLINEL	INTINC 40	V 3 V 3

ME0094369	HANCOCK LUMBER-BETHEL SAWMILL	BETHEL	NTNC	35	VSWS
ME0002527	HANCOCK VILLAGE MHP	CASTINE	С	73	VSWS
ME0094840	HANNAFORD BROTHERS-#8226 BUXTON	BUXTON	NTNC	25	VSWS
ME0092402	HANNAFORD STORE- TURNER	TURNER	NTNC	88	VSWS
ME0092405	HANNAFORD-BLUE HILL	BLUE HILL	NTNC	70	VSWS
ME0003377	HAPPY TRAILS MHP	TOPSHAM	С	33	VSWS
ME0092165	HARBORVIEW I & II	BLUE HILL	С	40	vsws
ME0092364	HARMON PINES DEVELOPMENT	BUXTON	С	50	vsws
ME0009166	HARMONY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	HARMONY	NTNC	75	vsws
ME0002245	HARRIMAN COVE PARK LLC	BUCKSPORT	С	45	VSWS
ME0105637	HAVASU PINES MHP	ORONO	С	75	VSWS
ME0005637	HAVASU PINES MHP #1	ORONO	С	65	vsws
ME0000278	HELEN S DUNN SCHOOL	GREENBUSH	NTNC	155	VSWS
ME0091890	HERITAGE VIEW APTS	NEW SWEDEN	С	60	VSWS
ME0094508	HERMON HIGH SCHOOL	HERMON	NTNC	550	VSWS
ME0007336	HERMON MHP LLC	HERMON	С	43	VSWS
ME0093815	HERMON MIDDLE SCHOOL #2	HERMON	NTNC	350	VSWS
ME0007990	HIDDEN LAKE VILLAGE LLC	LIMINGTON	С	133	vsws
ME0003907	HIGHPINE MOBILE HOME COURT	WELLS	С	130	VSWS
ME0094918	HIGHVIEW CHRISTIAN ACADEMY	CHARLESTON	NTNC	95	VSWS
ME0095240	HILLHOUSE INC	ВАТН	С	146	VSWS
ME0003535	HILLVIEW ESTATES	TURNER	С	140	vsws
ME0095699	HINGHAM HEIGHTS	GLENBURN	С	140	vsws
ME0094503	HODGDON HOMESTEAD	HODGDON	С	32	VSWS
ME0092155	HOLDEN SQUARE APARTMENTS	HOLDEN	С	63	VSWS
ME0094194	HOME INC & LEARNING CENTER	ORLAND	NTNC	36	VSWS
ME0095640	HOMESTEAD ESTATES LLC	GLENBURN	С	125	VSWS
ME0017236	HOPE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	НОРЕ	NTNC	207	VSWS
ME0094216	HOWELL LABORATORIES	BRIDGTON	NTNC	60	VSWS
ME0094237	HUBER ENGINEERED WOODS LLC	EASTON	NTNC	136	VSWS
ME0095530	INDIAN RUN ESTATES LLC	DRESDEN	С	103	vsws
ME0093713	IRVING FOREST PRODUCTS - ASHLAND MILL	NASHVILLE PLT	NTNC	125	vsws
ME0098268	ISLAND MEDICAL CENTER	STONINGTON	NTNC	90	vsws
ME0000315	ISLESBORO CENTRAL SCHOOL	ISLESBORO	NTNC	115	VSWS
ME0094669	JOHNSON PROPERTY MGT LLC	UNITY	NTNC	28	VSWS
	JORDAN-SMALL MIDDLE SCHOOL	RAYMOND	NTNC		VSWS

ME0092466	KELLYS PLACE LEARNING CENTER LLC	PRESQUE ISLE	NTNC	120	VSWS
ME0005192	KENNEBEC MOBILE HOME PARK	OAKLAND	С	53	VSWS
ME0000531	KENTS HILL SCHOOL	READFIELD	NTNC	338	VSWS
ME0009644	KEYWOOD MANOR MHP LLC	ALFRED	С	411	VSWS
ME0092434	KIDQUARTERS CHILD CARE CENTER	NEW GLOUCESTER	NTNC	40	VSWS
ME0092347	KIDS & CO CHILDCARE CENTER	TURNER	NTNC	71	vsws
ME0092437	KIDS COUNT LEARNING CENTER	NAPLES	NTNC	55	vsws
ME0094196	KIDSPEACE-NEW ENGLAND-CAFETERIA	ELLSWORTH	NTNC	55	VSWS
ME0094410	KIDSPEACE-NEW ENGLAND-MEDICAL DORM	ELLSWORTH	NTNC	225	vsws
ME0092712	KIMMYS KIDS	воотнвау	NTNC	60	VSWS
ME0092299	LAKE ST GEORGE APARTMENTS	LIBERTY	С	45	VSWS
ME0019577	LAKES REGION APARTMENTS	CHINA	С	40	VSWS
ME0000338	LEE ACADEMY #1	LEE	NTNC	252	VSWS
ME0400338	LEE ACADEMY #3	LEE	NTNC	300	VSWS
ME0200338	LEE ACADEMY-COBB CENTER	LEE	NTNC	270	VSWS
ME0094718	LIE-NIELSEN TOOLWORKS	WARREN	NTNC	60	VSWS
ME0092467	LIFE CHURCH-SUNNY DAYS CHILDCARE	GORHAM	NTNC	110	VSWS
ME0007963	LIMERICK MOBILE HOME PARK LLC	LIMERICK	С	115	VSWS
ME0000432	LITTLE BRONCOS ACADEMY	NEWBURG	NTNC	56	VSWS
ME0092502	LITTLE BUDDIES CHILDCARE LLC	SOUTH BERWICK	NTNC	28	VSWS
ME0092494	LITTLE FRIENDS EARLY LEARNING CENTER	FREEPORT	NTNC	37	VSWS
ME0092396	LITTLE LEARNERS CHILDCARE	SOUTH THOMASTON	NTNC	77	vsws
ME0092571	LITTLE TYKES II CHILD CARE	STANDISH	NTNC	100	VSWS
ME0094936	LONGFELLOWS GREENHOUSE	MANCHESTER	NTNC	28	vsws
ME0007968	LORING WOODS PARK	LIMESTONE	С	55	VSWS
ME0094006	LOUISIANA-PACIFIC CORP-NEW LIMERICK	NEW LIMERICK	NTNC	150	vsws
ME0093951	LOVEJOY HEALTH CENTER	ALBION	NTNC	36	vsws
ME0092499	LYNNS WAY	SKOWHEGAN	С	40	VSWS
ME0004628	MACHIAS TRAILER PARK	MACHIAS	С	89	vsws
ME0094247	MAINE WOOD TURNING INC	NEW VINEYARD	NTNC	71	vsws
ME0094753	MAINE WOODS COMPANY LLC	PORTAGE LAKE	NTNC	60	vsws
ME0095340	MAPLE RIDGE MOBILE HOME PARK	CORINNA	С	110	vsws
ME0092160	MAPLE TREE ESTATES	MAPLETON	С	62	vsws
ME0014643	MAPLEWOOD MOBILE HOME PARK	WISCASSET	С	70	vsws
ME0092288	MARSH BROOK ESTATES	SANFORD	С	70	vsws
ME0094273	MASTERS MACHINE COMPANY	BRISTOL	NTNC	88	vsws

ME0090949	MATTAWAMKEAG HOUSING CORP	MATTAWAMKEAG	С	33	VSWS
ME0092540	MAYBERRY HILL PRESCHOOL	CASCO	NTNC	28	VSWS
ME0094250	MCCAIN FOODS USA INC	EASTON	NTNC	465	VSWS
ME0194250	MCCAIN FOODS, INC - COLD STORAGE	EASTON	NTNC	29	vsws
ME0092175	MCCULLEY COMMONS APARTMENTS	PRESQUE ISLE	С	73	VSWS
ME0092363	MEADOWVIEW APARTMENTS	TOPSHAM	С	40	VSWS
ME0094748	MERCY-GORHAM CROSSING	GORHAM	NTNC	44	VSWS
ME0090980	MILBRIDGE WATER DISTRICT	MILBRIDGE	С	405	VSWS
ME0000012	MILDRED L DAY SCHOOL - ARUNDEL	ARUNDEL	NTNC	300	VSWS
ME0092260	MILLSTONE APARTMENTS	HARPSWELL	С	97	VSWS
ME0092658	MMCA-SALT BAY HEAD START	NEWCASTLE	NTNC	33	VSWS
ME0094557	MMET-HANLEY BUILDING	MANCHESTER	NTNC	27	VSWS
ME0091030	MONSON UTILITIES DISTRICT	MONSON	С	298	VSWS
ME0091031	MONTFORT HEIGHTS	ST AGATHA	С	30	VSWS
ME0091032	MONTICELLO HOUSING CORPORATION	MONTICELLO	С	33	VSWS
ME0003629	MOODYS DINER	WALDOBORO	NTNC	44	vsws
ME0091850	MOOSEHEAD TRAIL VILLAGE	BROOKS	С	60	vsws
ME0094296	MORIN BRICK COMPANY	AUBURN	NTNC	35	vsws
ME0194296	MORIN BRICK-FACTORY	AUBURN	NTNC	25	vsws
ME0094867	MORRIS YACHTS	TRENTON	NTNC	45	vsws
ME0090342	MOUNTAIN VIEW CORRECTIONAL FACILITY	CHARLESTON	С	468	vsws
ME0006954	MOUNTAIN VIEW TRAILER PARK	FORT KENT	С	95	vsws
ME0002346	MOUNTAINSIDE MOBILE HOME PARK	CAMDEN	С	130	vsws
ME0000399	MSAD 01 MAPLETON ELEM SCHOOL	MAPLETON	NTNC	236	vsws
ME0093804	MSAD 06 FRANK JEWETT SCHOOL	BUXTON	NTNC	60	vsws
ME0000367	MSAD 06 HB EMERY JR MEMORIAL SCHOOL	LIMINGTON	NTNC	265	vsws
ME0093887	MSAD 09 CAPE COD HILL SCHOOL	NEW SHARON	NTNC	215	vsws
ME0000676	MSAD 11 HELEN THOMPSON SCHOOL	WEST GARDINER	NTNC	331	vsws
ME0000293	MSAD 17 HARRISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	HARRISON	NTNC	100	VSWS
ME0025959	MSAD 17 HEBRON STATION SCHOOL	HEBRON	NTNC	113	VSWS
ME0093972	MSAD 17 OTISFIELD COMMUNITY SCHOOL	OTISFIELD	NTNC	95	vsws
ME0000658	MSAD 17 WATERFORD MEMORIAL SCHOOL	WATERFORD	NTNC	112	vsws
ME0094443	MSAD 30 LEE-WINN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	WINN	NTNC	125	vsws
ME0092355	MSAD 30 MT JEFFERSON JUNIOR HIGH	LEE	NTNC	97	VSWS
ME0094474	MSAD 31 ENFIELD STATION ELEMENTARY	ENFIELD	NTNC	266	VSWS
ME0000555	MSAD 33 WISDOM JR-SR HIGH SCHOOL	ST AGATHA	NTNC	126	vsws

ME0000174 MSAD 37 CHERRYFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CHERRYFIELD NTNC 133 VSWS ME0000003 MSAD 37 DANIEL W MERRIT SCHOOL ADDISON NTNC 118 VSWS ME0014156 MSAD 37 HARRINGTON ELEM SCHOOL HARRINGTON NTNC 151 VSWS ME00017874 MSAD 41 BROWNVILLE ELEM SCHOOL MILBRIDGE NTNC 132 VSWS ME00017874 MSAD 41 MARION C COOK SCHOOL LA GRANGE NTNC 25 VSWS ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME0000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 TURIPE PINIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 249 VSWS ME00093416 MSAD 52 TURIPE RELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 333 VSWS ME0009311 MSAD 52 TURIPER PINIDALE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME00093156 MSAD 52 TURNER PINIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0001526 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 245 VSWS ME00015265 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	rs rs rs rs rs
ME0014156 MSAD 37 HARRINGTON ELEM SCHOOL HARRINGTON NTNC 151 VSWS ME0000411 MSAD 37 MILBRIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MILBRIDGE NTNC 158 VSWS ME0017874 MSAD 41 BROWNVILLE ELEM SCHOOL BROWNVILLE NTNC 132 VSWS ME0000335 MSAD 41 MARION C COOK SCHOOL LA GRANGE NTNC 25 VSWS ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME00000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 40 VSWS ME00094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME00094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0003156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS <tr< td=""><td>rs rs rs</td></tr<>	rs rs rs
ME0000411 MSAD 37 MILBRIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MILBRIDGE NTNC 158 VSWS ME0017874 MSAD 41 BROWNVILLE ELEM SCHOOL BROWNVILLE NTNC 132 VSWS ME0000335 MSAD 41 MARION C COOK SCHOOL LA GRANGE NTNC 25 VSWS ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME00000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME00094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 408 VSWS ME0000310 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 249 VSWS ME00003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME00004059 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0004059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME00013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 245 VSWS ME0000337 <td></td>	
ME0017874 MSAD 41 BROWNVILLE ELEM SCHOOL BROWNVILLE NTNC 132 VSWS ME000335 MSAD 41 MARION C COOK SCHOOL LA GRANGE NTNC 25 VSWS ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME00000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME00094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 408 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME00003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME00094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME00013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 245 VSWS ME00017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337	rs rs
ME0000335 MSAD 41 MARION C COOK SCHOOL LA GRANGE NTNC 25 VSWS ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME00000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME0004433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 249 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0004059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME00013542 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME00017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME00000337 MSA	rs rs
ME0017998 MSAD 44 WOODSTOCK ELEM SCHOOL WOODSTOCK NTNC 91 VSWS ME0000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME0094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 249 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME00094059 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 300 VSWS ME00016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 6	rs
ME0000004 MSAD 49 ALBION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ALBION NTNC 135 VSWS ME00094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 249 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME00093731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME00094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0009156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME001564 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000037 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 LAKE R	'S
ME0094433 MSAD 52 ALTERNATIVE/ADMIN SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 40 VSWS ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 408 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME00094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0009156 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 357 VSWS ME000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0001370 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME00016886 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE	
ME0000279 MSAD 52 GREENE CENTRAL SCHOOL GREENE NTNC 408 VSWS ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME00017265 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO L	'S
ME0000340 MSAD 52 LEEDS CENTRAL SCHOOL LEEDS NTNC 249 VSWS ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016866 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH-ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME009457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODG	
ME0003116 MSAD 52 TRIPP MIDDLE SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 343 VSWS ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD	S
ME0009731 MSAD 52 TURNER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 356 VSWS ME0094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	S
ME0094059 MSAD 52 TURNER PRIMARY SCHOOL TURNER NTNC 357 VSWS ME0000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CANAAN NTNC 245 VSWS ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016866 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	S
ME0000156 MSAD 54 CANAAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL ME0000037 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL ME0016686 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL ME0016804 MSAD 61 LOKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL ME0016804 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL MODGDON NTNC ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL MODGDON MTNC ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL MODGDON MTNC ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL MODGDON MTNC ME00003837 MSAD 70 HODGDON MTNC ME0000380 MSAD 70 HODGDON ME00000380 MSAD 70 HODGDON ME0000380 MSAD 70 HODGDON ME0000380 MSAD 70 HODGDON	S
ME0013542 MSAD 60 HANSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 180 VSWS ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	S
ME0017265 MSAD 60 KNOWLTON SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 270 VSWS ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0000337 MSAD 60 LEBANON ELEM SCHOOL LEBANON NTNC 181 VSWS ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0000087 MSAD 60 NOBLE MIDDLE SCHOOL BERWICK NTNC 500 VSWS ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0016686 MSAD 61 CROOKED RIVER SCHOOL CASCO NTNC 300 VSWS ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0094717 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION HIGH- ESB BRIDGTON NTNC 60 VSWS ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0016804 MSAD 61 LAKE REGION MIDDLE SCHOOL ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 400 VSWS NTNC 478 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0094457 MSAD 61 SONGO LOCKS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL NAPLES NTNC 478 VSWS ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0000301 MSAD 70 HODGDON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 264 VSWS ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
ME0093837 MSAD 70 HODGDON HIGH SCHOOL HODGDON NTNC 187 VSWS	'S
	'S
ME0000386 MSAD 72 NEW SUNCOOK SCHOOL LOVELL NTNC 207 VSWS	'S
	'S
ME0094742 MSAD 75 BOWDOIN CENTRAL SCHOOL BOWDOIN NTNC 250 VSWS	'S
ME0000289 MSAD 75 HARPSWELL ISLAND SCHOOL HARPSWELL NTNC 198 VSWS	'S
ME0093118 MSAD 76 SWANS ISLAND SCHOOL SWANS ISLAND NTNC 35 VSWS	'S
ME0093803 MSU 103 BEALS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BEALS NTNC 56 VSWS	'S
ME0013480 MSU 103 JONESPORT ELEM/JBHS JONESPORT NTNC 237 VSWS	
ME0000709 MSU 122 WOODLAND CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL WOODLAND NTNC 160 VSWS	
ME0000011 MSU 69 APPLETON VILLAGE SCHOOL APPLETON NTNC 168 VSWS	
ME0094573 MSU 69 LINCOLNVILLE CENTRAL SCHOOL LINCOLNVILLE NTNC 260 VSWS	
ME0094509 MSU 76 BROOKLIN NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BROOKLIN NTNC 84 VSWS	=
ME0094707 MSU 76 DEER ISLE/STONINGTON K-8 SCHOOL DEER ISLE NTNC 240 VSWS	

ME0009262	MSU 76 DEER ISLE-STONINGTON JR/SR HS	DEER ISLE	NTNC	130	VSWS
	MSU 76 SEDGWICK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	SEDGWICK	NTNC		VSWS
	MSU 93 BROOKSVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	BROOKSVILLE	NTNC		VSWS
	MSU 93 PENOBSCOT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	PENOBSCOT	NTNC		VSWS
ME0091870	MT ABRAM CHALET ASSOCIATION	GREENWOOD	С	160	VSWS
ME0000559	MT ABRAM HIGH SCHOOL	SALEM TWP	NTNC	265	VSWS
ME0017576	NAPLES SHOPPING CENTER	NAPLES	NTNC	35	VSWS
ME0091055	NARRAGUAGUS ESTATES	CHERRYFIELD	С	97	VSWS
ME0092428	NEW GLOUCESTER WATER DISTRICT	NEW GLOUCESTER	С	130	VSWS
ME0091090	NEW PORTLAND WATER DISTRICT	NEW PORTLAND	С	120	VSWS
ME0004591	NEZINSCOT VILLAGE	TURNER	С	67	vsws
ME0092293	NORTHEASTERN ESTATES	STANDISH	С	40	vsws
ME0093954	NORTHERN LIGHT BLUE HILL	BLUE HILL	NTNC	308	VSWS
ME0092821	NORTHERN LIGHT SEBASTICOOK VALLEY HOSP	PITTSFIELD	NTNC	165	VSWS
ME0017508	NORTHLAND PLAZA	TURNER	NTNC	100	VSWS
ME0008164	OAKWOOD MOBILE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION	LYMAN	С	95	VSWS
ME0108164	OAKWOOD MOBILE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION-2	LYMAN	С	95	VSWS
ME0092323	OLD MARSH CONDOMINIUM	WELLS	С	325	VSWS
ME0025566	OSSIPEE VALLEY CHRISTIAN SCHOOL	CORNISH	NTNC	75	VSWS
ME0094787	OXFORD SACC	OXFORD	NTNC	117	vsws
ME0000477	PALMYRA COMMUNITY CENTER	PALMYRA	NTNC	54	VSWS
ME0000297	PATRICIA A DURAN SCHOOL	HERMON	NTNC	430	vsws
ME0002093	PEMAQUID VILLAS MHP	BRISTOL	С	53	vsws
ME0092723	PENOBSCOT MCCRUM	WASHBURN	NTNC	76	vsws
ME0091750	PERSISTENCE SENIORS HOUSING	NEWBURG	С	60	vsws
ME0003990	PHEASANT HILL MHP	WELLS	С	35	vsws
ME0094534	PINE GROVE TERRACE	OAKFIELD	С	123	vsws
ME0095585	PINE RIDGE HUNTON BROOK ASSOCIATION	LIVERMORE FALLS	С	298	vsws
ME0004250	PINE RIDGE VILLAGE	WINDSOR	С	85	vsws
ME0091360	PINE SPRING ROADS & WATER	SHAPLEIGH	С	210	vsws
ME0094005	PINE TREE ACADEMY	FREEPORT	NTNC	147	VSWS
ME0003240	PINE TREE MOBILE ESTATES	STANDISH	С	560	VSWS
ME0006203	PINE VILLAGE MHP	PRESQUE ISLE	С	80	VSWS
ME0006513	PINES MOBILE HOME PARK LLC	DAMARISCOTTA	С	50	VSWS
ME0092475	PINETREE VILLAGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION	WELLS	С	40	VSWS
ME0008855	PINEWOOD ACRES TRAILER PARK	BOWDOIN	С	63	vsws

ME0002782	PINEWOOD PARK	SANFORD	С	108	VSWS
ME0095560	PIPER STREAM MOBILE HOME PARK	BELFAST	С	75	VSWS
ME0092448	PJS CHILD CARE	PLYMOUTH	NTNC	84	VSWS
ME0005693	PLEASANT ACRES ESTATES	PALMYRA	С	193	VSWS
ME0091285	PLEASANT VIEW MANOR	COLUMBIA FALLS	С	50	VSWS
ME0005844	POLAND COUNTRY VILLAGE MHP INC	POLAND	С	140	VSWS
ME0005847	POLAND TRAILER PARK-POLAND	POLAND	С	68	VSWS
ME0095510	POND & POND TRAILER PARK	NAPLES	С	63	VSWS
ME0092663	PRECIOUS LITTLE ONES CHILD CARE CENTER	AUGUSTA	NTNC	143	VSWS
ME0094168	PRIDE MANUFACTURING #1	BURNHAM	NTNC	129	VSWS
ME0092538	PUMPKIN PATCH PRESCHOOL	BALDWIN	NTNC	35	vsws
ME0091320	QUANTABACOOK WATER DISTRICT	HARRINGTON	С	303	VSWS
ME0094169	RADIODETECTION	RAYMOND	NTNC	70	VSWS
ME0094729	RAYMOND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	RAYMOND	NTNC	280	VSWS
ME0092307	RAYMOND WOODS TOWNHOUSES	RAYMOND	С	50	VSWS
ME0094751	RENYS DISTRIBUTION CENTER	NEWCASTLE	NTNC	90	VSWS
ME0095018	RHYMES AND REASONS EARLY LEARNING CENTER	GREENE	NTNC	42	VSWS
ME0094769	RISE & SHINE CHILD CARE CENTER	NEW GLOUCESTER	NTNC	81	VSWS
ME0007378	RIVERS EDGE MOBILE HOME COMMUNITY	HOLLIS	С	75	VSWS
ME0002429	RIVERSIDE COURT	CARIBOU	С	100	VSWS
ME0003017	RIVERSIDE TERRACE	SKOWHEGAN	С	350	VSWS
ME0094307	ROBBINS LUMBER	SEARSMONT	NTNC	108	VSWS
ME0092791	ROCKY RIDGE SUBDIVISION	HERMON	С	64	VSWS
ME0095600	ROUND STONE MOBILE HOME PARK	MOUNT VERNON	С	70	VSWS
ME0000488	RSU 01 PHIPPSBURG ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	PHIPPSBURG	NTNC	120	VSWS
ME0000419	RSU 03 MONROE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	MONROE	NTNC	71	vsws
ME0000122	RSU 03 MORSE MEMORIAL SCHOOL	BROOKS	NTNC	137	VSWS
ME0000637	RSU 03 TROY CENTRAL SCHOOL	TROY	NTNC	85	VSWS
ME0000641	RSU 03 UNITY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	UNITY	NTNC	45	VSWS
ME0000361	RSU 03 WALKER MEMORIAL SCHOOL	LIBERTY	NTNC	103	VSWS
ME0094672	RSU 04 CARRIE RICKER SCHOOL	LITCHFIELD	NTNC	388	VSWS
ME0000377	RSU 04 LIBBY TOZIER SCHOOL	LITCHFIELD	NTNC	213	VSWS
ME0009679	RSU 05 DURHAM COMMUNITY SCHOOL	DURHAM	NTNC	504	vsws
ME0008643	RSU 05 POWNAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	POWNAL	NTNC	154	VSWS
ME0000476	RSU 12 PALERMO CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL	PALERMO	NTNC	151	VSWS
ME0000596	RSU 12 SOMERVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	SOMERVILLE	NTNC	29	VSWS

ME0000687	RSU 12 WHITEFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	WHITEFIELD	NTNC	211	VSWS
ME0000697	RSU 12 WINDSOR ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	WINDSOR	NTNC	360	VSWS
ME0000083	RSU 18 BELGRADE CENTRAL SCHOOL	BELGRADE	NTNC	282	VSWS
ME0000175	RSU 18 CHINA MIDDLE SCHOOL	CHINA	NTNC	212	VSWS
ME0093874	RSU 18 CHINA PRIMARY SCHOOL	CHINA	NTNC	310	VSWS
ME0000587	RSU 18 JAMES H BEAN SCHOOL	SIDNEY	NTNC	300	VSWS
ME0000222	RSU 19 ETNA-DIXMONT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	ETNA	NTNC	193	VSWS
ME0009846	RSU 24 MOUNTAIN VIEW SCHOOL	SULLIVAN	NTNC	264	VSWS
ME0000211	RSU 24 CAVE HILL SCHOOL	EASTBROOK	NTNC	83	vsws
ME0000614	RSU 24 ELLA LEWIS SCHOOL	STEUBEN	NTNC	127	vsws
ME0092395	RSU 24 PENINSULA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	GOULDSBORO	NTNC	117	vsws
ME0094408	RSU 34 ALTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	ALTON	NTNC	95	VSWS
ME0008636	RSU 38 MT VERNON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	MOUNT VERNON	NTNC	117	VSWS
ME0000530	RSU 38 READFIELD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	READFIELD	NTNC	273	VSWS
ME0193827	RSU 38 WAYNE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	WAYNE	NTNC	81	VSWS
ME0000655	RSU 40 PRESCOTT MEMORIAL SCHOOL	WASHINGTON	NTNC	130	vsws
ME0000640	RSU 40 UNION ELEMENTARY-MIDDLE SCHOOL	UNION	NTNC	180	VSWS
ME0018559	RSU 57 LINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	LIMERICK	NTNC	340	VSWS
ME0012826	RSU 57 LYMAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	LYMAN	NTNC	325	VSWS
ME0000585	RSU 57 SHAPLEIGH MEMORIAL SCHOOL	SHAPLEIGH	NTNC	200	VSWS
ME0000303	RSU 63 HOLBROOK SCHOOL	HOLDEN	NTNC	250	VSWS
ME0000302	RSU 63 HOLDEN SCHOOL	HOLDEN	NTNC	148	VSWS
ME0092515	RSU 64 CENTRAL COMMUNITY ELEMENTARY	CORINTH	NTNC	550	VSWS
ME0015528	RSU 64 CENTRAL MIDDLE & HIGH SCHOOL	CORINTH	NTNC	615	VSWS
ME0092394	RSU 68-ADMINISTRATION CAMPUS	DOVER-FOXCROFT	NTNC	70	VSWS
ME0000579	RSU 71 AMES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	SEARSMONT	NTNC	150	VSWS
ME0000380	RSU 73 SPRUCE MOUNTAIN PRIMARY SCHOOL	LIVERMORE	NTNC	413	vsws
ME0000168	RSU 87 CARAVEL MIDDLE SCHOOL	CARMEL	NTNC	243	VSWS
ME0094653	RSU 87 SUZANNE M SMITH ELEM SCHOOL	LEVANT	NTNC	249	vsws
ME0000611	RSU 89 KATAHDIN ELEMENTARY	STACYVILLE	NTNC	220	vsws
ME0011158	RSU 89 KATAHDIN HIGH SCHOOL	STACYVILLE	NTNC	179	vsws
ME0094318	SABRE CORPORATION	CASCO	NTNC	100	vsws
ME0092710	SACO RIVER APARTMENTS	HOLLIS	С	30	vsws
ME0092539	SAFE HARBOR GREAT ISLAND	HARPSWELL	NTNC	38	VSWS
ME0095615	SANDY BOTTOM ESTATES MHP	TURNER	С	168	VSWS
	SANDY CREEK HOUSING	BRIDGTON	С		VSWS

ME0091860	SANDY STREAM VILLAGE	UNITY	С	60	VSWS
	SAUNDERS MIDWEST LLC	READFIELD	NTNC		VSWS
	SCARBOROUGH GARDENS	SCARBOROUGH	С		VSWS
	SCHOOL AROUND US	ARUNDEL	NTNC		VSWS
	SCHOOL STREET VILLAGE	UNITY	С		VSWS
	SCOVIL BUILDING-NORTH STREET	HOULTON	NTNC		VSWS
	SCROGGINS MOBILE HOME PARK	CORINTH	С		VSWS
	SEACOAST WALDORF SCHOOL	ELIOT	NTNC		VSWS
	SEBAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	SEBAGO	NTNC		VSWS
	SERENDIPITY CREEK CHILDCARE CENTER	GRAY	NTNC		VSWS
	SHADY OAKS MOBILE HOME PARK	ARUNDEL	С		VSWS
	SHEEPSCOT VALLEY CHILDRENS HOUSE	WISCASSET	NTNC		VSWS
	SHERWOOD FOREST MHP	BUCKSPORT	С		VSWS
	SILVER LAKE ESTATES	BUCKSPORT	С		VSWS
	SKYLINE TRAILER PARK	PRESQUE ISLE	С		VSWS
ME0092714	SMARTIES EARLY LEARNING CENTER	NAPLES	NTNC		VSWS
	SOUTH PENOBSCOT WATER ASSOCIATION	PENOBSCOT	С		VSWS
	SOUTH SLOPE ESTATES MHP	CARMEL	С		VSWS
	SOUTHERN AROOSTOOK COMM SCHOOL	DYER BROOK	NTNC		VSWS
	SPINSFIELD COMMONS	FRANKLIN	С		VSWS
	SPRING ROCK PARK	LEEDS	С		VSWS
ME0003639	SPRINGBROOK MOBILE HOME COURT	WALES	С		VSWS
ME0094695	SPURWINK SCHOOL INC-CHELSEA	CHELSEA	NTNC	87	VSWS
ME0004295	SQUIRE COURT LLC	WINTHROP	С	75	VSWS
ME0091840	ST AGATHA HOUSING	ST AGATHA	С	30	VSWS
	ST CROIX REGIONAL FAMILY HEALTH CENTER	PRINCETON	NTNC		VSWS
ME0091390	ST FRANCIS WATER DISTRICT	ST FRANCIS	С	100	VSWS
ME0093829	ST JOHN VALLEY VOC/TECH CENTER	FRENCHVILLE	NTNC	135	VSWS
	ST JOSEPHS MEMORY CARE	FRENCHVILLE	С		VSWS
	STANLEY SUBARU	TRENTON	NTNC		VSWS
ME0094709	STEP BY STEP CHILD CARE INC	MILBRIDGE	NTNC		VSWS
	STEPPING STONES EARLY LEARNING-GREENE	GREENE	NTNC		VSWS
ME0094762	STEPPING STONES LEARNING CENTER-ELIOT	ELIOT	NTNC	70	VSWS
ME0094794	STEPPING STONES/MONTESSORI SCHOOL	CHELSEA	NTNC	99	VSWS
ME0005645	STILLWATER MOBILE HOME PARK	ORONO	С	70	VSWS
ME0092120	STONINGTON MANOR	STONINGTON	С	44	VSWS

ME0001363	STREAMSIDE PINES MOBILE HOME PARK	BANGOR	C 183	vsws
ME0095701	STREETS MOBILE HOME PARK	ALTON	C 65	VSWS
ME0092492	SUES PLACE DAYCARE	ARUNDEL	NTNC 44	VSWS
ME0092291	SUMMER HAVEN APARTMENTS-BLDG 1	AUGUSTA	C 55	VSWS
ME0292291	SUMMER HAVEN APARTMENTS-BLDG 3	AUGUSTA	C 25	vsws
ME0092354	SUMMIT ACHIEVEMENT	STOW	NTNC 78	vsws
ME0007242	SUN HANCOCK HEIGHTS- EAST	HANCOCK	C 158	vsws
ME0092006	SUNDAY RIVER-LOWER SYSTEM	BETHEL	NTNC 73	vsws
ME0092011	SUNDAY RIVER-ROAD RUNNER SYSTEM	BETHEL	NTNC 267	vsws
ME0090615	SUNNY GABLES- GLENBURN HOUSING	GLENBURN	C 60	vsws
ME0002421	SUNNY SLOPE TRAILER PARK	CARIBOU	C 68	vsws
ME0095525	SUNRISE HILL ESTATES	BERWICK	C 100	VSWS
ME0007940	SUNSET GARDENS TRAILER PARK INC	LEWISTON	C 73	vsws
ME0092432	SWEET PEA CHILDCARE	ELIOT	NTNC 70	vsws
ME0094957	TEM INC	BUXTON	NTNC 40	vsws
ME0094323	TEX TECH INDUSTRIES	MONMOUTH	NTNC 130	vsws
ME0094782	THE HINCKLEY CO - 44-PLANT-BLDG 2	TRENTON	NTNC 77	vsws
ME0092891	THE LEARNING PLACE DAY SCHOOL	WELLS	NTNC 42	vsws
ME0095010	THE MEADOWS	GREENE	C 65	vsws
ME0095659	THE PINES AT ARUNDEL	ARUNDEL	C 105	vsws
ME0091400	THE SANDY POINT WATER COMPANY	STOCKTON SPRNGS	C 98	vsws
ME0094641	THE SCOTTS COMPANY	MEDWAY	NTNC 31	vsws
ME0094693	THE TALARIA COMPANY LLC (BLDG 1)	TRENTON	NTNC 104	vsws
ME0008251	THREE RIVERS M H COMMUNITY	BROWNVILLE	C 63	vsws
ME0092318	TIDAL BROOK DEVELOPMENT	FREEPORT	C 35	vsws
ME0095610	TIMBERLINE VILLAGE	FAIRFIELD	C 95	vsws
ME0094622	TISSUES COUNTRY ESTATE	ATHENS	NTNC 35	vsws
ME0092483	TOGETHER WEE GROW	CHINA	NTNC 83	vsws
ME0095685	TOGUS POND MOBILE HOME PARK	AUGUSTA	C 53	vsws
ME0003374	TOPSHAM MOBILE HOME PARK INC	TOPSHAM	C 243	vsws
ME0007374	TOWN & COUNTRY MOTEL APARTMENTS	HOLDEN	C 44	vsws
ME0008921	TOWN & COUNTRY TRAILER PARK	CORINTH	C 48	VSWS
ME0092359	TOWN AND COUNTRY APARTMENTS	PRESQUE ISLE	C 136	VSWS
ME0095660	TOWN AND COUNTRY WAYS MHP	BENTON	C 75	VSWS
ME0092298	TOWN HALL APTS - LAGRANGE	LA GRANGE	C 60	VSWS
ME0094804	TOWN OF MINOT	MINOT	NTNC 256	vsws

ME0091373	TOWNE CENTER-RIDGEWOOD APARTMENTS	HERMON	С	60	VSWS
ME0092635	TREE FROG LEARNING CENTER	YORK	NTNC	49	VSWS
ME0012848	TRENTON SCHOOL	TRENTON	NTNC	165	VSWS
ME0194605	TRUE NORTH MAINE	MACHIASPORT	NTNC	50	VSWS
ME0092150	TURNER SQUARE APARTMENTS	TURNER	С	63	VSWS
ME0003660	TWIN PINES ESTATES #1	WATERBORO	С	63	VSWS
ME0103660	TWIN PINES ESTATES #2	WATERBORO	С	50	VSWS
ME0098262	UM DARLING MARINE CTR #1	SOUTH BRISTOL	NTNC	35	VSWS
ME0095570	UNITY BY THE STREAM LLC	UNITY	С	88	vsws
ME0400642	UNITY COLLEGE- CLIFFORD HALL	UNITY	NTNC	150	VSWS
ME0300642	UNITY COLLEGE- WOOD HALL	UNITY	NTNC	300	VSWS
ME0100642	UNITY COLLEGE-ACTIVITIES	UNITY	NTNC	200	VSWS
ME0110642	UNITY COLLEGE-UNITY #3	UNITY	NTNC	78	VSWS
ME0094628	US BORDER PATROL STATION-HODGDON	HODGDON	NTNC	80	VSWS
ME0094981	US BORDER PATROL-FORT FAIRFIELD	FORT FAIRFIELD	NTNC	50	vsws
ME0092559	US BORDER STATION-LONG POND RD-JACKMAN	JACKMAN	NTNC	26	vsws
ME0098573	US NPS ACADIA NATL PARK HQ	MOUNT DESERT	NTNC	120	vsws
ME0094268	VERSANT POWER- MAINE PUBLIC SERVICE	PRESQUE ISLE	NTNC	75	VSWS
ME0094765	VERSANT POWER-LAMOINE SERVICE	LAMOINE	NTNC	25	VSWS
ME0009003	VIGNEAULTS MOBILE HOME PARK	ALTON	С	53	vsws
ME0002580	VILLAGE GREEN MHP	CORINTH	С	105	vsws
ME0009181	WALDO COUNTY TECHNICAL CENTER	WALDO	NTNC	181	vsws
ME0007009	WARDTOWN PARK	FREEPORT	С	150	vsws
ME0109306	WASHINGTON ACADEMY #1	EAST MACHIAS	NTNC	487	VSWS
ME0009306	WASHINGTON ACADEMY #2	EAST MACHIAS	NTNC	488	VSWS
ME0209306	WASHINGTON ACADEMY #3	EAST MACHIAS	NTNC	96	VSWS
ME0309196	WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE #1	CALAIS	NTNC	99	VSWS
ME0109196	WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE #2	CALAIS	NTNC	150	VSWS
ME0009196	WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE #3	CALAIS	NTNC	400	VSWS
ME0209196	WASHINGTON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE #4	CALAIS	NTNC	50	VSWS
ME0094978	WAYPOINT- CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER	SANFORD	NTNC	110	VSWS
ME0091590	WEEKS MILLS WATER SYSTEM	CHINA	С	45	VSWS
ME0095330	WEST RIDGE MANOR	EASTON	С	41	vsws
ME0009171	WEST VILLAGE MOBILE HOME PARK	MONMOUTH	С	83	vsws
ME0008716	WHIPPOORWILL HILL MOBILE HOME	WISCASSET	С	85	vsws
ME0094955	WHITNEYS FAMILY SUPERMARKET	CORINTH	NTNC	32	VSWS

ME0092760	WILD OAKS LEARNING CENTER	AUGUSTA	NTNC	61	VSWS
		LEMANIT		75	VCMC
ME0095717	WILLOWBROOK MOBILE HOME PARK	LEVANT	С	/5	VSWS
ME0092308	WINDERMERE APARTMENTS	EASTON	С	50	vsws
ME0002577	WINDSWEPT ESTATES MH PARK	CORINTH	С	75	vsws
ME0092372	WOOD POND VILLAGE	BRUNSWICK	С	60	VSWS
ME0008690	WOODED GROVE MOBILE HOME PARK	KENDUSKEAG	С	90	VSWS
ME0091665	WOODLAND HILLS CONDO ASSOCIATION	SOUTH BERWICK	С	253	VSWS
ME0094714	WYMANS HANCOCK FREEZER DBA RTWB	ELLSWORTH	NTNC	35	VSWS
ME0094725	WYMANS OF MAINE-C&D	DEBLOIS	NTNC	49	VSWS
ME0002539	WYMANS OF MAINE-CHERRYFIELD FACTORY	CHERRYFIELD	NTNC	95	VSWS
ME0020883	YORK COUNTY SHELTERS	ALFRED	С		VSWS
	YOULAND CONVENIENCE LLC	TURNER	NTNC		VSWS